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FASHIONING
INDIA

SINCE 1968!!

Rupa & Co. Ltd, through its consumer focused approach, 

caters to the fashion needs of all ages of the society 

through innovation and R&D. Today, we are not just a mere 

manufacturer of innerwear and knitwear products. We 

started our journey as quality centric innerwear 

manufacturer through eco-friendly processes. �rough our 

tireless efforts and R&D, we graduated and integrated 

various products division across our fashion-lines from men 

and women innerwear to kid's innerwear, from kid's 

designer casualwears to fashionable jeans and chinos for 

both men and women, from women's leggings to male 

fashion innerwear and comfortwear specialized for every 

walks of life. �ese all reflects the economical and 

fashionable integration of our business. 

Despite business challenges and economic 

volatilities, we pursue our mission towards 

providing our motherland with fashion deliverables 

for every segment. We always aim to strengthen our 

foundation and reinforce our ambition towards 

achieving the highest summit in the fashionwear 

and innerwear industry. �at ambition is 

reflected through opening of two Exclusive 

Brand Outlets presently catering to the people 

of West Bengal. We are in the process of rolling 

this out on pan India basis.

You are also invited to join and learn the 

experience of our pursuit towards 





country

SINCE 1968.

At Rupa our vision is highly focused on varied consumer 
aspirations, creativity of our employees and our growth driven 
nature which is the inherent and intangible 
part of our business goal. �is visible 
force has always driven our growth 
trajectory till date and is expected to 
take us forward through confident 
strides.

We are always committed to deliver at the best of our 

capabilities. �ese self commitment and aspiration not only help 

us to leverage our competencies in all the good and bad 

times but also help us to put our mindset to 

proactively invest in our core activities, keeping 

the peers, miles behind us.

Interestingly, our stakeholders also share our 

vision to encourage meritocracy & upscale the 

organization. In 2013-14, we improved efficiencies 

across the entire value chain and now are 

suitably poised to play a pivotal role based on 

experience, expertise and maintain our 

leadership position through the bouquet of our 
powerful brands which has been

The fashionable
element of

fashioning the

Fashionable element of RUPA Management Insight Sustainable Business Prac�ceFashion statement at RUPA
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The fashion

statement at

Rupa, India's largest knitwear company is 
engaged in 5 main product categories – 

Innerwear, Casualwear, Kidswear, Winterwear 
and Footwear.

�ese products serve the growing 
needs and demands coming out of 
the Indian knitwear & fashionwear 
industry.

Over the years, the Company has 
significantly been investing to 
increase operational efficiency 
and strengthen its competitive 
edge by scaling up the value 
chain, brand building, product 
distribution, human resource, IT 

and corporate responsibility.

As a result of this growth 
initiative, the Company not 

only has increased its product 
portfolio, but has also 
expanded its distribution 

network & market share.
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Values

vision

Few words on

facts

Excellence : 

Strive relentlessly 
and constantly 
improve ourselves in 
our offerings.

Integrity : 

Conduct our 
business fairly with 
total honesty and 
transparency.

Innovation : 

Faster innovation 
across and process 
and product cycles
to create a 
sustainable value 
proportion for our 
customers.

Agile : 

Flexibility, prompt
responsive and 
adaptability to the 
changing market
dynamics.

Rupa & Company Limited is a Kolkata based innerwear and fashionwear Company. �e Company was started 
during the year 1979 as Binod Hosiery and was later renamed to Rupa & Company Pvt. Ltd. Lately during the 
year 1995 it was converted into a public limited company. Today the Company is managed by Mr. P. R. 
Agarwala, Mr. G. P. Agarwala and Mr. K. B. Agarwal and has become a generic name in the entire innerwear and 
fashionwear space for its comfort and price factor.

 One of the leaders in innerwear & fashionwear industry.

 Manufacturing facilities situated at Bangalore, Tirpur, Domjur and Ghaziabad. 

 Sales offices situated at Patna, Varanasi, Mumbai, Jaipur, Indore, Delhi, Ghaziabad, Kanpur, 

Bangalore, Tirpur, Hyderabad and Kolkata.

 Engaged in the manufacturing, branding and marketing of men's and women's innerwear and 

casualwear for all ages and all sections of societies like economy, mid-premium, premium and 

super-premium.

 Shares listed at NSE, BSE, CSE and JSE.

 Record 250% dividend for the year 2013-14.

 Regulatory, quality and compliance standards.

 An ISO 9001:2008 certified Company.

 Brand endorsed by leading celebrities like Hrithik Roshan, Ronit Roy, Karan Grover and Rajpal 

Yadav.

 One of the largest distribution networks across India where the products of the Company are 

sold through more than 1,18,000 retail outlets. 

We at Rupa & Company Limited believe in the overall development of the innerwear and 

fashionwear industry across India through our innovative designs, superior product quality, ability 

to create a sustainable business model, initiatives to nurture the in-house talent and zeal towards 

the healthy creation of stakeholders value. Our mission and values depict the diverse 

interpretations of that one belief.

Fashionable element of RUPA Management Insight Sustainable Business Prac�ceFashion statement at RUPA
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Achievement. Accomplishment. 

Appreciation. 

Another year of a successful journey

Dear Friends

We are highly delighted to present to you our Annual Report for FY 
2013-14, a year in which we sustained our growth driven vision and 
emerged as winners across multiple parameters. In this report, we 
have outlined the various facets of our leadership and our vision to 
sustain it, going forward.

�e big question and message

It is a challenge to produce growth oriented results in a slowdown economy, but to deliver 
consistent double-digit growth and outperform the industry in an economy with 5% GDP 
growth, takes special effort. Financial Year 2013-14, assumes more focus in a changing 
domestic political scenario amidst a deflator world economy. We believe the focus on reforms 
augur well for the Indian economy in the long term. We can say that the overall outlook is one 
of surrounding cautious but rooted with optimism.

�e brand “Rupa” is well positioned in the market led by a massive growth in sales figures. 

Overall revenue stood at ` 91,160.60 Lacs in 2013-14 against ` 82,998.72 Lacs in 2012-13. 

Profit after Tax stood at ` 6,607.07 Lacs in 2013-14 against ` 6,477.94 Lacs in 2012-13. On the 
backdrop of this performance we are pleased to announce a record 250% dividend. 

At Rupa we believe that this overall success has been possible due to our strong brand

�e brand “Rupa” 
is well positioned 
in the market led by 
a massive growth in 
sales figures. 
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positioning domestically. We are confident of taking this 
growth story ahead. 

�e farther we go across geographies, the more we are charged 
with power, conviction, vision, creativity and stakeholder's 
value creation.

�is optimism and acceleration did not take place on an 
overnight basis. It entailed wide ranging economic reforms, 
rising disposable income and changing consumer tastes & 
preferences to keep abreast with a dynamic world. 

Fashionable face of the innerwear & knitwear 
industry

Amongst the core apparel categories, innerwear appears to be 
a potential growth category across all segments. Currently, 

the Indian innerwear market is worth ` 56.28 billion and is 

estimated to grow at 18.61% to reach ` 27,900 crore by 2017. 
�e Indian Apparel industry has emerged from the economic 
slowdown and is regaining forward momentum. �e value of 
the domestic apparel market is expected to grow at a CAGR of 
8.7%, reflecting higher domestic demand and consumption. 
Shifting demographics, shrinking households, a greater 
number of educated consumers, the growing number of 
working women, changing fashion trends, rising disposable 
incomes, awareness levels, new retail formats, technological 
innovations, and changing consumer behaviour are the trends 
powering the growth of the domestic market. Online retailing 
is also offering a cusp of growth to the overall innerwear & 
knitwear industry. An online retail store allows a brand to 
explain the product in as much detail as required with no limit 
on copy or column space.

Moreover, the removal of 5% duty on spandex yarn in the 
current 2014 budget is a big boosting decision by the newer 
government and this will aid long-term cost benefits to the 
companies like ours in the innerwear industry.

Rupa's initiative

 Strong performance of brands like Air, Frontline, Euro, 
Macroman and Jon with aggressive branding strategies. 

During the year, we invested ` 8,867.19 Lacs towards 
Advertising and Sales promotion expenses. 

 Innovative marketing campaigns translated into 
attractive revenue growth. For every rupee invested in our 

branding activities, we generated ` 9.05 in revenue. �is 
shows that our brand returned more potential numbers, a 
reality that should stand us in good stead across the 
foreseeable future.

 Expansion of distribution network on year-to-year basis 
within India and abroad with the vision of creating a long-
term channel of distribution to sustain growth and to 
accelerate momentum of the growth and to reduce the 
inventory lead-time. �e result was clearly visible, wherein 
our exports have been rising significantly within a short 
span of time and its long-term prospects looks very 
attractive.

However, managing margins was a big challenge because of raw 
material and commodity prices. We could meet this challenge 
efficiently through judicious price increases, cost savings, long-
term vendor agreements and whenever necessary through spot 
purchase of yarn.

Looking ahead

E-commerce is regarded as the next agent of change. It is 
regarded as hypermarket of growth based on volume. �e 
growth of e-commerce would be able to give more choice to 
the consumer with a mere click. Our company foresees this as 
an excellent opportunity. With regards to same, we have 
initiated a dedicated website informing the customer about 
latest collections, offers, pricing and shopping at the go-of-a-
hand.

At Rupa, we would continue to raise the bar to meet the level 
of consumer satisfaction. As a result of increased demand, 
aggressive branding spends and wider geographic coverage, 
we expect to accelerate our topline and strengthen our 
margins. In widening our revenue spread and climbing up the 
value-chain, we expect to enhance value for our associated 
stakeholders in a more emphatic way over the foreseeable 
future. 

�anking you

As a result of increased demand, 
aggressive branding spends and 
wider geographic coverage, 
we expect to accelerate our topline 
and strengthen our margins.

Online retailing is also offering a cusp
of growth to the overall innerwear & 
knitwear industry. 

P. R. Agarwala, Chairman
G. P. Agarwala, Vice Chairman
K. B. Agarwal, Managing Director

Fashionable element of RUPA Management Insight Sustainable Business Prac�ceFashion statement at RUPA
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At Rupa & Company Limited, our true wealth is not what is 
reflected in the size of the bottomline but in the 

respect what we evoke amongst the stakeholders 
and communities associated with us. �is respect 
is derived from the broad responsibility of our 
actions, which makes our business truly 
sustainable for the benefits of all those 

associated with us. �e various initiatives to do so 
comprise the following: growing the Rupa brand; 

expand the product portfolio; improve efficiency & 
effectiveness; attract develop & retain a talented 
workforce and align the operational model with the best 
environment standards.

For each of these priorities, we have developed 

corresponding focus areas and aligned those against 

stakeholder expectations. We are also working to embed 

sustainability into our business processes through various 

initiatives. 

Our team consists of various set of peoples – from 

experienced to young and energetic ones. Our goals are 

ambitious. We ensure that all our employees complete training 

in ethics. We also communicate our vision, mission and value 

statement to our newer and existing employees, to create 

homogeneity in employee aspirations & organisational goals. 

Having a multi-locationale presence, we have taken proactive 

measures to employ, nurture and train local talent, thereby 

contributing to the regional economy.

Fashioning India 
through sustainable
business practices
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Whenever we think about the society, we always try to 

educate the younger minds to bring the economical value 

system conducive to all the stakeholders and nurturing the 

goodness of health for healthy living.

Our commitment towards social responsibilities is 

unequivocal and unwavering. As a responsible corporate 

citizen, we have always tried to contribute towards the 

society through a slew of environmental, educational and 

health initiatives. �e products are manufactured through 

eco-friendly processes, conserving the Mother Nature 

through recycling and reuse of water, usage of natural fibers 

in manufacturing process of yarns. �e Rupa group also 

manages the Heritage School, Heritage Institute of 

Technology and Sri Sri Academy at Kolkata. �e company 

has also established and is successfully running Sobhasaria 

Engineering College at Sikar in Rajasthan. �e company is 

also associated with Sankara Nethralaya (Kolkata) and 

various other hospitals.

Fashionable element of RUPA Management Insight Sustainable Business Prac�ceFashion statement at RUPA
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Fashioning India 
through unequivocal

focus on

quality

At Rupa & Company 

Limited, we recognise 

that growth does not 

come from how well we 

can grow our assets, 

but how well we can 

grow our relationships.
We work with various associated 

stakeholders on a long-term 

perspective. Our above average 

industry-performance has come 

from the extension of this value-

beyond a one-off transaction into a 

sustainable relationship across the 

long-term. 
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�is relationship is equally built on the pillars of our decades of meeting varied customer expectations with a 

unwavering focus on quality. Our objective is to be recognised as quality enablers. We are committed to deliver products 

that are benchmarked with quality and at an optimum cost. Our quality implementation efforts are all pervasive, 

beginning with a stated goal – customer satisfaction and continual quality improvements in all spheres of activity by 

involvement of every associate. 

Every quality personnel at our company are qualified and well trained. �e guidelines and protocols laid down by our 

management ensure that every batch of the products delivered by us is of right quality. Over the years these initiatives 

have made us won several laurels and accolades. 

Accreditations 

ISO 9001:2008 certifications

Accolades  

 Largest innerwear & casualwear manufacturing company in India by “Limca Book of Records”for 

11th consecutive year during 2013-14.

 Worldwide Achievers Business Leadership Award during 2013-14.

 Branch Excellence in Innerwear at Time Research Business Leadership Awards, 2013.

 Largest producer in the Knitting Sector Fabrics at Textile Conclave 2013 – Brand India.

 Power brand status for the year 2011.

 Master brand during the year 2010.

 Star brand India award during the year 2010-11.

 Global awards for Brand Excellence by World Brand Congress during the year 2010.

11

Sustainable Business Prac�ce Unequivocal Focus on Quality Marquee Brands



Fashioning India 
through our

marquee brands

At Rupa & Company Limited, we 
believe that various headwinds, the 

concept of aspirations, 
consumption patterns, price 
factor and marquee brand name 
– all plays a great role in mind 

of the consumer. 
A brand is the idea or image that 

consumers connect with. Unique design, 

sign, symbol, words are employed in 

creating an image that identifies and 

differentiate a product. Brands help 

harried consumers in crowded and 

complex marketplace, by standing for 

certain benefits and value. Celebrity 

branding is a global phenomenon and 

it assumes paramount importance in 

countries like ours. Since celebrities 

enjoys public acceptance and are 

perceived to do to do no wrong. �at's 

why celebrity endorsement is not only 

an effective tool for sales promotion 

but also riding on their visibility, in 

terms of product recall and sales surge 

can be effectively achieved.   

12



At Rupa & Company Limited, the varied consumption pattern of consumers and the 
way we had been able to associate ourselves with them, had been entirely credited 
to the excellent branding strategies by our brand management team. Over the 
time, these strategies had been able to create a level of credibility, quality, and 
satisfaction at our consumer's mind. All brands have been carefully crafted 
keeping in mind, the desires and attitudes of specific consumer and market 
segments. Our products today stand tall and elated in terms of comfort and 
pricing for every section of people. Celebrity endorsement for premium products 
have helped Rupa to gain a significant market share. Our long-time association with 
Ronit Roy, Karan Grover and Rajpal Yadav has made the product acceptability amongst 
the consumers. We have also been co-sponsoring Rajasthan Royals at Indian Premier 
League (IPL) to enhace our brand visibility. 

E-commerce has slowly and steadily started moving ahead in a right format and is now a most preferred 
mode to reach to consumer directly in B2C format. At Rupa & Company Limited, not only have we started 
selling our products through various web portals, but have also been able to gain a significant 
amount of revenue through it by offering consumers a full range of products at the move of a click. 
We have also started promoting our products through various social networking websites like 
Facebook and Twitter.

Our dream-desire is to reach every hook and corner of the country through our distribution 
network of 1,18,000 retail outlets and make our products a preferred a “fashion merchandise” for 
every section of society.  

10
Successful brands and more

than 100 registered trademarks

3
New brands added to

the products kitty

4,000
SKU’s under the umbrella

brand of RUPA

690
Locations where products of

the company are sold

1,000
Dealers under various brands

and sub-brands of RUPA

Frontline & JON
Contributing to major sales of

the company

1,629 lac pcs.
Products sold 

during the year 2013-14

10
Country Footprint
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Fashioning India since 1968

Dear Members,
Your Directors have great pleasure in presenƟng their Twenty Ninth (29th) Annual Report together with the Audited 
Statement of Accounts of the Company and Auditors’ Report for the year ended March 31, 2014 thereon.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The highlights of the financial results for the year 2013-14 are as follows :

PARTICULARS Year Ended
31.03.2014

Year Ended
31.03.2013

Revenue from OperaƟons & Other Income 9,011,279,753 8,173,980,729

Total Expenditure 7,697,015,883 6,983,800,170

Profit before Finance cost, DepreciaƟon & Tax 1,314,263,870 1,190,180,559

Less : Finance cost 245,181,361 208,860,765

Profit aŌer Finance cost but before DepreciaƟon and TaxaƟon 1,069,082,509 981,319,794

Less : DepreciaƟon 111,750,233 66,293,510

Profit before extraordinary items & Tax 957,332,276 915,026,284

Less : Provision for Tax 324,200,000 277,000,000

Provision for Deferred Tax 12,571,030 20,449,038

Provision/(Write back) relaƟng to earlier years - -

Profit aŌer Tax 620,561,246 617,577,246

Add : Surplus brought forward 1,339,052,647 937,554,919

Surplus Available 1,959,613,893 1,555,132,165

AppropriaƟon :

Transfer to General Reserve 1,00,000,000 30,000,000

Proposed Dividend 198,811,400 159,049,120

Tax on Proposed Dividend 33,787,997 27,030,398

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 1,627,014,496 1,339,052,647

OPERATIONS

The Company has achieved a growth of 10.24 % in Sales and Income from OperaƟons during the year under review. The 
Revenue from OperaƟons including other income during the year under review is ` 9,011,279,753 as against in the previous 
year ` 8,173,980,729. Your Company has also achieved a growth of 10.43 % in Profit before Finance cost, DepreciaƟon and 
Tax during the period under review. The Profit before Finance cost, DepreciaƟon and Tax during the year under review is 
` 1,314,263,870 as compared to in the previous year ` 1,190,180,559. The Profit aŌer Tax for the year under review is 
` 620,561,246 as against in the previous year ` 617,577,246.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

At Rupa, business is more than just generaƟng profits; it is also about creaƟng value to all stakeholders. Therefore, inclusion 
of the community in business growth is not an investment, but all about generaƟng economic value. The Company conƟnues 
to support the acƟviƟes in the areas of EducaƟon (through its associaƟon with Heritage InsƟtute of Technology Kolkata, 
Heritage School Kolkata, Sri Sri Academy Kolkata and Sobhasaria Engineering College in Rajasthan), Health Programs through 
our associaƟon with Sankara Nethralaya, Kolkata.

Directors' Report
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Corporate GovernanceManagement Discussion and AnalysisDirectors' Report

SUBSIDIARY

Your Company has Wholly Owned Subsidiaries – 

M/s Euro Fashion Inners InternaƟonal Private Ltd. which is engaged in selling hosiery products under the brand name 
“EURO”, which are premium products designed for the fashion conscious consumers.

M/s Imoogi Fashions Private Limited, which is engaged in manufacturing, processing and selling hosiery and outer fashion 
wear products, especially for children between the ages of 0-12 years under the brand name “Imoogi”. 

In accordance with the general circular vide No. 2/2011 dated 8th February, 2011 issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs (MCA), Government of India, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and other documents of the subsidiary 
companies are not being aƩached with the Balance Sheet of the Company. However the financial informaƟon of the 
subsidiary companies is disclosed in the Annual Report in compliance with secƟon 212 of the Companies Act, 1956 and the 
said circular. The Company will make available the Annual Accounts of the subsidiary companies and the related detailed 
informaƟon to any member of the Company who may be interested in obtaining the same. The annual accounts of the 
subsidiary companies will also be kept open for inspecƟon at the Registered Office of the Company and that of the respecƟve 
subsidiary companies. The Consolidated Financial Statements presented by the Company include the financial results of its 
subsidiary companies. 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with AccounƟng Standard 21 reads with General Circular No. 2/2011 dated 8th February, 2011 issued by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), Government of India and Clause 32 of the LisƟng Agreement with Stock Exchange(s), 
the Audited Financial Statements, duly audited by the Statutory Auditors of the Company M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, 
Chartered Accountants, together with the Auditors’ Report thereon is Annexed with these accounts and forms part of the 
Annual Accounts. The Financial Statements of each of the Subsidiary (ies) has been duly approved by the respecƟve Board 
of Directors of the Subsidiary (ies).

DIVIDEND

Considering the financial performance of your Company during the Financial Year 2013-2014 and with a view to meet 
the expectaƟon of shareholders and retaining resources to meet your Company’s business objecƟves, your Directors are 
pleased to recommend a dividend of  ` 2.50 per share (250%) for the Financial Year 2013-2014 (previous year 200%). 

TRANSFER TO RESERVE

The Company proposes to transfer ` 10 (Ten) crores to the General Reserve out of the amount available for appropriaƟon.

DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of SecƟon 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules 
made thereunder during the year ended March 2014.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

The notes to the accounts referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and, therefore, do not call for any further 
comments.

DIRECTORS

The Company Board comprised of ten directors as on March 31, 2014. The Chairman is an ExecuƟve Chairman, and half of 
the Board consisted of Independent Directors.

In order to ensure compliance with the provisions of SecƟon 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 Board of Directors at their 
meeƟng held on 30th May, 2014 has changed terms of appointment of Mr. K. B. Agarwal, Managing Director from non-
rotaƟonal director to a rotaƟonal director.

Pursuant to secƟon 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Sushil Patwari and Mr. D. C. Jain, Directors reƟre at the ensuing 
Annual General MeeƟng and being eligible offered themselves for re-appointment. Board recommends for their re-
appointments.

Directors' Report
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Fashioning India since 1968

Your Company has received declaraƟons from the Independent Directors that Mr. Vinod Kumar Kothari , Mr. Dipak Kumar 
Banerjee, Mr. Raj Narayan Bhardwaj and Mr. Satya Brata Ganguly confirming that they meet the criteria of independence 
as prescribed both under sub-secƟon (6) of SecƟon 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and under Clause 49 of the LisƟng 
Agreement with the Stock Exchanges.

Accordingly, your Board recommends that Mr. Vinod Kumar Kothari, Mr. Dipak Kumar Banerjee, Mr. Raj Narain Bhardwaj 
and Mr. Satya Brata Ganguly exisƟng independent directors, who were liable to reƟre by rotaƟon, be re-appointed for a 
consecuƟve period of upto five(5) years, not liable to reƟre by rotaƟon for approval of members  at the coming AGM.

None of the directors of your Company is disqualified under the provisions of SecƟon 164(2)(a) & (b) of the Companies Act, 
2013.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your company not only adheres to the prescribed corporate governance pracƟces as per Clause 49 of the LisƟng Agreement 
with the Stock Exchanges in India (LisƟng Agreement), but is also commiƩed to sound corporate governance principles and 
pracƟces. It constantly strives to adopt emerging best pracƟces being followed in the corporate world. It is its endeavour 
to achieve higher standards and provide oversight and guidance to the management in strategy implementaƟon, risk 
management and fulfilment of stated goals and objecƟves.

Over the years, we have strengthened governance pracƟces. These pracƟces define the way business is conducted and value 
is generated. Stakeholders’ interests are taken into account, before making any business decision. 

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the LisƟng Agreements with the Stock Exchanges, the following form part of this Annual Report: 

i) Management Discussion and Analysis;

ii) Auditors’ CerƟficate regarding compliance of condiƟons of Corporate Governance.

iii) DeclaraƟon duly signed by Mr. Kunj Bihari Agarwal, Managing Director to the effect that all Board Members and Senior 
Management Personnel of the company have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct as laid down by the 
Company.

iv) CEO & CFO CerƟficaƟon.

AUDITORS

As recommended by the Audit-CommiƩee, Board of Directors recommends that M/s S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP (Firm RegistraƟon 
number 301003E), Chartered Accountants be re-appointed as Auditors of the Company for a consecuƟve term of four (4) 
years to hold office from the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General MeeƟng Ɵll holding of the Annual General MeeƟng  
of the company for 2018, subject to the raƟficaƟon by the shareholders in every annual general meeƟng of the Company. 

As required under the provisions of the SecƟon 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has obtained wriƩen 
confirmaƟon from M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Co LLP; that their appointment, if made would be in conformity with the limits 
specified in the SecƟon.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under SecƟon 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, with respect to Directors’ Responsibility 
Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:

(a) in the preparaƟon of the Annual Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2014, the applicable accounƟng standards 
read with requirements set out under Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956, have been followed and there are no 
material departures from the same;

(b) in the preparaƟon of the Annual Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2014, the applicable accounƟng standards 
have been followed and that there are no material departures, if any;  

(c) we have selected such accounƟng policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and esƟmates that 
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the State of Affairs of the Company at the end of the 
financial year 2013 – 2014, and of the profit of the Company for that period; 
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(d) We have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounƟng records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for prevenƟng and detecƟng 
fraud and other irregulariƟes;

(e) The Annual Accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

RemuneraƟon of Chairman and Managing Director is given under Corporate Governance Report. Except Chairman and 
Managing Director, none of the employees of the Company was in receipt of remuneraƟon which requires disclosures under 
SecƟon 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies (ParƟculars of Employees) Rules, 1975. 

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

As required under SecƟon 217 (1) (e) of the Companies Act, 1956 and the Rules made therein, the concerned details relaƟng 
to energy conservaƟon, technology absorpƟon, foreign exchange earnings and outgo are given in Annexure – I aƩached 
hereto, which forms part of this Directors’ Report. 

PARTICULARS REQUIRED AS PER LISTING AGREEMENT WITH STOCK EXCHANGE

A statement containing necessary informaƟon as required under the LisƟng Agreements with the Stock Exchanges is 
annexed hereto as Annexure ‘II’.
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Your Directors express their deep and sincere appreciaƟon for the conƟnued cooperaƟon and support extended to the 
Company by the Government AuthoriƟes, Company’s Bankers, Financial InsƟtuƟons, Vendors, Customers and Shareholders 
during the year under review. Your Directors also wish to place on record their appreciaƟon of the wholehearted and 
conƟnued support extended by the employees, which had always been a source of strength for the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place : Kolkata  Prahlad Rai Agarwala
Dated : May 30, 2014 Chairman
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ANNEXURE – I

InformaƟon as required under SecƟon 217(1)(e) read with Companies (Disclosure of ParƟculars in respect of Board of 
Directors) Rules, 1988.

FORM A
(Form for Disclosure of parƟculars with respect to ConservaƟon of Energy)

PARTICULARS 2013-14 2012-13

A. Power & Fuel ConsumpƟon

1. Electricity :

a. Purchased :

- Units (kwh) 6,712,895 7,244.800

- Total Amount - Rs. 55,450,016 57,086,445

- Rate/Unit - Rs. 8.26 7.88

b. Own GeneraƟon

- Through Diesel Generator

- Units (kwh) 309750 558,469

- Units per litre of Diesel oil - Rs. 6.56 6.56

- Cost / Unit - Rs. 8.39 7.56

2. Coal – NIL

3. Furnance Oil – NIL

4. Others

- Rice Husk 9,483 11,399

- QuanƟty (MT) 37,366,074 35,652,273

- Total Cost - Rs. 3,940 3,122.67

- Rate/Unit - Rs./ MT

B. ConsumpƟon Per Unit of ProducƟon

- Dyeing & Bleaching ProducƟon (in Kg.) 4581138 5128.657

- Electricity (kwh) 1.53 1.52

- Coal – NIL

- Furnance Oil – NIL

- Rice Husk (MT) .002 0.002
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ANNEXURE – I

InformaƟon as required under SecƟon 217(1)(e) read with Companies (Disclosure of ParƟculars in respect of Board of 
Directors) Rules, 1988.

Energy ConservaƟon and Technology AbsorpƟon 

Research and Development is being carried out by the Company in the areas of product design & markeƟng. Due to 
conƟnuous efforts and development, products of your Company enjoy premium posiƟon in the market. Other provisions 
of SecƟon 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act,1956 with regards to conservaƟon of energy & technology absorpƟon are not 
applicable to your Company.

Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo (in `)

Foreign Exchange Earning 188,663,248

Foreign Exchange Outgo   19,157,101

ANNEXURE – II

The SecuriƟes of the Company are listed in the Stock Exchanges as stated below and the annual lisƟng fees have been paid 
to each of the Exchange:

NaƟonal Stock Exchange of India Ltd. Bombay Stock Exchange Limited

Exchange Plaza, Plot no. C/1, G Block, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,

Bandra-Kurla Complex Dalal Street,

Bandra (E) Mumbai- 400 001

Mumbai - 400 051 Scrip Code : 533552

NSE Symbol : RUPA

CalcuƩa Stock Exchange AssociaƟon Limited Jaipur Stock Exchange Limited

7, Lyons Range Stock Exchange Building

Kolkata - 700 001 Jawaharlal Nehru Marg

Scrip Code : 028161 Malviya Nagar, Jaipur – 302017

Scrip Code : 811
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OVERVIEW OF INDIAN ECONOMY

The economy of India is the 8th-largest in the world by nominal GDP and the third-largest by purchasing power parity (PPP). 
India is one of the fastest Developing Economic Superpower with potenƟal to become the world's 3rd largest economy by 
2020.

The GDP growth in Indian Economy during 2013-14 is esƟmated at 4.9 per cent as compared to the growth rate of 4.5 per 
cent in 2012-13, according to advanced esƟmates released by the Central StaƟsƟcs Office (CSO).

The economic backdrop conƟnued to be an important factor impacƟng the performance of Companies across sectors 
including kniƩed fabrics and woven texƟle.

Indian texƟles industry is a well-established with showing strong features and a bright future. In fact, the country is the 
second biggest texƟles manufacturer worldwide, right aŌer China. Similar force is demonstrated in the coƩon producƟon 
and consumpƟon trend where India ranks just aŌer China and USA. Employing around 35 million people, texƟles industry 
stands as a major foreign currency revenue generator and further proves it in its 14% share of industrial producƟon and the 
16% of export revenues it generated.

HIGHER COMPETITION WITH NEIGHBOURING COUNTRY

China reacted to quota removals by invading the US market with its texƟles producƟon. The US had no other choice than to 
re-introduce trade barriers to calm down the situaƟon encouraging traders to diversify purchasing opƟons and thus giving 
India an unexpected push on the global market.

The situaƟon is not completely in the pocket for India, however, it should remain on its guards as its neighbors start to 
embark on similar global adventure with an enthusiasm and moƟvaƟon packed aƫtude. Pakistan and Bangladesh are 
growing at fast pace, shortening the gap with India in an impressive manner. 

DEMOGRAPHIC DIVIDEND AND AUGMENTED DOMESTIC CONSUMPTION

India’s populaƟon of over 1.2 billion is the second largest populaƟon in the world aŌer China and conƟnues to grow at over 
1.3% per annum adding a number each year equivalent to the total populaƟon of some of the developed countries. In both 
China and India, the populaƟon has grown significantly over the past decade. 

But India’s populaƟon growth (16%) vs. China’s (5%) makes it likely that India will replace China as the world’s most populous 
country in the next 15 years. India is on the brink of a demographic revoluƟon with the proporƟon of the working age 
populaƟon between 15-59 years likely to increase from approximately 58% in 2001 to more than 64% in 2021, adding 
approximately 63.5 million new entrants to the working age group by 2016, bulk of whom will be in the relaƟvely younger 
age group of 20-35 years.

Of this, India’s urban populaƟon is esƟmated to be in region of 300 million people. The pace of urbanizaƟon in India is 
expected to increase significantly going forward, with an esƟmated compound annual growth rate of 2.1%, double that of 
China’s in the period upto 2050. Urban populaƟon represents the highest potenƟal from an organized retail perspecƟve and 
is concentrated largely in the top 180 ciƟes, with the remaining populaƟon in about 5,000 urban centers. Urban consumpƟon 
has been repeatedly cited as the primary growth driver across sectors, and in many respects the following underlying trends 
seem to confirm this hypothesis:

1.  A more evolved consumpƟon basket vis-à-vis the non-urban audience, with higher proporƟon of spends towards 
housing, travel, apparel and medical needs.

2. Higher and growing proporƟon of people in middle and upper income classes.

3.  Superior and improving performance of the urban populaƟon in terms of ‘quality of life’ measures including infant 
mortality, birth rate and death rate.

TRADE PATTERN ANALYSIS

In dollar terms the total value of texƟle products exported from India touched USD 33 billion in FY'13, a decline of 3 per cent 
compared to previous fiscal.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Lower demand from key markets of the US and EU, which were reeling under recessionary condiƟon was the major reason 
for the dip in exports during Financial Year 13-14.

However, growth in texƟle exports have picked up since April this year compared to same period last fiscal year. During 
April-September 2013, texƟle exports from India reached USD 16 billion, which is 8 per cent higher than the exports during 
the same period last year.

To reduce the dependence on these markets the government has incorporated several measures in the Focus Market 
Scheme. As per the new measures, texƟle exporters would be able to avail duty credit scrip on export to 26 addiƟonal 
countries apart from exisƟng desƟnaƟons.

However, the report further said with domesƟc economic growth expected to remain subdued during first half of 2014, 
improvement in domesƟc consumpƟon of texƟle products is sƟll some distance away. For the most part of 2013 the texƟle 
sector was besieged by twin impacts of slowing domesƟc consumpƟon and slowdown in export demand. 

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The same has discussed in the Directors Report.

INNERWEAR MARKET OUTLOOK

Indian innerwear market is a fragmented market with top 10 players contribuƟng majority of the total Indian innerwear 
industry. The market has experienced a good growth. Over the coming years, the sales of the innerwear are projected to 
rise at a CAGR of 18.61% to INR 27,900 crores by 2017 with an increase in number of shopping malls, MBO and other retail 
outlets which offers a beƩer buying space to the consumers.

The Indian innerwear market has been unleashed like never before, it has undergone a transformaƟonal phase over the 
past few years, there has been much innovaƟon in the making of innerwear and technology has also influenced this. The 
market is growing at 24%.

The size of the Indian innerwear market is ` 56.28bn and can be segmented as follows:

a) ECONOMY (` 35.06bn growing at 17%)

b) MIDDLE (` 12bn growing at 22%)

c) PREMIUM (` 8.32bn growing at 32%)

d) SUPER PREMIUM (` 900mn growing at 56%)

WOMEN INNERWEAR 

According to a research report by CARE, in volume terms; the women innerwear segment holds a 52% share of the total 
innerwear market in India. In value terms, women innerwear segment enjoys 66% share of the total innerwear market, 
thereby enjoying a higher Average Selling Price (ASP) compared to the men’s innerwear market. Overall, the lingerie 
industry in India is expected to grow at a CAGR of 18.3% over the period 2009-2014. It is currently esƟmated at INR79bn 
and is expected to be worth INR183bn in 2014-15.

Indian women have become choosy and give importance to innerwear, as discernible from the increased spend on it. This 
changed aƫtude is also because of changing dress codes and the transformaƟons in social mores. 

MEN INNERWEAR

The men’s innerwear market, in India, is increasing its base size at a promising rate. With the middle and premium men’s 
innerwear segment market size around ` 2500 crores and the growth rate of around 35-37 per cent, the brands, naƟonal 
and internaƟonal, are poised to make their presence strong and inevitable.

Growing number of young working segment, changing fashion trends, the increased awareness about beƩer fits, quality, 
brands, colours, styling, increasing per capita disposable income, rising level of informaƟon and media exposure, and entry 
of large number of foreign brands have given the industry a new dimension.
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INNERWEAR MARKET (USD Billion)

 

(Source - Technopack)

APPAREL INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The Indian apparel industry is esƟmated to be worth ` 3,270 billion in 2011-12 and is expected to grow at a compounded 
annual growth rate of 8.7 per cent Ɵll 2016. The growth would primarily be driven by the surge in demand for readymade 
apparels in semi urban areas, rising income levels and youth populaƟon and increasing preference for branded apparel.

The Indian apparel market has been witnessed a shiŌ towards the organized segment. The share of organized segment in 
overall market has increased from 13% in 2005 to 16% in 2010 and the same is expected to grow up to 40% in 2020 (E). The 
organized apparel market is growing at a CAGR of 21.3% during 2010 to 2020(E).

MARKET STRUCTURE

Men’s wear :

Men’s wear market in India fastest growing apparel segment. The enƟre 
apparel industry (2011-12 esƟmates), including domesƟc and exports, 
is pegged at ` 3,270 billion and is expected to grow by 11% to ` 10,320 
billion by 2020. Currently menswear is the major segment of the market 
(` 720 billion) and is growing at a compounded annual growth rate (CAGR) 
of 8%. 

Women’s wear :

Women’s formal wear and ethnic wear markets are sƟll ruled by unorganized 
players. With more women expected to enter corporate world, both these 
segments are good opportuniƟes because of the market size. Historically, 
the men’s apparel market in India has been significantly larger than the 
women’s apparel market. With only 20 percent of India’s urban women 
in the workforce, women’s wardrobes have tradiƟonally been limited to 
home wear and items for special occasions. Now, women are more willing 
to dress differently when they venture beyond the home—to shop, for 
example, or visit a school or office. The women wear market is growing at 
CAGR of 9%.
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Kids wear :

Kids wear is a major category 
with few established 
players. It sƟll holds a large 
opportunity which is clearly 
untapped. The Indian 
kids wear retail market is 
expected to touch ` 580 
billion by 2014. At present, 
the size of kids wear market 
in India is esƟmated at 
about ` 380 billion. 

BRAND BASKETS

Your Company is well posiƟoned to tap this opportuniƟes with its basket of brands ranging from economy to super premium 
comprising of Rupa, Frontline, Jon, Air, Macroman, Macroman M’Series, Euro, Bumchums, Thermocot, Femmora and 
Imoogi. The total SKU (stock keeping units) stands to 6000 across different brand verƟcals.

The presence of your Company both in apparel and innerwear segment also helps to harmonize its growth comprising of 
contribuƟon both from Urban and Rural market. 

The response of Femmora, Imoogi and Euro are encouraging and the Company is rapidly gaining its market share in this 
segment.  The Company is already market leader in the innerwear segment and slew of products launched in the premium 
and super premium segment also helped to move up in value chain.  The Company has unparallel reach and distribuƟon 
network.

Your Company has also exported its products to Asia and Africa and in the process to add more region in this list.

STRENGTHS 

Your Company’s cost efficient manufacturing model lead to higher returns. The focused approach on growth and margin 
improvement to create further value for the shareholders of the Company. Your Company’s premium products and value 
addiƟon has helped in consistent growth and improving EBIDTA and PAT margin.  In house created and owned brands 
with more than 100 registered trademarks across segment with no royalty payments strengthen the gross margin of the 
Company. Your Company is the first innerwear manufacturer to become a licensee of SUPIMA (premier American Prima 
CoƩon growers) in India. 

Focus on design and product development:

 ConƟnuous investments in product design and innovaƟon.

 Control on enƟre procurement and handling of raw materials

 Owns logisƟcs and supply chain set up for strong control of inventory.

The Company has State of Art dyeing, bleaching and kniƫng facility across West Bengal, Tamil Nadu and Delhi.

Your Company has outsourced sƟtching and 50% of its kniƫng requirements. This lead to cost efficiency in manufacturing 
process.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Indian consumer spend on innerwear products is significantly lower than other Asian peers. This trend is visible across both 
men’s and women’s segments with gaps of over 90% against countries like Thailand and China. This suggests that there is 
significant room for growth driven by rising per capita spending on such products.

ONLINE APPAREL RETAIL

Online retail is the next growing phenomenon in the Indian retail growth story. Changing lifestyles, increasing Ɵme constraint 
and the convenience to buy things online has paved the way for Indian consumers to have a consumer friendly & hassle – 
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free online shopping experience. 

The current market for non – store retailing in India is esƟmated at USD 3.2 billion and is growing at a rate of over 23%. To 
tap this growth your Company has already Ɵed up with Flipkart.com, Myntra.com, Snapdeal.com, Jabong.com, Amazon.com 
and Firstcry.com.

THREATS

The Indian inner wear and apparel industry depend on the spending habit of consumer and any percentage of increase in 
inflaƟon will decrease the spending desire of the consumers. The adequate rainfall and prudent monetary policy are the 
keys to the growth of these industries. 

However, the long-term prospects are bright with controllable inflaƟon moderate forecasted GDP growth.

RISK AND CONCERN

CoƩon yarn and fabric account for 70% of the total raw material costs. An inability of your Company to pass on the impact 
of the increase in raw material prices will have an adverse impact on the Company’s profitability. Also too many price hikes 
will also take a tool on the volume growth of your company.

The texƟle industry as a whole is highly labour intensive industry and lack of availability of skilled labour may hinder its 
expansion plan. 

The improving Indian demographics have given credence to the Indian consumpƟon story. Any blip in economic growth 
for an elongated period will impact the discreƟonary spends thereby negaƟvely impacƟng the earning potenƟal of your 
Company.

Changing customers’ preference leading to rapid shiŌ from one brand to other. On the back of these factors, establishing a 
permanent connect and gaining brand loyalty becomes difficult for Companies. This leads losing business by your Company 
to its compeƟtors. 

The segment where your company belongs to is a very capital intensive and any changes in the interest rates will affect the 
profitability of your Company. The proper leveraging of financial management helps your Company to miƟgate this risk.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ADEQUACY

The Company has a defined system of internal controls for financial reporƟng of transacƟons and compliance with relevant 
laws and regulaƟons commensurate with its size and nature of business. The Company also has a well-defined process for 
ongoing management reporƟng and periodic review of businesses. 

There is an acƟve internal audit funcƟon and is carried out partly by internal resources and the balance acƟvity is outsourced 
to an Internal Audit firm. As part of the effort to evaluate the effecƟveness of the internal control systems, the internal audit 
department reviews the control measures on a periodic basis and recommends improvements, wherever appropriate. 

The internal audit department is manned by qualified and experienced personnel and reports directly to the Audit CommiƩee 
of the Board. The Audit CommiƩee regularly reviews the audit findings as well as the adequacy and effecƟveness of the 
internal control measures. Based on their recommendaƟons, the Company has implemented a number of control measures 
both in operaƟonal and accounƟng related areas, apart from security related measures.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Human Resources (HR) funcƟon is instrumental in creaƟng and developing human capital in alignment with the 
Company’s vision. Talent management with parƟcular focus on grooming, learning and development and employee 
engagement has been the key focus areas in the Company’s objecƟve. The human resources strategy enabled the Company 
to aƩract, integrate, develop and retain the best talent required for driving business growth. 

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH AND SAFETY (EHS)

The Company is conscious of its strong corporate reputaƟon and the posiƟve role it can play by focusing on EHS. The 
Company recognizes the importance of EHS issues in its operaƟons and conƟnuously measures the risk pertaining to EHS.

The Company values the safety of its employees and constantly raises the bar in ensuring a safe work place.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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SEGMENTͳWISE PERFORMANCE 

The Company broadly has three (3) primary segments viz., Sales, Services and Power GeneraƟon and two (2) geographical 
segments- DomesƟc and Exports. The revenue generated in each segments have been narrated in the Schedules to the 
Accounts.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Your Company has aƩained a significant growth across all its brand verƟcals and to overcome the various economical 
challenges, the Company Ɵme to Ɵme revisits its markeƟng strategy. Your Company always responsive towards the changing 
fashion needs by introducing newer line of products across all segments.   

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objecƟves, projecƟons, esƟmates and 
expectaƟons may be ‘forward-looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable securiƟes laws and regulaƟons. Actual 
results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the 
Company’s operaƟons include economic condiƟons affecƟng demand/supply and price condiƟons in the markets in which 
the Company operates, changes in the Government regulaƟons, tax laws and other statutes and other incidental factors.
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1.  COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

   Corporate Governance is a system by which corporate enƟƟes are directed and controlled encompassing the enƟre 
mechanics of the funcƟoning of a Company. Good corporate governance pracƟces are a sine qua non for sustainable 
business that aims at generaƟng long term value to all its shareholders and other stakeholders.

  Your Company believes that Strong governance standards focusing on fairness, transparency, accountability and 
responsibility are vital not only for the healthy and vibrant corporate sector growth, as well as inclusive growth of the 
economy. The Company has always focused on good corporate governance, which is a key driver of sustainable corporate 
growth and long term value creaƟon for its shareholders. The Company has proacƟve measures to periodically review 
and revise the Corporate Governance pracƟces by subjecƟng business processes to audits and checks that measure up 
to the required standards. The Company believes that Corporate Governance is not just limited to creaƟng checks and 
balances; it is more about creaƟng organizaƟon excellence leading to increasing employee and customer saƟsfacƟon 
and shareholder value. The Company always endeavours to leverage its human and capital resources to translate 
opportuniƟes into reality, create awareness of corporate vision and spark dynamism and entrepreneurship at all levels.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

 a) ComposiƟon of The Board 

   The Board provides leadership, strategic guidance and independent view to the company’s management while 
discharging it responsibiliƟes. The Board consists of disƟnguished persons having requisite knowledge and 
experƟse in business & industry, corporate finance, taxaƟon, legal maƩers, risk management and markeƟng. The 
composiƟon of the Board of Directors with reference to number of ExecuƟve and Non-ExecuƟve Directors, meets 
with the requirements of Clause 49 (1) (A) of the LisƟng Agreement. The number of Independent Directors is one-
half of the total number of Directors.

   The Company Board comprised of ten directors as on March 31, 2014. The Chairman is an ExecuƟve Director, and 
half of the Board comprised of Independent Directors. The ComposiƟon of the Board of Directors as on March 
31, 2014 and the number of other Directorships and Board CommiƩee Memberships/Chairmanships including 
changes since the last report were as follows:

 Name of Director Category Number of Other Directorships and CommiƩee 
PosiƟon held

Other
Directorships

CommiƩee
Memberships

CommiƩee

Mr. Prahlad Rai Agarwala 
(Chairman)

ExecuƟve & Non Independent 1 – –

Mr. Ghanshyam Prasad 
Agarwala (Vice-Chairman)

ExecuƟve & Non Independent 1 – –

Mr. Kunj Bihari Agarwala 
(Managing Director)

ExecuƟve & Non Independent 1 – –

Mr. Mukesh Agarwal ExecuƟve & Non Independent 4 – –

Mr. Ramesh Agarwal ExecuƟve & Non Independent 11 2 –

Mr. Dipak Kumar Banerjee Non-ExecuƟve & Independent 9 9 5

Mr. Raj Narain Bhardwaj Non-ExecuƟve & Independent 11 10 2

Mr. Dharam Chand Jain Non-ExecuƟve & Independent – – –

Mr. Sushil Patwari Non-ExecuƟve & Independent 5 2 –

Mr. Vinod Kumar Kothari Non-ExecuƟve & Independent 2 1 –

* Directorships in Private Companies have not been included.

+ Only covers membership / Chairmanship of Audit CommiƩee and Shareholder / Investor Grievance CommiƩee.
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None of the Directors was a member of more than ten CommiƩees or Director in more than fiŌeen Companies or 
Chairman of more than five CommiƩees across all Companies.

 b) Board Procedure

    The Board meets at least once a quarter to review the quarterly business and the financial performance of the 
company. The Board MeeƟngs are generally scheduled well in advance and the noƟce of each Board MeeƟng is 
given in wriƟng to each Director. The Board papers, comprising the agenda backed by comprehensive background 
informaƟon are circulated to the Directors in advance and, in excepƟonal cases, the same is tabled at the Board 
MeeƟng. The Board is also free to recommend the inclusion of any maƩer for discussion in consultaƟon with the 
Chairman. 

   The informaƟon as specified in Annexure I A to the exisƟng Clause 49 of the LisƟng Agreement entered into with 
the Stock Exchanges is regularly made available to the Board wherever applicable.

   To enable the Board to discharge its responsibiliƟes effecƟvely, the members of the Board are briefed at every 
Board MeeƟng, on the overall performance of the Company.

   The Board’s funcƟon is not limited to maƩers requiring statutorily the Board’s approval. The Board is involved in 
all the important decisions relaƟng to the company and policy maƩers, strategic business plans, new avenues of 
investment and expansion, compliance with statutory/regulatory requirements, major accounƟng provisions and 
write-offs are considered by the Board.

   The Minutes of the Board MeeƟngs are circulated to all Directors and confirmed at subsequent MeeƟng.

   The Minutes of Audit CommiƩee and other CommiƩees of the Board are regularly placed before the Board. The 
Minutes of the Board MeeƟngs of the subsidiary companies are placed in the Board MeeƟngs of the Company.

 c) AƩendance of each director at the Board MeeƟngs and the last Annual General MeeƟng

   During the financial year ended March 31, 2014, four Board MeeƟngs were held on May 30, 2013, July 27, 2013, 
November 14, 2013 and February 12, 2014 respecƟvely. The aƩendance of each Director at the Board MeeƟngs 
and also at the last Annual General MeeƟng (AGM) is given below:

Name of Director Category AƩendance ParƟculars

Board  
MeeƟngs

Last AGM

Mr. Prahlad Rai Agarwala (Chairman) ExecuƟve & Non Independent 4 NO

Mr. Ghanshyam Prasad Agarwala 
(Vice-Chairman)

ExecuƟve & Non Independent 1 NO

Mr. Kunj Bihari Agarwala
(Managing Director)

ExecuƟve & Non Independent 3 YES

Mr. Mukesh Agarwal ExecuƟve & Non Independent 4 NO

Mr. Ramesh Agarwal ExecuƟve & Non Independent 4 NO

Mr. Raj Narain Bhardwaj Non-ExecuƟve & Independent 2 NO

Mr. Dharam Chand Jain      Non-ExecuƟve & Independent 3 NO

Mr. Sushil Patwari Non-ExecuƟve & Independent 4 NO

Mr. Vinod Kumar Kothari Non-ExecuƟve & Independent 4 YES

Mr. Dipak Kumar Banerjee Non-ExecuƟve & Independent 2 YES

 d) Directors Seeking Appointment / Reappointment at Ensuing AGM

   Mr. Sushil Patwari and Mr. Dharam Chand Jain, Directors reƟre by rotaƟon at the ensuing Annual General MeeƟng 
and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointments.
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Name of Director Mr. Sushil Patwari Mr. Dharam Chand Jain

Date of Birth July 20, 1954 August 28, 1946

QualificaƟon B.Com B.Com

Date of appointment November 17, 2003 March 31, 2003

ExperƟse in specific funcƟonal areas Industrialist, Finance and Legal Industrialist.

No. of Shares held Nil Nil

Chairman/member of the commiƩee of the 
Board of Directors of the Company

Audit CommiƩee - Member
RemuneraƟon CommiƩee - Member
Shareholders/Investors Grievance 
CommiƩee - Member

Nil

List of other Public Ltd Companies in which 
directorship held

1) Reliance Processors Ltd
2) Nagreeka Exports Ltd
3) Nagreeka Capital &  
     Infrastructure Ltd
4) Nagreeka Foils Ltd
5) Jaidka Motor Company Ltd

None

Chairman / Member of the CommiƩees of 
the Board of Directors of other Companies 
in which he is a Director

Audit CommiƩee 

None

Audit CommiƩee 

None

RemuneraƟon CommiƩee RemuneraƟon CommiƩee

None None

Shareholders/Investors Grievance 
CommiƩee

Shareholders/Investors Grievance 
CommiƩee

Nagreeka Exports Ltd None

Nagreeka Capital & Infrastructure Ltd

Jaidka Motor Company Ltd

Reliance Processors Ltd

   Mr. Vinod Kumar Kothari, Mr. Dipak Kumar Banerjee, Mr. Raj Narain Bhardwaj and Mr. Satya Brata Ganguly also 
reappointed for a period of consecuƟve terms of five (5) years up to 29th May, 2019 in compliance of Clause 49 of 
the LisƟng Agreement and SecƟon 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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Name of Director Mr. Vinod Kumar Kothari Mr. Raj Narain 
Bhardwaj

Mr. Dipak Banerjee

Date of Birth September 01, 1961 May  08, 1945 February 19, 1946

QualificaƟon B.Com (Hons), FCA, FCS B.A (Hons), M.A. 
(Economics)

B.Com(Hons), Chartered 
Accountant

Date of appointment July 26, 2004 May 28, 2012 May 30, 2013

No. of Shares held Nil Nil Nil

Chairman/member of the 
commiƩee of the Board of 
Directors of the Company

Audit CommiƩee - Chairman
RemuneraƟon CommiƩee - Member

Audit CommiƩee - 
Member

RemuneraƟon 
CommiƩee - Member

ExperƟse in specific 
funcƟonal areas

SecuriƟzaƟon & Structured Finance, Credit 
DerivaƟves, Leasing & Asset Financing. He is also 
an expert in specialiased areas of corporate law. 
He is a renowned author and was one of the 
specialist editors of Company law magnum opus, 
A Ramaiya's Guide to Company Law, 2011 ediƟon 
and wrote the highlights and reference for Lexis 
Nexis publicaƟon Ɵtled The Companies Act 2013.

SecuriƟes Market, Law, 
Finance and Economics

Strategic Planning, 
OrganisaƟon Structure,
Financial Control

List of other Public Ltd 
Companies in which 
directorship held

1) Greenply Industries Ltd. 1) Jaiprakash Power 
Ventures Ltd.

1) DIC India Ltd            

2) All Bank Finance Limited 2) Jaiprakash 
Associates Ltd.

2) Tata Metaliks Ltd 

3) Gontermann Peipers (I) Ltd. 3) Milestone Capital 
Advisors Ltd.

3) Tata Metaliks Di 
Pipes Ltd

4) Microsec 
Financial Services 
Ltd.

4) Tata Sponge Iron 
Ltd

5) Reliance Infratel 
Ltd.

5) Tinplate Co. of 
India Ltd

6) Jaypee Infratech 
Ltd.

6) Tayo Rolls Limited

7) Dhunseri 
Petrochem & Tea 
Ltd.

7) MjuncƟon 
Services Ltd

8) Amtek Auto Ltd. 8) TM InternaƟonal 
LogisƟcs Limited

9) SBI Life Insurance 
Company Ltd.        

9) InternaƟonal 
Shipping and 
LogisƟcs Ltd, 
Dubai

10) Reliance 
CommunicaƟons 
Ltd.

10) ShrisƟ Infra 
Development 
CorporaƟon Ltd. 

11) Lanco Teesta 
Hydro Power Ltd.         
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Name of Director Mr. Vinod Kumar Kothari Mr. Raj Narain 
Bhardwaj

Mr. Dipak Banerjee

Chairman / Member of 
the CommiƩees of the 
Board of Directors of 
other Companies in which 
he is a Director

Audit CommiƩee Audit CommiƩee Audit CommiƩee

Chairmanship Chairmanship

1) Jaiprakash 
Associates Ltd. 

1) DIC India Ltd.        

2) Invent Assets 
SecuriƟzaƟon 
and 
ReconstrucƟon 
(P) Ltd

2) MjuncƟon 
Services Ltd

3) Religare Invesco 
Trustee Company 
Pvt Ltd.

3) TM InternaƟonal 
LogisƟcs Limited

4) Tata Metaliks Di 
Pipes Ltd.

5) ShrisƟ Infra 
Development 
CorporaƟon Ltd

Membership Membership Membership

1) Greenply Industries Ltd. 1) Milestone Capital 
Advisors Ltd.

1) Tata Metaliks Ltd 

2) Gontermann Peipers (I) Ltd. 2) Reliance Infratel 
Ltd.

2) Tata Sponge Iron 
Ltd

3) Microsec 
Financial Services 
Ltd.

3) Tinplate Co. of 
India Ltd

4) Jaiprakash Power 
Ventures Ltd.

4) Tayo Rolls Limited

5) Lanco Teesta 
Hydro Power Ltd.

6) SBI Life Insurance 
Company Ltd.

7) Reliance 
CommunicaƟons 
Ltd.

RemuneraƟon CommiƩee RemuneraƟon 
CommiƩee

RemuneraƟon 
CommiƩee

1) Greenply Industries Ltd. 1) Reliance Infratel 
Ltd.

1) Tata Sponge Iron 
Ltd

2) Gontermann Peipers (I) Ltd. 2) Reliance 
CommunicaƟons 
Ltd.

2) TM InternaƟonal 
LogisƟcs Ltd
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Name of Director Mr. Vinod Kumar Kothari Mr. Raj Narain 
Bhardwaj

Mr. Dipak Banerjee

Shareholders/ Investors Grievance CommiƩee Shareholders/ 
Investors Grievance 
CommiƩee

Shareholders/ Investors 
Grievance CommiƩee

Nil 1) Microsec 
Financial Services 
Ltd. (Chairman)

1) ShrisƟ Infra 
Development 
CorporaƟon Ltd.

2) Reliance 
CommunicaƟons 
Ltd 
(Member)

Name of Director Mr. Satya Brata Ganguly

Date of Birth October 23, 1942
QualificaƟon Graduate of Chemical Engineering & Fellow of PlasƟc and 

Rubber InsƟtute (London), Fellow of InsƟtute of Chemical 
Engineers and also the Fellow of the InsƟtute of Chemicals

Date of appointment August 13 , 2014
No. of Shares held Nil
Chairman/member of the commiƩee of the Board of Directors of the 
Company

Nil

List of other Public Ltd Companies in which directorship held 1) Emami Ltd
2) Paharpur Cooling Towers Ltd
3) Magma Fincorp Ltd.
4) Magma ITL Finance Ltd
5) Rupa & Co Ltd
6) Su-Kam Power Systems Ltd

Chairman / Member of the CommiƩees of the Board of Directors of 
other Companies in which he is a Director

Audit CommiƩee 
Chairmanship:
1) Emami Ltd.
2) Paharpur Cooling Towers Ltd.
Membership:
1) West Bengal Industrial Development CorporaƟon.
2) Magma Fincorp Ltd.
3) Peerless Trust Management Ltd.
4) Su-Kam Power Systems Ltd.
NominaƟon CommiƩee &  RemuneraƟon CommiƩee 
Chairmanship:
1) Su-Kam Power Systems Ltd.
2) Century Plyboards (I) Ltd.
Membership:
1) Emami Ltd.
2) Paharpur Cooling Towers Ltd.
Shareholders/ Investors’ Grievance CommiƩee
Chairmanship:
1) Magma Fincorp Ltd.
Membership :
1) Emami Ltd
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Name of Director Mr. Satya Brata Ganguly

Chairman / Member of the CommiƩees of the Board of Directors of 
other Companies in which he is a Director

Management CommiƩee
Membership:
1) Magma Fincorp Ltd       
Fair PracƟce CommiƩee
Membership:
1) Magma Fincorp Ltd    
SelecƟon CommiƩee
Membership:
1) Paharpur Cooling Towers Ltd.
Corporate Governance CommiƩee
Chairmanship:
 1) Emami Ltd.

 In order to ensure compliance with the provisions of SecƟon 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 board of directors at 
their meeƟng held on 30th May, 2014 has changed, terms of appointment of Mr. K. B. Agarwal, Managing Director 
from non-rotaƟonal director to a rotaƟonal director.

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE

 Composi on of the Commi ee 

 The composiƟon of the Audit CommiƩee is as follows:

Name of Member PosiƟon Category

Mr. Vinod Kumar Kothari Chairman Non-ExecuƟve & Independent

Mr. Sushil Patwari Member Non-ExecuƟve & Independent

Mr. Raj Narain Bhardwaj Member Non-ExecuƟve & Independent

Mr. Mukesh Agarwal Member ExecuƟve & Non-Independent

Mr. Ramesh Agarwal Member ExecuƟve & Non-Independent

The composiƟon of the CommiƩee meets with the requirements of SecƟon 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
amended Clause 49 of the LisƟng agreement. Members of the Audit CommiƩee possess the requisite financial and 
accounƟng exposure/ experƟse.

  The Audit CommiƩee shall be responsible for, among other things, as may be required by the stock exchanges from 
Ɵme to Ɵme, the following:

  Terms of Reference for the Audit CommiƩee :  

 1.1.  RecommendaƟon for appointment, remuneraƟon and terms of appointment of auditors of the company;

 1.2. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors; 

 1.3. Review and monitor the auditor‘s independence and performance, and effecƟveness of audit process;

 1.4.  ExaminaƟon of the financial statement and the auditors‘ report thereon and reviewing the same with   parƟcular 
reference to:

  a.  MaƩers required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s 
report in terms of clause (c) of sub-secƟon 3 of secƟon 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

  b. Changes, if any, in accounƟng policies and pracƟces and reasons for the same;

  c. Major accounƟng entries involving esƟmates based on the exercise of judgment by management;

  d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

  e. Compliance with lisƟng and other legal requirements relaƟng to financial statements;

  f. Disclosure of any related party transacƟons;

  g. QualificaƟons in the draŌ audit report.
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 1.5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for 
approval;

 1.6.  Oversight of the company’s financial reporƟng process and the disclosure of its financial informaƟon to ensure 
that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

 1.7. Approval or any subsequent modificaƟon of transacƟons of the company with related parƟes;

 1.8. ScruƟny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

 1.9. ValuaƟon of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

 1.10. EvaluaƟon of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

 1.11. Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related maƩers;

 1.12.  Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / applicaƟon of funds raised through an issue (public 
issue, rights issue, preferenƟal issue, etc.), the statement of funds uƟlized for purposes other than those stated 
in the offer document / prospectus / noƟce and the report submiƩed by the monitoring agency monitoring the 
uƟlisaƟon of proceeds of a public or rights issue and making appropriate recommendaƟons to the Board to take 
up steps in this maƩer;

 1.13. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors;

 1.14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; 

 1.15.   Reviewing the findings of any internal invesƟgaƟons by the internal auditors into maƩers where there is 
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporƟng the 
maƩer to the Board; 

 1.16.   Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as 
post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

 1.17.   To look into the reasons for substanƟal defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders 
(in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

 1.18.  To review the funcƟoning of the Whistle Blower mechanism; 

 1.19.  Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-Ɵme Finance Director or any other person heading the finance 
funcƟon or discharging that funcƟon) aŌer assessing the qualificaƟons, experience and background, etc. of the 
candidate; 

 1.20. Reviewing of following informaƟon :

  i. Management discussion and analysis of financial condiƟon and results of operaƟons; 

  ii.  Statement of significant related party transacƟons (as defined by the Audit CommiƩee), submiƩed by   
management; 

  iii. Management leƩers / leƩers of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 

  iv. Internal audit reports relaƟng to internal control weaknesses.

 MeeƟng AƩendance :

  During the financial year ended March 31, 2014, four Audit CommiƩee MeeƟngs were held on May 30, 2013, July 27, 
2013, November 14, 2013 and February 12, 2014. The Audit CommiƩee also met prior to the finalizaƟon of accounts 
for the year ended March 31, 2014.
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  The aƩendance at the Audit CommiƩee MeeƟngs is as under :

Name of Member MeeƟngs held during the year and AƩendance

May 30, 2013 July 27, 2013 November 14, 2013 February 12, 2014

Mr. Vinod Kumar Kothari Present Present Present Present

Mr. Sushil Patwari Present Present Present Present

Mr. Raj Narain Bhardwaj Present Absent Absent Absent

Mr. Mukesh Agarwal Present Present Present Present

Mr. Ramesh Agarwal Present Present Present Present

Mr. Vinod Kumar Kothari, Chairman of the Audit CommiƩee aƩended the last Annual General MeeƟng held on 
September 28, 2013 and replied to the queries related to Accounts to the saƟsfacƟon of the shareholders.

 Internal Auditors :

  The Company has appointed a firm of Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditors to review the internal control systems 
of the Company and to report thereon. The report of the Internal Auditors is reviewed by the Audit CommiƩee.

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE :

 Terms of Reference :

 1.1.  IdenƟfying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in 
accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and carry out 
evaluaƟon of every director’s performance.

 1.2.  Formulate the criteria for determining qualificaƟons, posiƟve aƩributes and independence of a director and 
recommend to the Board a policy, relaƟng to the remuneraƟon for the directors, key managerial personnel and 
other employees and ensure that;

 1.3.  The level and composiƟon of remuneraƟon is reasonable and sufficient to aƩract, retain and moƟvate directors of 
the quality required to run the company successfully;

 1.4. RelaƟonship of remuneraƟon to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

 1.5.   RemuneraƟon to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between fixed 
and incenƟve pay reflecƟng short and long-term performance objecƟves appropriate to the working of the 
company and its goals. Provided that such policy shall be disclosed in the Board's report.

 1.6.  FormulaƟon of criteria for evaluaƟon of Independent Directors and the Board; 

 1.7.  Devising a policy on Board diversity.

Name of Member Category

Mr. Sushil Patwari Non-ExecuƟve &  Independent

Mr. Vinod Kumar Kothari Non-ExecuƟve &   Independent

Mr. Dipak Kumar Banerjee Non-ExecuƟve &   Independent

 ComposiƟon of the CommiƩee

  The composiƟon of the CommiƩee meets the provision of SecƟon 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and amended 
Clause 49 of the LisƟng Agreement.

 AƩendance of Directors in MeeƟngs

 No meeƟng of the commiƩee was held during the year.
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 RemuneraƟon Policy

 A. RemuneraƟon to Non-ExecuƟve Directors

   The Non-ExecuƟve Directors are paid remuneraƟon by way of siƫng fees @ 20,000 for each meeƟng of the Board 
and 10,000 for any CommiƩee thereof aƩended by them.

 B. RemuneraƟon to Whole-Ɵme Directors

   The appointment of Whole-Ɵme Directors are governed by resoluƟons passed by the Board of Directors and 
Shareholders of the Company, which covers the terms of such appointment, payment of remuneraƟon to Whole 
Ɵme Directors, which are governed by the respecƟve Agreements executed between them and the Company. 
RemuneraƟon paid to Whole-Ɵme Directors are recommended by the RemuneraƟon CommiƩee, approved by 
the Board and is within the limits set by the shareholders at General MeeƟngs. The remuneraƟon package of 
Whole-Ɵme Directors comprises of salary, perquisites and allowances, commission and contribuƟons to Provident 
and other Funds as approved by the shareholders at General MeeƟngs. Annual increments are decided by the 
RemuneraƟon CommiƩee and recommended to the Board for approval thereof. Presently, the Company does not 
have any stock opƟon plan or performance linked incenƟves for its Directors.

  Details of RemuneraƟon of Directors for the financial year ended March 31, 2014 are given below :

  Non-ExecuƟve Directors

Name of Directors Siƫng Fees  (`) Number of shares held

Mr. Raj Narain Bhardwaj 40000 Nil

Mr. Dharam Chand Jain 60000 40000

Mr. Sushil Patwari 120000 Nil

Mr. Vinod Kumar Kothari 120000 Nil

Mr. Dipak Kumar Banerjee 40,000

Total 400000 40000

Whole-Time Directors

Name of Directors Salary & 
Allowances (`)

Commission 
(`)

Perquisites (`) Total (`)

Mr. Prahlad Rai Agarwala (Chairman) 3,600,000 1,200,000 434,749 5,234,749

Mr. Ghanshyam Prasad Agarwala
(Vice-Chairman)

3,000,000 – 494,152 3,494,152

Mr. Kunj Bihari Agarwala
(Managing Director)

3,000,000 – 526,992 3,526,992

Mr. Ramesh Agarwal 1,800,000 – – –

Mr. Mukesh Agarwal 1,800,000 – – –

Total 13,200,000 1,200,000 1,021,144 12,255,893

5. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

 Terms of Reference

 Terms of Reference for the Stakeholders’ RelaƟonship CommiƩee:  

  The Stakeholders’ RelaƟonship CommiƩee shall be responsible for, among other things, as may be required by the 
stock exchanges from Ɵme to Ɵme, the following:

  To ensure proper and Ɵmely aƩendance and redressal of grievances of security holders of the Company in relaƟon to:

 1.1. Transfer of shares, 
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 1.2. Non-receipt of annual reports, 

 1.3. Non-receipt of declared dividend, 

 1.4. All such complaints directly concerning the shareholders / investors as stakeholders of the Company; and

 1.5.  FormulaƟon of procedures in line with the statutory guidelines to ensure speedy disposal of various requests 
received from shareholders from Ɵme to Ɵme;

 1.6.  To review and / or approve applicaƟons for transfer, transmission, transposiƟon and mutaƟon of share cerƟficates 
including issue of duplicate cerƟficates and new cerƟficates on split / sub-division / consolidaƟon / renewal, and 
to deal with all related maƩers.

 1.7.  To review and approve requests of dematerializaƟon and rematerialisaƟon of securiƟes of the Company and 
such other related maƩers;

 1.8.  Appointment and fixing of remuneraƟon of RTA and Depositories and overseeing their performance;

 1.9. Review the status of the liƟgaƟon(s) filed by/against the security holders of the Company;

 1.10. Review the status of claims received for unclaimed shares;

 1.11. Allotment of rights / bonus shares / shares against Employee Stock OpƟons;

 1.12. Recommending measures for overall improvement in the quality of investor services;

 1.13.  Monitoring implementaƟon and compliance with the Company's Code of Conduct for ProhibiƟon  of Insider 
Trading in pursuance of SEBI (ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading) RegulaƟons, 1992;

 1.14.  Review the impact of enactments/ amendments issued by the MCA/ SEBI and other regulatory authoriƟes on 
maƩers concerning the investors in general;

 1.15.  Such other maƩers as per the direcƟons of the Board of Directors of the Company and/ or as required under 
Clause 49 of the LisƟng Agreements relaƟng to Corporate Governance, as amended, from Ɵme to Ɵme.

 1.16. Any other issue within terms of reference.

  The Minutes of the Stakeholders' RelaƟonship CommiƩee meeƟng are noted by the Board of Directors at the Board 
MeeƟngs.

  ConƟnuous efforts are made to ensure that grievances are more expediƟously redressed to the complete saƟsfacƟon 
of the investors. Shareholders are requested to furnish their telephone numbers and e-mail addresses to facilitate 
prompt acƟon.

 ComposiƟon

 The composiƟon of the CommiƩee of Directors is as under:

Name of Member Category

Mr. Sushil Patwari Non-ExecuƟve & Independent

Mr. Mukesh Agarwal ExecuƟve & Non Independent

Mr. Ramesh Agarwal ExecuƟve & Non Independent

The composiƟon of the CommiƩee meets the provision of SecƟon 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and amended 
Clause 49 of the LisƟng Agreement.

 Compliance Officer

 Ms. Priya Punjabi Agarwal, Company Secretary was the Compliance Officer Ɵll June 12, 2014.

 The Board has appointed Mr. Sudip ChaƩerjee as Company Secretary, designated as Compliance Officer from June 12, 
2014 onwards.
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 MeeƟng and AƩendance

 During the financial year ended March 31, 2014, one meeƟng held on February 12, 2014

 The aƩendance at the CommiƩee MeeƟng is as under :

Name of Member MeeƟng held during the year and AƩendance

February 12 , 2014

Mr. Sushil Patwari Present

Mr. Mukesh Agarwal Present

Details of Shareholders’ Complaints Received, Not Solved and Pending Share Transfers

  The total number of complaints received, and replied pertaining to dividend to the saƟsfacƟon of the shareholders 
during the year ended March 31, 2014 were 1 (one). There were no complaints outstanding as on March 31, 2014. The 
number of share transfers and requests for dematerializaƟon pending as on March 31, 2014 were Nil.

  Shareholders’/Investors’ complaints and other correspondence are normally aƩended to within twenty one working 
days except where constrained by disputes or legal impediments.

6. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

 ComposiƟon of the CommiƩee

Name of Member Category

Mr. P. R. Agarwal ExecuƟve & Non- Independent

Mr. K. B.  Agarwal ExecuƟve & Non- Independent

Mr. Vinod Kumar Kothari Non-ExecuƟve & Independent

  The composiƟon of the CommiƩee complies the provision of SecƟon 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and amended 
Clause 49 of the LisƟng Agreement.

 Terms of Reference

 a.     To formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR policy which shall indicate the acƟviƟes to be undertaken by the 
Company as per the Companies Act, 2013;

 b.     To review and recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the acƟviƟes to be undertaken by the 
company;

 c.    To monitor the CSR policy of the Company from Ɵme to Ɵme;

 d.     To oversee and make quarterly report to the Board about the uƟlizaƟon of the amounts earmarked for CSR 
acƟviƟes in terms of the CSR policy;

 e.      Any other maƩer as the CSR CommiƩee may deem appropriate aŌer approval of the Board of Directors or as may 
be directed by the Board of Directors from Ɵme to Ɵme.

7. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

  The Company has two subsidiary companies. Both the subsidiary companies are non-listed and non-material. The 
Minutes of the Board MeeƟngs of the subsidiary companies are placed in the Board MeeƟngs of the Company. 
Statement of important and significant transacƟons of the subsidiary companies is placed regularly in the Board 
MeeƟngs of the Company. The Audit CommiƩee of the Company regularly reviews financial statement and in parƟcular 
the investments made by the unlisted subsidiaries of the Company. 

8. CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION

  The Chairman & Managing Director of the Company gives the annual cerƟficaƟon on financial reporƟng to the Board 
as well as disclosed the required informaƟon to the Statutory Auditors and the Audit CommiƩee in terms of clause 
49 of the LisƟng Agreement.  The Chairman and Managing Director also give quarterly cerƟficaƟon on the financial 
results while placing before the Board in terms of Clause 41 of the LisƟng Agreement. The annual cerƟficaƟon given by 
Chairman and Managing Director is published in this report. 
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9. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

 (a) Details of LocaƟon and Ɵme where last three AGMs held are as follows

Year LocaƟon Date Time

2010-2011 Merchants Chamber of Commerce
Somani Conference Hall

15B Hemanta Basu Sarani, Kolkata – 700 001

28.09.2011 11.00 A.M.

2011-2012 Merchants Chamber of Commerce
Somani Conference Hall

15B Hemanta Basu Sarani, Kolkata – 700 001

29.09.2012 11.00 A.M.

2012-2013 Merchants Chamber of Commerce
Somani Conference Hall

15B Hemanta Basu Sarani, Kolkata – 700 001

28.09.2013 11.00 AM

 (b) Special ResoluƟons Passed at last three Annual General MeeƟngs (AGM) : NIL

 (c) Passing of ResoluƟons by Postal Ballot: Nil

   No such resoluƟon was passed in last year’s AGM that was required to be put through postal ballot.

10. ANNUAL CERTIFICATE FOR CODE OF CONDUCT

DECLARATION

  As required under Clause 49(I)(D) of the LisƟng Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, I hereby declare that all the 
Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have complied with the Code of Conduct of 
the Company for financial year ended 31st March 2014.

 Kolkata K. B. Agarwal
 30th May, 2014  Managing Director

11. CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

  In compliance with the SecuriƟes & Exchange Board of India (PrevenƟon of Insider Trading) RegulaƟons, 1992, the 
Company has framed a Code of Conduct for prevenƟon of Insider Trading by Company insiders. The code, inter 
alia, prohibits purchase and / or sale of shares of the company by the Directors and designated employees while in 
possession of unpublished price sensiƟve informaƟon in relaƟon to the company.

12. DISCLOSURES

 a)  Disclosure on materially significant related party transacƟons i.e. transacƟons of the Company of material 
nature, with its promoters, the Directors or the management, their subsidiaries or relaƟves, etc. that may have 
potenƟal conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

   There are no materially significant related party transacƟons made by the Company with its Promoters, Directors 
or Management, their subsidiaries or relaƟves, etc. that may have potenƟal conflict with the interests of the 
Company at large. TransacƟons with related parƟes as per requirements of AccounƟng Standard AS 18 have been 
disclosed in every meeƟng of the Board.

 b)  Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalƟes, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges 
or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any maƩer related to capital markets, during the last three years.

   The Company has complied with all requirements of the LisƟng Agreements entered into with the Stock Exchanges 
as well as the regulaƟons and guidelines of SEBI. Consequently, there were no strictures or penalƟes imposed by 
either SEBI or the Stock Exchanges or any statutory authority for non-compliance of any maƩer related to the 
capital markets during the last three years.
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 c) Non-mandatory requirements

   AdopƟon of Non-mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the lisƟng Agreement are being reviewed by the Board 
from Ɵme to Ɵme and adopted wherever necessary.

 d) ReconciliaƟon of share capital audit

   As sƟpulated by SEBI, a qualified PracƟcing Company Secretary carries out ReconciliaƟon of Share Capital Audit 
to reconcile the total admiƩed capital with NaƟonal SecuriƟes Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository 
Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital. This audit is carried out every quarter and 
the report thereon is submiƩed to the Stock Exchanges. The audit confirms that the total Listed and Paid-up 
Capital is in agreement with the aggregate of the total number of shares in dematerialized form (held with NSDL 
and CDSL) and total number of shares in physical form.

13. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

 i.  The Board of Directors of the Company approves and takes on record the quarterly, half yearly and yearly financial 
results in the Performa prescribed by Clause 41 of the LisƟng Agreement

 ii.  The approved financial results are forthwith sent to the Listed Stock Exchanges and are published in one of the 
prominent business daily and a local language newspaper. Presently the same are not sent to the shareholders 
separately.

 iii.  The Company’s financial results and official news releases are displayed on the Company’s website www.rupa.
co.in

 iv.  No formal presentaƟons were made to the insƟtuƟonal investors and analysts during the year under review.

 v.  Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of the Annual Report, which is posted to the shareholders of the 
Company.

14. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

  Detailed informaƟon in this regard is provided in the secƟon ‘Shareholder InformaƟon’ which forms part of this Annual 
Report.

15. COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

 Shareholder InformaƟon :

Registered Office : Metro Tower, 8th Floor, 1, Ho Chi Minh Sarani, Kolkata – 700 071

Telephone no : +91 33 30573100.

Annual General MeeƟng : Date and Time :

September 11, 2014 at 11.00 A.M.

Venue : 

Gyan Manch

11, Pretoria Street, Kolkata - 700071

Financial Calendar :

Financial reporƟng for the quarter ending June 30, 2014 On or before 14.08.2014

Financial reporƟng for the half year ending September 30, 2014 On or before 14.11.2014

Financial reporƟng for the quarter ending December 31, 2014 On or before 14.02.2015

Financial reporƟng for the year ending March 31, 2015 On or before 30.05.2015

Date of Book Closure :    September 4, 2014 to September 11, 2014 (both days inclusive)
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 Dividend :

  The dividend as recommended by the Board of Directors, if declared at the ensuing Annual General MeeƟng, will be 
paid at par those members, whose names appear on the Company’s Register of Members as holders of equity shares in 
physical form on September 4, 2014. In respect of shares held in dematerialized form, the dividend will be paid on the 
basis of beneficial ownership details to be furnished by NaƟonal SecuriƟes Depository Limited and Central Depository 
Services (India) Limited for this purpose as on the closing hours of business on September 3, 2014.

 LisƟng on Stock Exchange :

  The Equity shares of the Company are listed on The CalcuƩa Stock Exchange (CSE) and The Jaipur Stock Exchange 
Limited (JSEL). Bombay Stock Exchange has permiƩed the Equity shares of the Company for trading under the group 
“B” and index “S&P BSE SMALL CAP” with effect from September 09, 2011 and NaƟonal Stock Exchange has permiƩed 
the Equity shares of the Company for trading with effect from December 07, 2011. Annual LisƟng Fees as prescribed 
have been paid to all the designated stock exchanges for the financial year 2014-15.

 Stock Code : 

CSE - 028161 JSE - 811 BSE - 533552 NSE - RUPA

Demat ISIN No. For NSDL and CDSL – INE895B01021

 Stock Market Data :

  There were no transacƟons in the equity shares of the Company listed at The CalcuƩa Stock Exchange and Jaipur Stock 
Exchange, hence monthly high and low quotaƟons and volume of shares traded on the Bombay Stock Exchange and 
NaƟonal Stock Exchange during the year are given below :

Month & Year BSE NSE

High Low Close High Low Close

April 2013 187.95 155.00 165.00 170.00 162.00 165.00

May 2013 190.00 165.00 174.00 184.95 165.00 173.20

June 2013 189.80 165.00 165.00 190.40 165.00 165.00

July 2013 170.00 165.00 169.00 165.00 165.00 165.00

August 2013 173.00 157.50 165.00 168.95 164.00 165.00

September 2013 174.30 164.00 165.00 170.00 165.00 165.00

October 2013 223.00 165.00 219.70 223.95 165.00 216.00

November 2013 222.40 195.80 214.05 232.50 188.55 224.95

December 2013 222.50 203.60 215.00 224.95 220.00 220.00

January 2014 225.00 198.20 212.35 225.00 200.50 212.20

February 2014 225.00 201.05 220.50 223.65 200.55 222.00

March 2014 250.00 210.00 220.00 249.70 203.60 219.20

 Registrar and Share Transfer Agents :
 Maheshwari DatamaƟcs Pvt. Ltd.
 6, Mangoe Lane, 2nd floor, Kolkata - 700001
 Tel : +91 33 2243 5809
 Fax : +91 33 2248 4787
 E-mail : mdpldc@yahoo.com

 Share Transfer System :

  The transfer of shares in physical form is processed and completed by Maheshwari DatamaƟcs Private Limited every 
fortnight provided all the documents are in order. In case of shares in electronic form, the transfers are processed 
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by NSDL/CDSL through respecƟve Depository ParƟcipants. In compliance with the LisƟng Agreement with the Stock 
Exchanges, a pracƟcing Company Secretary audits the System of Transfer and a CerƟficate to that effect is issued.

 DistribuƟon of Shareholding as on March 31, 2014 :

Number of Shares Shareholders Shares

Number % of Total     Number    % of Total

               1  -     500 1351 81.6808 70284 0.0884

           501  -   1000 72 4.3531 62068 0.0780

         1001  -   2000 84 5.0786 156618 0.1969

         2001  -   3000 10 0.6046 27632 0.0347

         3001  -   4000 22 1.3301 87205 0.1097

         4001  -   5000 19 1.1487 93182 0.1172

         5001  - 10000 37  2.2370 314589 0.3956

       10001  and above  59 3.5671 78712982 98.9795

Total 1654 100.00 79524560 100.00

Shareholding PaƩern as on March 31, 2014 :

CATEGORY NO. OF SHARES HELD % OF SHARE CAPITAL

A. PROMOTER’S HOLDING

Promoters

a. Indian Promoters 59586390 74.93

b. Foreign Promoters Nil Nil

Sub-total 59586390 74.93

B. NON-PROMOTER’S HOLDING

1. InsƟtuƟonal Investors

a. Mutual Funds and UTI 304000 0.38

b. Banks, Financial InsƟtuƟons, Insurance Companies Nil Nil

c. Flls Nil Nil

Sub-total 304000 0.38

2. OTHERS

a. Bodies Corporate 18414273 23.16

b. Indian Public 1208826 1.52

c. NRIs 1042 0.00

d. Others 10029 0.00

Sub-total 19634170 24.69

GRAND TOTAL 79524560 100

DematerializaƟon of shares and liquidity :

  As on March 31, 2014, 99.26% of the equity shares of the Company have been dematerialized. The Company has 
entered into agreements with NaƟonal SecuriƟes Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited (CDSL), whereby shareholders have the opƟon to dematerialize their shares with either of the depositories. 
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 STATUS OF DEMATERIALIZATION AS ON MARCH 31, 2014 :

PARTICULARS NO. OF SHARES % TOTAL CAPITAL NO. OF ACCOUNTS

NaƟonal SecuriƟes Depository Ltd. (NSDL) 77491263 97.44 918

Central Depository Services (India) Limited 1451609 1.83 498

Total Demateralised 78917243 99.27 1402

Physical 581688 0.73 238

Grand Total 79524560 100 1654

Outstanding GDRs /ADRs /Warrants or any ConverƟble Instruments, conversion date and likely impact on Equity: 

 The Company has not issued any GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any other ConverƟble instruments.

 Unclaimed Dividends :

  Pursuant to SecƟon 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, dividends that are unpaid / unclaimed for a period of seven years 
from the date they became due for payment are required to be transferred by the Company to the Investor EducaƟon 
and ProtecƟon Fund (IEPF) administered by the Central Government. Given below are the dates of declaraƟon of 
dividend and corresponding dates when unpaid/unclaimed dividends are due for transfer to IEPF:

Financial Year Date of declaraƟon of dividend Due Date for transfer to IEPF

2004-2005 August 29, 2005 05.10.2012

2005-2006 August 28, 2006 04.10.2013

2006-2007 September 14, 2007 20.10.2014

2007-2008 September 30, 2008 05.11.2015

2008-2009 September 22, 2009 28.10.2016

2009-2010 September 30, 2010 20.10.2017

2010-2011 September 28, 2011 04.10.2018

2011-2012 September 29, 2012 05.10.2019

2012-2013 September 28,2013 04.10.2020

NominaƟon :

  Individual shareholders holding shares singly or jointly in physical form can nominate a person in whose name the shares 
shall be transferable in case of death of the registered shareholder(s). NominaƟon facility in respect of shares held in 
electronic form is also available with the depository parƟcipants as per the bye-laws and business rules applicable to 
NSDL and CDSL. NominaƟon forms can be obtained from the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

 Electronic Clearing Service :

  The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has made it mandatory for all companies to use the bank account 
details furnished by the depositories for crediƟng dividends through Electronic Clearing Services (ECS) to the investors 
wherever ECS and bank details are available, in the absence of ECS facility, the Company is required to print the bank 
account details on the dividend warrants. This ensures that the dividend warrants, even if lost or stolen, cannot be used 
for any purpose other than for deposiƟng the money in the accounts specified on the dividend warrants and ensures 
safety for the investors.

  However, members who wish to receive dividend in an account other than the one specified while opening the 
Depository Account, may noƟfy their DPs about any change in the Bank Account details.
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 Plant LocaƟons :  

a) Jalan Industrial Complex,
Bombay Road (NaƟonal Highway 6)
P.O. - Begri, Vill - Biprannapara
Howrah – 711411 (W.B.)

b) 16, Shastri Nagar
3rd Street, Angeripalayam Road
Tirupur – 640 602

Address for Correspondence :

Registrar & Share Transfer Agents Registered Office

Maheshwari DatamaƟcs Pvt. Ltd. M/s. Rupa & Company Limited

6, Mangoe Lane, 2nd Floor, Metro Tower, 8th Floor

Kolkata - 700001 1, Ho Chi Minh Sarani

Tel : +91 33 2243 5809 Kolkata - 700 071

Fax : +91 33 2248 4787 Tel : (033) 3057 3100

E-mail : mdpldc@yahoo.com Fax : (033) 2288 1362

E-mail : info@rupa.co.in / cs@rupa.co.in
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To
The Members of
Rupa & company Limited

We have examined the compliance of condiƟons of corporate governance by Rupa & Company Limited, for the year 
ended on 31st March, 2014, as sƟpulated in clause 49 of the LisƟng Agreement of the said Company with stock exchanges.

The compliance of condiƟons of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examinaƟon 
was limited to procedures and implementaƟon thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the 
condiƟons of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements 
of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, we cerƟfy that the 
Company has complied with the condiƟons of Corporate Governance as sƟpulated in the above menƟoned LisƟng 
Agreement.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency 
or effecƟveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For S.R. BATLlBOl & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants

lCAl Firm registraƟon number : 301003E

Bhaswar Sarkar
Place : Kolkata  Partner
Date : 30th May 2014  Membership No. : 055596

Auditors' Certificate
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Independent Auditors' Report
To the Members of
Rupa & Company Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Rupa & Company Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2014, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, 
and a summary of significant accounƟng policies and other explanatory informaƟon. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparaƟon of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
posiƟon, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounƟng principles generally accepted 
in India, including the AccounƟng Standards noƟfied under the Companies Act, 1956, read with General Circular 8/2014 
dated 4 April 2014 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. This responsibility includes the design, implementaƟon and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparaƟon and presentaƟon of the financial statements that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Standards on AudiƟng issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparaƟon and fair presentaƟon of the financial statements in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effecƟveness of the enƟty’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluaƟng the appropriateness of accounƟng 
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounƟng esƟmates made by management, as well as evaluaƟng the overall 
presentaƟon of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, the financial statements give 
the informaƟon required by the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounƟng principles generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2014;

(b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and 

(c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of MaƩer

The Income tax department had conducted search and seizure operaƟon on the Company’s various locaƟons from 7th 
November 2013 to 8th November 2013. As informed, no order, consequent to such operaƟon, has so far been received by 
the Company and thus its impact, if any, on the Company’s financial statements, is presently not ascertainable. Our opinion 
is not qualified in respect of this maƩer.  

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India 
in terms of sub-secƟon (4A) of secƟon 227 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a statement on the maƩers specified in 
paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.
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2. As required by secƟon 227(3) of the Act, we report that : 

 (a) We have obtained all the informaƟon and explanaƟons which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

 (b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from 
our examinaƟon of those books and proper returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have been received 
from branches not visited by us;

 (c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account and with the returns received from branches not visited by us;

 (d) The report on the accounts of the branch offices audited under secƟon 228 by a person other than the company’s 
auditor has been forwarded to us as required by clause (c) of sub-secƟon (3) of secƟon 228 and have been dealt 
with in preparing our report in the manner considered necessary by us;

 (e) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement comply with the 
AccounƟng Standards noƟfied under the Companies Act, 1956, read with General Circular 8/2014 dated 4 April 
2014 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs; 

 (f) On the basis of wriƩen representaƟons received from the directors as on March 31, 2014, and taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2014, from being appointed as a 
director in terms of clause (g) of sub-secƟon (1) of secƟon 274 of the Companies Act, 1956. 

Other MaƩer

We did not audit total assets of ` 1,527,359,834 as at March 31, 2014 total revenues of ̀  819,905,438 and net cash ouƞlows 
amounƟng to ` 281,050 for the year then ended, included in the accompanying financial statements in respect of branches 
not visited by us, whose financial statements and other financial informaƟon have been audited by other auditors and 
whose reports has been furnished to us. Our opinion, in so far as it relates to the affairs of such branch is based solely on 
the report of other auditors. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this maƩer.  

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP 
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm RegistraƟon Number: 301003E

per Bhaswar Sarkar
Place of Signature : Kolkata  Partner
Date : 30th May, 2014  Membership Number : 055596

Independent Auditors' Report
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To the Members of
Rupa & Company Limited
[Referred to in our report of even date]

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full parƟculars, including quanƟtaƟve details and situaƟon 
of fixed assets.

 (b) A part of the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year, based on planned 
programme of verifying all the assets over a period of three years, which in our opinion is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noƟced on such 
verificaƟon.  

 (c) There was no disposal of a substanƟal part of fixed assets during the year.

(ii) (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of 
verificaƟon is reasonable. Inventories lying with outside parƟes have been confirmed by them as at year end.

 (b) The procedures of physical verificaƟon of inventory followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in 
relaƟon to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

 (c) The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory and no material discrepancies were noƟced on physical 
verificaƟon.

(iii) (a) According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured 
or unsecured to companies, firms or other parƟes covered in the register maintained under secƟon 301 of the 
Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(iii) (a) to (d) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company and hence not commented upon.

 (b) According to informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the Company has not taken any loans, secured or unsecured, 
from companies, firms or other parƟes covered in the register maintained under secƟon 301 of the Companies 
Act, 1956. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(iii)(e) to (g) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and 
hence not commented upon.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, there is an adequate internal control 
system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business, for the purchase of inventory and 
fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. During the course of our audit, we have not observed any major 
weakness or conƟnuing failure to correct any major weakness in the internal control system of the company in respect 
of these areas.

(v) In our opinion, there are no contracts or arrangements that need to be entered in the register maintained under 
SecƟon 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(v)(b) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company and hence not commented upon.

(vi) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

(vii) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size of the Company and nature of 
its business.

(viii) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the Central 
Government for the maintenance of cost records under secƟon 209(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956, related to the 
manufacture of Company’s products, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have 
been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examinaƟon of the same 

(ix) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, investor educaƟon and protecƟon fund, employees’ state 
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty cess and other material 
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authoriƟes though there has been a 
slight  delay in few cases. The provisions related to excise duty are not applicable to the Company. 

 (b) According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident 
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, sales-tax, customs duty, excise duty cess 
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and other material statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from 
the date they became payable. The provisions related to excise duty are not applicable to the Company. 

 (c) According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, 
customs duty, excise duty and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount Period to which 
the amount relates

Forum where 
dispute is pending

The West Bengal 
Value Added Tax Act, 
2003

Demand relaƟng to non-
submission of Local forms 
and other documents/
dispute

3,914,177 2004-05 West Bengal 
TaxaƟon Tribunal

24,773,293 2005-06 West Bengal 
Commercial 

Taxes Appellate & 
Revisional Board

1,115,690 2009-10 AddiƟonal 
Commissioner of 
Commercial Taxes 

(Appeals)

The Central Sales Tax 
Act, 1956

Demand relaƟng to Non 
submission of C forms and 
other documents

5,275,206 2005-06 West Bengal 
Commercial 

Taxes Appellate & 
Revisional Board

5,139,732 2009-10 AddiƟonal 
Commissioner of 
Commercial Taxes 

(Appeals)

The Income Tax Act, 
1961

Disallowance of certain 
expenses

1,567,760 Assessment Year 
2010-11

Commissioner 
of Income Tax 

(Appeals)

(x) The Company has no accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and it has not incurred cash losses in the 
current and immediately preceding financial year.

(xi) Based on our audit procedures and as per the informaƟon and explanaƟons given by the management, we are of the 
opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial insƟtuƟon or bank. The Company did 
not have any outstanding debentures during the year.

(xii) According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us and based on the documents and records produced before 
us, the Company has not granted loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures 
and other securiƟes.

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi / mutual benefit fund / society. Therefore, the provisions of 
clause 4(xiii) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) are not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in or trading in shares, securiƟes, debentures and other investments. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xiv) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (as amended) are not 
applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken 
by others from bank or financial insƟtuƟons.
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(xvi) Based on the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us by the management, term loans were applied for the purpose 
for which the loans were obtained.

(xvii) According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us and on an overall examinaƟon of the balance sheet of the 
Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term investment. 

(xviii) The Company has not made any preferenƟal allotment of shares to parƟes or companies covered in the register 
maintained under secƟon 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

(xix) The Company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year.

(xx) The Company has not raised any money through a public issue during the year.

(xxi) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporƟng the true and fair view of the financial 
statements and as per the informaƟon and explanaƟons given by the management, we report that no fraud on or by 
the Company has been noƟced or reported during the year.

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP 
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm RegistraƟon Number: 301003E

per Bhaswar Sarkar
Place of Signature : Kolkata  Partner
Date : 30th May, 2014  Membership Number : 055596
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Balance Sheet 
as at 31st March, 2014 (Amount in `)

Notes As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Funds

Share Capital 3  79,629,060  79,629,060 
Reserves & Surplus 4  2,648,294,467  2,260,332,618 

 2,727,923,527  2,339,961,678 
Non-Current LiabiliƟes

Long Term Borrowings 5  104,444,444  152,222,222 
Deferred Tax LiabiliƟes 6  159,218,307  146,647,277 
Other Long Term LiabiliƟes 7  218,375,247  178,502,709 

 482,037,998  477,372,208 
Current LiabiliƟes

Short Term Borrowings 8  1,703,209,567  1,873,582,710 
Trade Payables 9  991,304,181  872,012,999 
Other Current LiabiliƟes 10  232,861,780  228,140,429 
Short Term Provisions 11  236,729,402  231,118,050 

 3,164,104,930  3,204,854,188 
 6,374,066,455  6,022,188,074 

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets 12  1,413,477,715  1,385,542,499 
Intangible Assets 13  3,766,456  8,315,307 
Capital Work-in-Progress  43,137,490  11,539,840 

Non-Current Investments 14  41,215,000  41,215,000 
Long Term Loans & Advances 15  145,786,965  157,553,944 
Other Non Current Assets 16  3,423,758  5,449,570 

 1,650,807,384  1,609,616,160 
Current Assets

Inventories 17  2,869,733,878  2,717,468,084 
Trade Receivables 18  1,604,254,465  1,445,601,549 
Cash & Bank Balances 19  54,913,486  57,357,959 
Short Term Loans & Advances 20  109,564,632  117,077,694 
Other Current Assets 21  84,792,610  75,066,628 

 4,723,259,071  4,412,571,914 
 6,374,066,455  6,022,188,074 

Summary of Significant AccounƟng Policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Firm RegistraƟon No. 301003E
Chartered Accountants
per Bhaswar Sarkar P. R. Agarwala  G. P. Agarwala
a Partner Chairman   Vice-Chairman
Membership No. 055596
Place : Kolkata Priya Punjabi Agarwal  K. B. Agarwal
Date: 30th May, 2014 Company Secretary  Managing Director



Annual Report   2014   Rupa & Company Limited 53

Notes to Financial StatementsCash Flow StatementsStatement of Profit & LossBalance SheetAuditors' Report

(Amount in `)
Statement of Profit & Loss 
for the year ended 31st March, 2014

Notes 2013-14 2012-13

REVENUE

Revenue From OperaƟons (Gross) 22 8,941,023,527 8,558,218,919 

Less: Excise Duty – 393,995,102 

Revenue From OperaƟons (Net) 8,941,023,527 8,164,223,817 

Other Income 23 70,256,226 9,756,912 

Total Revenue 9,011,279,753 8,173,980,729 

EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed 24 4,420,296,384 4,558,670,046 

Purchases of traded goods 25 335,824,431 310,363,936 

(Increase) in inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and 
traded goods

26 (76,117,135) (597,090,423)

Employee Benefits Expense 27 148,605,628 121,282,215 

Finance Cost 28 245,181,361 208,860,765 

DepreciaƟon & AmorƟsaƟon Expense 29 111,750,233 66,293,510 

Other Expenses 30 2,868,406,575 2,590,574,396 

Total Expenses 8,053,947,477 7,258,954,445 

Profit before tax 957,332,276 915,026,284 

Tax Expense

     Current Tax 324,200,000 277,000,000 

     Deferred Tax 12,571,030 20,449,038 

Profit for the year 620,561,246 617,577,246 

Earnings per Equity Share - Basic and Diluted                                                        
(Nominal value per equity share ` 1 )

38 7.80 7.77 

Summary of Significant AccounƟng Policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Firm RegistraƟon No. 301003E
Chartered Accountants
per Bhaswar Sarkar P. R. Agarwala  G. P. Agarwala
a Partner Chairman   Vice-Chairman
Membership No. 055596
Place : Kolkata Priya Punjabi Agarwal  K. B. Agarwal
Date: 30th May, 2014 Company Secretary  Managing Director
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 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 

A. CASH FLOW ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit Before Tax  957,332,276  915,026,284 

Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows   

(a) DepreciaƟon and AmorƟsaƟon  111,750,233  66,293,510 

(b) Finance Cost  245,181,361  208,860,765 

(c) Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (net)  165,023  2,746,874 

(d) Bad debts / advances wriƩen off  11,517,114  4,540,023 

(e) Unspent LiabiliƟes wriƩen back  (38,098,618) –

(f) Interest Income  (7,045,255)  323,469,858  (6,372,027)  276,069,145 

OperaƟng Profit before Working Capital Changes  1,280,802,134  1,191,095,429 

Changes in Working capital

(a) Increase in Other Long Term LiabiliƟes  39,872,538  35,827,920 

(b) Increase in Trade Payables  119,291,182  65,408,333 

(c) Increase in Other Current LiabiliƟes  27,268,920  133,272,781 

(d) (Increase) / Decrease in Short-term Loans & Advances  7,513,062  (25,328,392)

(e) Increase in Long-term Loans & Advances  (1,483,581)  (3,071,665)

(f) Increase in Inventories  (152,265,794)  (650,821,942)

(g) Increase in Trade Receivables  (170,170,030)  (217,739,886)

(h) Increase in Other Current Assets  (9,725,982)  (139,699,685)  (24,546,868)  (686,999,719)

Cash Generated from OperaƟons  1,141,102,449  504,095,710 

Less : (a) Direct Taxes Paid  (365,108,528)  (252,845,147)

Add : (a) Interest received from OperaƟng AcƟviƟes  5,298,077  4,749,657 

Net Cash from OperaƟng AcƟviƟes  781,291,998  256,000,220 

B. CASH FLOW ARISING FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(a) Sale of Fixed Assets –  1,767,920 

(b) Interest received  1,747,178  1,622,370 

(c) Purchase of Fixed Assets  (156,456,910)  (306,988,017)

(d) Investement in Fixed Deposits (net)  (11,478,702)  5,145,816 

Net Cash used in InvesƟng AcƟviƟes  (166,188,434)  (298,451,911)

Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended 31st March, 2014 (Amount in `)
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 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 

C. CASH FLOW ARISING FORM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(a) Dividend and Dividend Tax paid  (185,978,144)  (138,548,138)

(b) Finance Cost  (242,479,042)  (208,860,765)

(c) Proceed of Long Term Borrowings  70,000,000  100,000,000 

(d) Repayment of Long Term Borrowings  (102,222,222)  (107,777,778)

(e) Proceed / (Repayment) of ShortTerm Borrowings (net)  (170,373,143)  402,702,564 

Net Cash from Financing AcƟviƟes  (631,052,551)  47,515,883 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent (A+B+C)  (15,948,987)  5,064,192 

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year #  56,309,328  51,245,136 

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year #  40,360,341  56,309,328 

# as disclosed in Note 19 and Includes ` 945,694 (31st March, 2013 : ` 844,320) lying in unclaimed dividend account and 
` 1,900,000 (31st March, 2013 : Nil) seized by the income tax department (refer note 31), being the amount available for 
restricted use.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Firm RegistraƟon No. 301003E
Chartered Accountants
per Bhaswar Sarkar P. R. Agarwala  G. P. Agarwala
a Partner Chairman   Vice-Chairman
Membership No. 055596
Place : Kolkata Priya Punjabi Agarwal  K. B. Agarwal
Date: 30th May, 2014 Company Secretary  Managing Director

(Amount in `)
Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended 31st March, 2014
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

 Rupa & Company Limited (the Company) is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 1956 and is listed on the NaƟonal Stock Exchange of India Ltd., Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd., 
CalcuƩa Stock Exchange Ltd. and the Jaipur Stock Exchange Ltd. The Company is engaged in manufacture of hosiery 
products in kniƩed undergarments, casual wears and thermal wears. It also has a Power GeneraƟon Unit operated on 
Windmill process.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 2.1 Basis of preparaƟon

  The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounƟng 
principles in India under the historical cost convenƟon on accrual basis. These financial statements have been 
prepared to comply in all material respects with the accounƟng standards noƟfied under the Companies Act, 
1956, read with General Circular 8/2014 dated 4th April, 2014, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.  The 
accounƟng policies adopted in the preparaƟon of financial statements are consistent with those of previous year.

 2.2 Use of EsƟmates

  The preparaƟon of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make 
judgments, esƟmates and assumpƟons that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabiliƟes and the disclosure of conƟngent liabiliƟes, at the end of the reporƟng period. Although these esƟmates 
are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and acƟons, uncertainty about these 
assumpƟons and esƟmates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets or liabiliƟes in future periods.

 2.3 Tangible fixed assets

  Fixed assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciaƟon and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The 
cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs, if capitalizaƟon criteria are met, and directly aƩributable cost of 
bringing the asset to its working condiƟon for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in 
arriving at the purchase price.       

  Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future 
benefits from the exisƟng asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on 
exisƟng fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are 
charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

  Gains or losses arising from derecogniƟon of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the 
asset is derecognized.

  "DepreciaƟon is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line method at the rates prescribed in Schedule XIV 
of the Companies Act, 1956, or at the rates determined based on the useful lives of the respecƟve assets, as 
esƟmated by the management, whichever is higher. The rates determined based on the useful lives coincides with 
the rates prescribed in Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.

  Leasehold land is amorƟzed on a straight line basis over the period of lease, i.e., 86 years."

 2.4 Intangible Assets

  Intangible Assets are stated at acquisiƟon cost, net of accumulated amorƟzaƟon and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Intangible assets are amorƟsed on a straight line basis over their esƟmated useful economic lives.

  Gains or losses arising from the reƟrement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Amount in `)
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(Amount in `)Notes to the Financial Statements
the Statement of Profit & Loss. The useful lives over which intangible assets are amorƟsed are as under:

  Assets Useful Life
   (in years)

  Copyrights & Trade marks 10 

  Computer SoŌware 5 

 2.5 Borrowing Costs 

  Borrowing cost includes interest, amorƟzaƟon of ancillary costs incurred in connecƟon with the arrangement of 
borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as 
an adjustment to the interest cost. 

  Borrowing costs directly aƩributable to the acquisiƟon, construcƟon or producƟon of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substanƟal period of Ɵme to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the 
respecƟve asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

 2.6 Impairment       

  The carrying amount of assets (tangible and intangible) is reviewed at each balance sheet date, to determine if 
there is any indicaƟon of impairment based on the internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized 
wherever the carrying amount of assets exceeds its recoverable amount which is the greater of net selling price 
and value in use of the respecƟve assets. In assessing the value in use, the esƟmated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the Ɵme 
value of money and risk specific to the asset. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the 
lowest levels for which there are separately idenƟfiable cash flows.  AŌer impairment, depreciaƟon is provided on 
the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

 2.7 Investments       

  Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on 
which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as 
long-term investments.

  On iniƟal recogniƟon, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly 
aƩributable acquisiƟon charges such as brokerage, fees and duƟes. 

  Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined on an 
individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminuƟon in value 
is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments.

  On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or 
credited to the statement of profit and loss.

 2.8 Inventories       

  Raw materials and packing materials are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. However, materials and 
other items held for use in the producƟon of inventories are not wriƩen down below cost if the finished products 
in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of raw materials and packing 
materials is determined on a first in first out basis. 

  Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct 
materials and labour and a proporƟon of manufacturing overheads based on normal operaƟng capacity. Cost of 
Work-in-progress is determined on First in First out basis and cost of finished goods is determined on Retail sales 
price method. 



Annual Report   2014   Rupa & Company Limited 58

Fashioning India since 1968

  Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present locaƟon and condiƟon. Cost of traded goods is determined on 
First in First out basis. 

  Net realizable value is the esƟmated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less esƟmated costs of 
compleƟon and esƟmated costs necessary to make the sale.

 2.9 Foreign Currency TransacƟons

  IniƟal RecogniƟon

  Foreign currency transacƟons are recorded in the reporƟng currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount 
the exchange rate between the reporƟng currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transacƟon.

  Conversion

  Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporƟng date. Non-
monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported 
using the exchange rate at the date of the transacƟon. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or 
other similar valuaƟon denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when 
such value was determined.

  Exchange differences on restatement of all other monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit & 
Loss.       

  Forward Exchange Contracts       

  The premium or discount arising at the incepƟon of forward exchange contracts entered into to hedge an exisƟng 
asset/liability, is amorƟsed as expense or income over the life of the contract. Exchange differences on such a 
contract are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss in the reporƟng period in which the exchange rates 
change. Any profit or loss arising on cancellaƟon or renewal of such a forward exchange contract are recognised 
as income or as expense for the period.       

 2.10 Revenue RecogniƟon

  Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 
revenue can be reliably measured.       

  Sale of Goods : Sales are recognised when the substanƟal risks and rewards of ownership in the goods are 
transferred to the buyer and goods are uncondiƟonally handed over to the transporters for delivery as per the 
terms of the contract. Sales are net of discounts, incenƟves,  rebates and sales taxes. The Company collects sales 
taxes and value added taxes (VAT) on behalf of the government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits 
flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from revenues.

  Sale of Services : In contracts involving the rendering of services, revenue is measured using the proporƟonate 
compleƟon method.

  Interest : Interest income is recognized on a Ɵme proporƟon basis taking into account the amount outstanding 
and the applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head “other income” in the statement of 
profit and loss.

  Dividend : Dividend income is recognized when the company’s right to receive dividend is established by the 
reporƟng date.

  Export IncenƟves : Export incenƟves are recognised when the right to receive such incenƟves as per the applicable 
terms is established in respect of the exports made and when there is no significant uncertainty regarding the 
ulƟmate realisaƟon / uƟlisaƟon of such incenƟves.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Amount in `)
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  Insurance and other claims due to uncertainty in realisaƟon are accounted for on acceptance basis.

 2.11 Employee Benefits

  (i) Provident Fund : ReƟrement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribuƟon scheme. The 
company has no obligaƟon, other than the contribuƟon payable to the provident fund. The company 
recognizes contribuƟon payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders 
the related service.

  (ii) Gratuity : The company operates defined benefit plan for its employees, viz., gratuity. The costs of providing 
benefits under this plan is determined on the basis of actuarial valuaƟon at each year-end. Actuarial valuaƟon 
is carried out using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses is recognized in full in the 
period in which they occur in the statement of profit and loss.

 2.12 Taxes on Income      

  Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be 
paid to the tax authoriƟes in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing 
in the respecƟve tax jurisdicƟons where the company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the 
amount are those that are enacted or substanƟvely enacted, at the reporƟng date. 

  Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of Ɵming differences between taxable income and accounƟng income 
originaƟng during the current year and reversal of Ɵming differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured 
using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substanƟvely enacted at the reporƟng date. 

  Deferred tax liabiliƟes are recognized for all taxable Ɵming differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for 
deducƟble Ɵming differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situaƟons where the company 
has unabsorbed depreciaƟon or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is 
virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized against future taxable profits.

  At each reporƟng date, the company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes unrecognized 
deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that 
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporƟng date. The company writes-down the 
carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as 
the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be 
realized. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as 
the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

 2.13 Provisions and ConƟngent LiabiliƟes

  Provisions : A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligaƟon as a result of past event, it is 
probable that an ouƞlow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to seƩle the obligaƟon and 
a reliable esƟmate can be made of the amount of the obligaƟon. Provisions are not discounted to their present 
value and are determined based on the best esƟmate required to seƩle the obligaƟon at the reporƟng date. These 
esƟmates are reviewed at each reporƟng date and adjusted to reflect the current best esƟmates.

  ConƟngent LiabiliƟes : A conƟngent liability is a possible obligaƟon that arises from past events whose existence 
will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the 
control of the company or a present obligaƟon that is not recognized because it is not probable that an ouƞlow 
of resources will be required to seƩle the obligaƟon. A conƟngent liability also arises in extremely rare cases 
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does not 
recognize a conƟngent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

(Amount in `)Notes to the Financial Statements
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 2.14 OperaƟng Lease

  Leases where the lessor effecƟvely retains substanƟally all the risks and benefits of the ownership of the leased 
assets are classified as operaƟng leases. OperaƟng lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement 
of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

 2.15 Government Grants

  Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the company 
will comply with the condiƟons aƩached to them, and the grant/subsidy will be received.

  When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognized as income on a systemaƟc basis in the statement 
of profit and loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs, which they are intended to 
compensate.

  Where the grant or subsidy relates to an asset, its value is deducted from the gross value of the asset concerned 
in arriving at the carrying amount of the related asset.

  Government grants of the nature of promoter's contribuƟon are credited to Capital reserve and treated as a part 
of Shareholder's funds.

 2.16 Segment ReporƟng

  Based on the synergies, risks and returns associated with business operaƟons and in terms of AccounƟng Standard 
– 17, the Company is predominantly engaged in a single segment of Garments & Hosiery goods and related 
services during the year. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in which customers of the 
Company are located.

 2.17 Cash and Cash Equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-
term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

 2.18 Earnings Per Share

  Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period aƩributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

  For the purpose of calculaƟng diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period aƩributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the 
effects of all diluƟve potenƟal equity shares.
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As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

NOTE 3 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised :

200,000,000 (31st March, 2013: 200,000,000) Equity Shares of ` 1/- each  200,000,000  200,000,000 

Issued :

79,733,560 (31st March, 2013: 79,733,560) Equity Shares of ` 1/- each  79,733,560  79,733,560 

Subscribed and paid up :

79,524,560 (31st March, 2013: 79,524,560) Equity Shares of ` 1/- each, fully paid-up  79,524,560  79,524,560 

209,000 (31st March, 2013: 209,000) Forfeited Shares of ` 1/- each ` 0.50/- per 
share paid up

 104,500  104,500 

 79,629,060  79,629,060 

a) There is no change in the number of shares in the current year and last year.

b) Terms / Rights aƩached in Equity Shares

 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 1/- per share. Each holder of equity shares 
is enƟtled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupee. The dividend proposed 
by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General MeeƟng.
In the event of liquidaƟon of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be enƟtled to receive remaining assets 
of the Company aŌer distribuƟon of all preferenƟal amounts. The distribuƟon will be in proporƟon to the number of 
equity shares held by the shareholders.

 During the year ended March 31, 2014 the Company has proposed a final dividend of ` 2.50 per share (31st March, 
2013 : ` 2 per share).

c) Aggregate number of shares issued for consideraƟon other than cash during the period of five year immediately 
preceeding the reporƟng date.

No. of Shares

As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

Equity Shares alloƩed as fully paid up pursuant to contracts for consideraƟon 
other than cash

–  19,483,560

 The shares were issued other than cash in the year 2008-09. Accordingly, the disclosure for the same is not made in 
2013-14.

d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

No. of Shares  % No. of Shares  % 

Equity Shares of ` 1/- each, fully paid up
Rajnish Enterprises Ltd.  15,821,190 19.89%  15,821,190 19.89%
Karuna Impex Enterprises Limited  8,650,000 10.88%  8,650,000 10.88%
Prahlad Rai Agarwala  8,041,080 10.11%  8,041,080 10.11%
Kunj Bihari Agarwal  7,278,000 7.54%  7,278,000 7.54%
Ghanshyam Prasad Agarwala  7,240,910 7.54%  7,240,910 7.54%
Purvanchal Leasing Ltd.  5,807,670 7.30%  5,807,670 7.30%

 As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members as on 31st March, 2014, the above 
shareholding represents legal ownership of shares.
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As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

NOTE 4 RESERVES & SURPLUS

Capital Subsidy

Balance as per the last financial statement  6,075,040  6,075,040 

General Reserve

Balance as per the last financial statement  227,174,041  197,174,041 

Add : Transferred from Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss  100,000,000  30,000,000 

Balance as at the end of the year  327,174,041  227,174,041 

SecuriƟes Premium Account

Balance as per the last financial statement  688,030,890  688,030,890 

Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss

Balance as per the last financial statement  1,339,052,647  937,554,919 

Profit for the year  620,561,246  617,577,246 

Less : AppropriaƟons

Proposed final equity dividend (` 2.50 (31st March, 2013 : ` 2) per share)  198,811,400  159,049,120 

Tax on proposed equity dividend  33,787,997  27,030,398 

Transfer to General Reserve  100,000,000  30,000,000 

Total AppropriaƟons  332,599,397  216,079,518 

Net Surplus in the Statement of Profit & Loss  1,627,014,496  1,339,052,647 

Total Reserves & Surplus  2,648,294,467  2,260,332,618

Non Current PorƟon Current MaturiƟes

As at
March 31, 

2014

As at
March 31, 

2013

As at
March 31, 

2014

As at
March 31, 

2013

NOTE 5 LONG TERM BORROWINGS

Secured :

Term Loans

Indian Rupee loans from Banks  104,444,444  152,222,222  117,777,778  102,222,222 

 104,444,444  152,222,222  117,777,778  102,222,222 

Less : Amount disclosed under the head "Other Current 
LiabiliƟes" (Note 10)

 –    –   (117,777,778) (102,222,222)

 104,444,444  152,222,222  –    –   

Term loan from a bank is secured by first charge by way of hypothecaƟon of movable fixed assets and mortgage of immovable 
fixed assets of Domjur Unit. Further term loan of ` 80,000,000 (31st March, 2013 : ` 160,000,000) is secured by personal 
guarantee of 3 Directors of the Company and Corporate Guarantee given by Rupa Global Private Limited and term loan of 
` 72,222,222 (31st March, 2013 : ` 94,444,444) is secured by personal guarantee of 3 Directors of the Company.

Term loan of ` 80,000,000 (31st March, 2013 : ` 160,000,000) is repayable in quarterly installments of ` 20,000,000 by 
13th March, 2015 and carries interest @12.50% per annum. Term Loan of ` 72,222,222 (31st March, 2013 : ` 94,444,444) 
is repayable in 18 equal quarterly installments of ` 5,555,556 by 14th June, 2017 and carries interest @ 12.40% per annum. 
Term Loan of ` 70,000,000 (31st March, 2013 : ` NIL) is repayable in 18 equal quarterly installments of ` 3,888,889 starƟng 
from 28th June, 2014 and ending on 28th September, 2019 and carries interest @ 12.30% per annum.
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As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

NOTE 6 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES  

Fixed Assets : Impact of difference between tax depreciaƟon and depreciaƟon / 
amorƟsaƟon charged for the financial reporƟng

 159,218,307  146,647,277 

Deferred Tax LiabiliƟes  159,218,307  146,647,277

NOTE 7 OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Security Deposits from Customers  218,375,247  178,502,709 

 218,375,247  178,502,709 

NOTE 8 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS  

Secured :

From Banks

Cash Credit  542,981,446  365,407,871 

Working Capital Demand Loans

Indian Rupee loans  1,040,028,494  880,000,000 

Foreign Currency loans  120,199,627  628,174,839 

 1,703,209,567  1,873,582,710 

Cash Credit including Working Capital Demand Loan from banks are secured by hypothecaƟon of inventories, book debts 
and other current assets and further secured by second charge of movable and immovable fixed assets of Domjur Unit.

Working Capital Demand Loans are repayable in 7 days to 360 days and carries interest @4.16% p.a. to 10.85% p.a. (31st 
March, 2013 : 4.00% p.a. to 11.50% p.a.)

Cash Credit are repayable on demand and carries interest @ 10.50% p.a. to 12.50% p.a. (31st March, 2013: 11.25 % p.a. to 
13.25% p.a.)

NOTE 9 TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables

Due to Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 35)  51,753,343  43,399,186 

Due to Others  939,550,838  828,613,813 

 991,304,181  872,012,999 

NOTE 10 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES  

Capital Creditors  1,252,274  4,060,474 

Current MaturiƟes of Long Term Borrowings (Note 5) 117,777,778 102,222,222 

Unpaid dividends (to be credited to Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund as and when due) 945,694 844,320 

Advances from customers 16,049,746 15,995,560 

Interest Accrued but not due on borrowings  4,613,991  1,911,672 

Statutory dues payable 67,581,146 63,934,551 

Book overdraŌ in Current Account 1,204,524 1,897,854 

Payable to employees 22,548,616 36,887,824 

Others 888,011 385,952 

232,861,780 228,140,429 
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As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

NOTE 11 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Provision of Income tax (Net of Advance)  4,130,005 45,038,532 

Proposed Equity Dividend  198,811,400  159,049,120 

Tax on proposed Equity dividend  33,787,997  27,030,398 

236,729,402  231,118,050 

 Land Buildings Plant and 
Machinery

Furniture 
and 

Fixtures

Vehicles Office 
Equipment

Total

 Freehold Lease Hold

NOTE 12 TANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost

As at April 1, 2012  53,932,855  13,023,384  398,026,073  755,586,558  45,158,701  28,046,834  35,309,759  1,329,084,164 

AddiƟons  19,887,594  –    161,543,189  116,629,326  11,083,111  13,890,266  7,940,794  330,974,280 

Disposals  –    –    –    3,712,344  177,664  5,572,656  183,638  9,646,302 

As at March 31, 2013  73,820,449  13,023,384  559,569,262  868,503,540  56,064,148  36,364,444  43,066,915  1,650,412,142 

AddiƟons  23,064,814  –    25,948,776  72,128,773  3,799,979  5,790,023  4,569,255 135,301,620 

Disposals  –    –    –    168,380  –    –    40,075  208,455 

As at March 31, 2014  96,885,263  13,023,384 585,518,038 940,463,933  59,864,127  42,154,467  47,596,095 1,785,505,307 

DepreciaƟon

As at April 1, 2012  –    –    37,375,379 125,725,688  21,554,539  8,797,116  18,673,842 212,126,564 

Charge for the year  –    –    10,548,963  38,026,181  3,421,084  3,172,119  2,698,054  57,866,401 

Disposals  –    –    –    2,085,681  39,204  2,987,230  11,207  5,123,322 

As at March 31, 2013  –    –    47,924,342 161,666,188  24,936,419  8,982,005  21,360,689 264,869,643 

Charge for the year  –    605,740  *  13,398,350  82,393,530  3,613,359  3,802,870  3,387,533 107,201,382 

Disposals  –    –    35,774  –    –    7,659  43,433 

As at March 31, 2014  –    605,740  61,322,692 244,023,944  28,549,778  12,784,875  24,740,563 372,027,592 

Net Block

At March 31, 2013  73,820,449  13,023,384 511,644,920 706,837,352  31,127,729  27,382,439  21,706,226 1,385,542,499 

At March 31, 2014  96,885,263  12,417,644  524,195,346  696,439,989  31,314,349  29,369,592  22,855,532 1,413,477,715 

* includes ` 454,305 for earlier years. 
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 Copyrights 
and 

Trademarks 

 Computer 
SoŌware 

Total

NOTE 13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost

At April 1, 2012  65,000,000  24,424,735  89,424,735 

AddiƟons  –    4,325,157  4,325,157 

At March 31, 2013  65,000,000  28,749,892  93,749,892 

At March 31, 2014  65,000,000  28,749,892  93,749,892 

AmorƟsaƟon

At April 1, 2012  56,501,370  20,506,106  77,007,476 

Charge for the year  6,500,000  1,927,109  8,427,109 

At March 31, 2013  63,001,370  22,433,215  85,434,585 

Charge for the year  1,998,630  2,550,221  4,548,851 

At March 31, 2014  65,000,000  24,983,436  89,983,436 

Net Block

At March 31, 2013  1,998,630  6,316,677  8,315,307 

At March 31, 2014  –    3,766,456  3,766,456 

As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

NOTE 14 NONͳCURRENT INVESTMENTS (FULLY PAID UP) (AT COST)

Trade Investments

Unquoted Equity Shares

Investment in Subsidiaries

10,000 (31st March, 2013: 10,000) Equity Shares of ` 10 each in Imoogi Fashions Pvt. Ltd.  100,000  100,000 

41,00,000  (31st March, 2013: 41,00,000) Equity Shares of ̀  10 each in Euro Fashion 
Inners InternaƟonal Pvt. Ltd.

 41,000,000  41,000,000 

Investment in Others

1,500  (31st March, 2013: 1,500) Equity Shares of ` 10 each in West Bengal Hosiery 
Park Infrastructure Limited

 15,000  15,000 

 41,115,000  41,115,000 

Non-Trade Investments

In Mutual Funds (quoted)

10,000  (31st March, 2013: 10,000) Mutual Fund Units of ` 10 each in Morgan 
Stanley Growth Fund

 100,000  100,000 

 100,000  100,000 

 41,215,000  41,215,000 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments  100,000  100,000 

Market Value of quoted investments  734,130  631,780 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  41,115,000  41,115,000 
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As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

NOTE 15 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Unsecured, considered good

Capital Advances  132,448,972  145,699,532 

Security Deposits  13,337,993  11,854,412 

 145,786,965  157,553,944 

NOTE 16 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

Unsecured, considered good

Non-Current bank balances (Note 19)  3,423,758  5,449,570 

 3,423,758  5,449,570 

NOTE 17 INVENTORIES

(At lower of cost and net realisable value)

Raw Materials & Packing Materials  341,137,493  264,988,834 

Work In Progress  1,046,306,492  1,069,174,536 

Finished Goods  1,450,480,674  1,363,932,931 

Traded Goods  31,809,219  19,371,783 

 2,869,733,878  2,717,468,084 

Note

The above includes Stock in transit

Raw Material 16,930,556 8,576,609

Finished Goods 7,526,118 2,250,662

NOTE 18 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Unsecured, considered good

Outstanding for a period exceeding 6 months from the date they are due for 
payment

 27,674,829  23,466,530 

Other receivables  1,576,579,636  1,422,135,019 

 1,604,254,465  1,445,601,549 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Amount in `)



Annual Report   2014   Rupa & Company Limited 67

Notes to Financial StatementsCash Flow StatementsStatement of Profit & LossBalance SheetAuditors' Report

As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

NOTE 19 CASH AND BANK BALANCES  

Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash on hand (Refer Note 31)  4,737,647  1,533,591 

Balances with Banks

On current accounts  25,815,220  44,859,773 

On cash credit account  8,861,780  –   

Unpaid dividend account  945,694  844,320 

Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months  –    9,071,644 

 40,360,341  56,309,328 

Other bank balances (*)

Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months  –    1,048,631 

Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months  17,976,903  5,449,570 

 17,976,903  6,498,201 

Less : Amount disclosed under "Other Non-Current Assets" (Note 16) (3,423,758) (5,449,570)

 14,553,145 1,048,631 

 54,913,486  57,357,959 

(*) Held as lien by bank against bank guarantees

NOTE 20 SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES

Unsecured, considered good

Loans and advances to Subsidiaries (Refer Note 41) 33,004,211 20,804,039 

Advances recoverable in cash or kind 74,923,892 85,767,999 

Other loans and advances :

Advance Income Tax (Net of Provision) – –

Prepaid Expenses 898,694 8,660,575 

Loans to Employees 737,835 1,845,081 

Total 109,564,632 117,077,694 

NOTE 21 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Unsecured, considered good

Claims & Refund Receivable  77,792,610  75,066,628 

Forward Contract Receivable  7,000,000 –

 84,792,610  75,066,628 
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2013-14 2012-13

NOTE 22 REVENUE

Revenue from OperaƟons  

Sale of Products :

Finished goods  8,217,601,631  7,988,948,302 

Semi finished goods  195,341,666  21,214,056 

Traded goods  345,606,154  347,700,074 

Sale of Services  137,342,179  156,742,414 

Other OperaƟng Revenue :

Sale of Power  8,970,900  9,616,195 

Scrap sale  8,087,467  6,398,163 

Sales Tax Subsidy  13,762,482  12,446,609 

Export IncenƟve  14,311,048  15,153,106 

Revenue from OperaƟons (Gross)  8,941,023,527  8,558,218,919 

Less : Excise Duty –  393,995,102 

Revenue from OperaƟons (Net)  8,941,023,527  8,164,223,817

Note : Excise Duty on sales amounƟng to Nil (March 31, 2013 : ` 393,995,102) has been reduced from sales in Statement of 
profit & loss  and excise duty on increase/(decrease) in stock amounƟng to Nil (March 31, 2013 : ` (70,223,292)) has been 
considered as income/expense in note 30  of financial statements.

Hosiery products has been exempted from excise duty w.e.f. 1st March, 2013 by Government of India.

Sales are net of discount and rebates amounƟng to ` 609,879,696 (31st March, 2013: ` 514,768,379)

Details of Product Sold :

Finished Goods Sold

Hosiery Goods  8,217,601,631  7,988,948,302 

Semi Finished Goods Sold

Processed Yarn  33,403,569  3,087,214 

Processed Fabric  161,938,097  18,126,842 

 195,341,666  21,214,056 

Traded Goods :

Hosiery Goods  333,665,036  331,895,944 

Garments  11,941,118  15,804,130 

 345,606,154  347,700,074 

Details of Services rendered :

Dyeing, Bleaching & Kniƫng  137,342,179  156,742,414 

 8,895,891,630  8,514,604,846
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NOTE 23 OTHER INCOME

Interest Income

on Bank Deposits  1,747,178  1,054,920 

on Receivables  5,298,077  4,749,657 

on Others  –    567,450 

Unspent LiabiliƟes wriƩen back  38,098,618  –   

Insurance & Other Claims Received  17,316,281  –   

Miscellaneous Income  7,796,072  3,384,885 

Total  70,256,226  9,756,912 

NOTE 24 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Opening Inventory  264,988,834  181,671,532 

Add : Purchases  4,496,445,043  4,641,987,348 

Less : Inventory at the end of the year  341,137,493  264,988,834 

Cost of raw materials consumed  4,420,296,384  4,558,670,046

Details of Raw Materials Consumed

Yarn/Than  3,541,649,645  3,643,553,886 

Packing material  575,914,930  632,587,886 

ElasƟc, Accessories & Other Material  302,731,809  282,528,274 

Total  4,420,296,384  4,558,670,046

NOTE 25 PURCHASES OF TRADED GOODS

Hosiery Goods  316,284,307  292,599,792 

Garments  19,540,124  17,764,144 

Total  335,824,431  310,363,936 

NOTE 26 (INCREASE)/DECREASE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, 
WORKͳIN- PROGRESS AND STOCKͳINͳTRADE

Stock at the end of the year :

Finished Goods  1,450,480,674  1,363,932,931 

Traded Goods  31,809,219  19,371,783 

Work-in-Progress  1,046,306,492  1,069,174,536 

 2,528,596,385  2,452,479,250 

Stock at the beginning of the year :

Finished Goods  1,363,932,931  948,817,061 

Traded Goods  19,371,783  15,076,511 

Work-in-Progress  1,069,174,536  921,081,038 

 2,452,479,250  1,884,974,610 

Loss of Stock due to Fire :

Finished Goods –  29,585,783 

 2,528,596,385  1,855,388,827 

(76,117,135) (597,090,423)
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NOTE 26 (INCREASE)/DECREASE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, 
WORKͳIN- PROGRESS AND STOCKͳINͳTRADE

Details of Inventory :

Finished Goods

Hosiery Goods  1,450,480,674  1,363,932,931 

Traded Goods :

Garments  31,809,219  19,371,783 

Work-in-Progress :

Hosiery Goods  1,046,306,492  1,069,174,536 

NOTE 27 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Salaries, Wages and Bonus  143,873,589  117,738,607 

ContribuƟon to Provident and Other Funds  1,807,228  1,488,910 

Gratuity (Refer note 36)  1,792,318  1,217,636 

Staff Welfare Expenses  1,132,493  837,062 

Total  148,605,628  121,282,215

NOTE 28 FINANCE COST

Interest Expense  214,991,202  182,551,523 

Exchange difference to the extent considered as an adjustment to the borrowing cost  21,233,892  17,671,278 

Bank Charges  8,956,267  8,637,964 

Total  245,181,361  208,860,765 

NOTE 29 DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION EXPENSE

DepreciaƟon of Tangible assets  107,201,382  57,866,401 

AmorƟsaƟon of Intangible assets  4,548,851  8,427,109 

Total  111,750,233  66,293,510 

NOTE 30 OTHER EXPENSES

ConsumpƟon of stores and spares  1,299,131  727,876 

Sub-contracƟng /Job Worker expenses  1,456,323,181  1,476,796,667 

Excise duty – (70,223,292)

Power & Fuel (Including ` 6,629,400 for earlier year)  99,498,362  100,071,718 

Freight outwards and Forwarding expenses  71,259,803  59,719,364 

Rent  12,808,603  10,068,175 

Rates and Taxes  6,232,291  17,176,760 

Insurance  4,263,535  3,769,306 
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2013-14 2012-13

NOTE 30 OTHER EXPENSES (Contd.)

Repairs and Maintenance :

- Plant and Machinery  9,587,327  7,864,044 

- Others (Including ` 4,732,283 for earlier year)  24,446,199  9,657,555 

AdverƟsing  692,690,547  600,757,737 

Dealer's IncenƟve & Sales PromoƟon  108,458,669  101,935,585 

Business ConvenƟon  28,606,806  11,680,958 

Brokerage (Including ` 878,711 for earlier year)  119,846,545  94,751,008 

Travelling and Conveyance  55,271,912  51,047,310 

CommunicaƟon costs  14,921,710  10,205,261 

Legal and Professional fees  15,389,205  12,950,976 

Directors' Siƫng fees  400,000  400,000 

Payment to auditor (refer note below)  1,997,227  474,532 

Net foreign exchange loss  78,071,482 14,059,405 

Bad Debts/ advance wriƩen off  11,517,114  4,540,023 

Loss on sale of fixed assets (net)  165,023  2,746,874 

Loss of Stock due to fire  -    29,585,783 

Miscellaneous expenses  55,351,903  39,810,771 

Total  2,868,406,575  2,590,574,396

Note :

Payment to Auditor :

As auditor :

- For Statutory Audit  850,000  363,090 

- For Limited Reviews  625,000  30,309 

- For Others  250,000  –   

Other services  –    81,133 

Out of pocket expenses  52,525  –   

Service tax  219,702  –   

Total  1,997,227  474,532 

NOTE 31

The Income Tax Department had conducted a search and seizure operaƟon on the Company's various locaƟons from 
7th November, 2013 to 8th November, 2013 under secƟon 132 of the Income Tax Act, 1961. No order/demand, consequent 
to search operaƟon, has so far been received by the Company from the Income Tax Department and thus liability, if any, 
arising out of such search and seizure is not presently ascertainable. The Income Tax Department has seized ` 1,900,000 
during the search and seizure which is disclosed under Cash on Hand in Note 19.
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As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

NOTE 32 CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

EsƟmated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for (net 
of advances)

 16,950,000  950,000 

NOTE 33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

a) Demands / claims by various government authoriƟes and others not 
acknowledged as debts and contested by the government
Income Tax maƩers  1,567,760  1,567,760 

Sales Tax maƩers  40,218,098  37,786,265 

*  41,785,858  39,354,025 

b) Bank Guarantees outstanding   22,697,424  62,487,257 

c) LeƩer of Credits issued by the Banks    17,147,802 –

* The management believes that it is possible but not probable that acƟon will succeed and accordingly no provision there 
against is considered necessary

NOTE 34

During the year, the Company has challenged, before the Honorable High Court of CalcuƩa, the imposiƟon of entry tax by 
the State Government of West Bengal on receipt of materials from outside the state on the ground that such imposiƟon of 
entry tax is ultra vires / unconsƟtuƟonal. The Company has received a favorable interim order dated June 5, 2013 and the 
maƩer is presently sub judice.

NOTE 35 DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES AS 
DEFINED UNDER THE MSMED ACT, 2006 INCLUDED IN TRADE 
PAYABLES

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of accounƟng year  50,779,193  43,399,186 

Interest due on above  974,150  –   

Total  51,753,343  43,399,186 

Amount of interest paid by the Company to the suppliers in terms of secƟon 16 of 
the MSMED Act, 2006

 –    –   

Amount paid to the suppliers beyond the respecƟve due date  –    –   

Amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in payments (which have 
been paid but beyond the due date during the year) but without adding the interest 
specified under the Act

 –    –   

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounƟng year  974,150  –   

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 
years, unƟl such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small 
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deducƟble expenditure under 
secƟon 23 of this Act

 –    –   
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NOTE 36 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT (DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN)

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed at least five years or more of service 
is enƟtled to Gratuity on terms as per the provisions of The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Company has got an 
approved gratuity fund which has taken an insurance policy with Life Insurance CorporaƟon of India (LIC) to cover the 
gratuity liabiliƟes.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and 
the funded status and amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet for the plan.

2013-14 2012-13

Statement of Profit and Loss
Net employee benefit expense recognized in employee costs   

Current service cost  1,581,801  893,735 

Interest cost on benefit obligaƟon  1,013,421  632,773 

Expected return on plan assets  (1,117,263)  (825,976)

Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the year  314,359  517,104 

Net benefit expense  1,792,318  1,217,636 

Actual return on plan assets  1,020,224  825,976 

As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

Balance Sheet
Net Benefit liability / (asset)
Present value of defined benefit obligaƟon  12,666,499  9,853,957 

Fair value of plan assets  13,220,297  11,607,772 

Plan asset / (liability)  553,798  1,753,815 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligaƟon are as follows :

Opening defined benefit obligaƟon  9,853,957  7,909,665 

Current service cost  1,581,801  893,735 

Interest cost  1,013,421  632,773 

Benefits paid  -    (99,320)

Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligaƟon  217,320  517,104 

Closing defined benefit obligaƟon  12,666,499  9,853,957 

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows :

Opening fair value of plan assets  11,607,772  9,053,068 

Expected return  1,117,263  825,976 

ContribuƟons by employer  592,301  1,828,048 

Benefits paid –  (99,320)

Actuarial gains / (losses)  (97,039) –

Closing fair value of plan assets  13,220,297  11,607,772 

The Company expects to contribute ̀  1,000,000 (` 600,000) to Gratuity Fund in the next year.

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan 
assets are as follows :

Investments with insurer  100% 100%
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As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

The principal assumpƟons are shown below :

Discount rate 8.25% 8.00%

Expected rate of return on assets 9.00% 9.50%

Withdrawal Rates
(Varying between per annum depending upon the duraƟon and age of the 
employees)

1% - 8% 1% - 3%

As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

As at
March 31, 2012

As at
March 31, 2011

As at
March 31, 2010

Amounts for the current and 
previous four years are as 
follows :   

Defined benefit obligaƟon  12,666,499  9,853,957  7,909,665  5,305,927  4,385,304 

Plan assets  13,220,297  11,607,772  9,053,068  5,017,516  3,539,137 

Surplus / (deficit)  553,798  1,753,815  1,143,403  (865,182)  (1,511,011)

Experience (gain) / loss 
adjustments on plan liabiliƟes

 217,320  517,104  1,604,862  475,817  236,080 

Experience gain / (loss) 
adjustments on plan assets

 (97,039)  –    –    –    –   

The esƟmates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuaƟon, take account of inflaƟon, seniority, promoƟon and 
other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on the date, applicable to 
the year over which the obligaƟon is to be seƩled.

2013-14 2012-13

Defined ContribuƟon Plan :
The Company has recognised the following amount as an expense and included 
under, “ContribuƟon to Provident & Other Funds”.

ContribuƟon to Provident / Pension Funds    1,807,228  1,488,910 

NOTE 37 OPERATING LEASE 

Certain office premises, godowns, etc. are held on operaƟng lease. The leases range upto 3 years and are renewable for 
further year either mutually or at the opƟon of the Company. There is no escalaƟon clause in the lease agreement. There 
are no restricƟons imposed by lease agreements. There are no subleases. The leases are cancellable.

2013-14 2012-13

Lease payments made for the year  12,808,603  10,068,175 

NOTE 38 EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Profit as per Statement of Profit & Loss aƩributable to Equity Shareholders (a)  620,561,246  617,577,246 

Weighted average number of Equity Shares (in number) (b)  79,524,560  79,524,560 

Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share (a/b)  7.80  7.77 

(Nominal Value - ` 1 per share)
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NOTE 39 SEGMENT REPORTING 

The Company has re-assessed its business segments during the year. Accordingly, (a) Sales and (b) Services out of the 
primary business segment reported in the previous year are regrouped and considered as one single segment. Further, 
Power GeneraƟon segment reported in the previous years not considered as a separate segment as it is an insignificant 
acƟvity and not a separate line of business of the Company and Income from power generaƟon is presented as "Other 
OperaƟng Revenue".

In view of the above, there is only one primary business segment i.e. Garments & Hosiery goods and related services and 
hence no separate segment informaƟon is disclosed in this financial.

Secondary informaƟon is reported geographically.

Geographical segments

The Company primarily operates in India and therefore analysis of geographical segment is demonstrated into Indian and 
overseas operaƟon as under:        

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 For the year ended 31st March, 2013

India Overseas Total India Overseas Total

Revenue from 
OperaƟons (Gross)

 8,752,360,279  188,663,248  8,941,023,527  8,345,707,864  212,511,055  8,558,218,919 

Carrying amount :

Segment assets  6,334,629,998  39,436,457  6,374,066,455  5,988,567,288  33,620,786  6,022,188,074 

AddiƟons :

Tangible assets  135,301,620  –    135,301,620  330,974,280  –    330,974,280 

Intangible assets  –    –    –    4,325,157  –    4,325,157 

NOTE 40 DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND UNHEDGED FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

ParƟculars Purpose 

a) DerivaƟve outstanding as at the reporƟng date

Forward Contract OpƟon
NoƟonal amount USD 2,000,000 (31st March, 2013: USD 3,706,449) 
` 120,199,627 (31st March, 2013 : ` 201,591,179)

 Hedge of foreign currency loan

As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

b) ParƟculars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as on the balance sheet 
date, are as follows :     
Trade receivable  39,436,457  33,620,786 

NOTE 41 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Names of related parƟes and related party relaƟonship

Related parƟes where control exists

Subsidiary Companies Euro Fashion Inners InternaƟonal Pvt. Ltd.

Imoogi Fashions Pvt. Ltd.

(Amount in `)Notes to the Financial Statements



Annual Report   2014   Rupa & Company Limited 76

Fashioning India since 1968

NOTE 41 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (Contd.)

Names of related parƟes and related party relaƟonship

Related parƟes with whom transacƟons have taken place during the year

Key Management Personnel Mr. P. R. Agarwala   Chairman 

Mr. G. P. Agarwala   Vice Chairman 

Mr. K. B. Agarwal Managing Director 

Mr. Ramesh Agarwal  Execu ve Director 

Mr. Mukesh  Agarwal Execu ve Director 

RelaƟves of Key Management Personnel Late Baijnath Agarwal Father of Mr. P.R.Agarwala

Mr. Suresh Agarwal Son of Mr. P.R.Agarwala

Mr. Manish Agarwal Son of Mr. G.P.Agarwala

Mr. Ravi Agarwal  Son of Mr. K.B.Agarwal

Mr. Vikash Agarwal Son of Mr. K.B.Agarwal

Mr. Rajnish Agarwal Son of Mr. G.P.Agarwala

Mrs. ShanƟ Devi Agarwal Wife of Mr. P.R.Agarwala

Mrs. Puspa Devi Agarwal Wife of Mr. G.P.Agarwala

Mrs. Lalita Devi Agarwal Wife of Mr. K.B.Agarwal

Mrs. Seema Agarwal Wife of Mr. Ramesh Agarwal

Mrs. Seema Agarwal Wife of Mr. Mukesh Agarwal

Mrs. Sarita Patwari Daughter of Mr. G. P. Agarwala

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key 
management personnel or their relaƟves

Binod Hosiery

Salasar Projects and Estates Pvt. Ltd.

Sidhant Flats & Apartments  Pvt. Ltd.

Salasar Infrastructure Ltd.

Rupa Spinners Ltd.

Salasar Developers & Garments Pvt. Ltd.

Bajrangbali Projects Ltd.

Sidhant TexƟles Pvt. Ltd.

Ganesh Enclave Ltd.

Ravi Global Pvt. Ltd.

Kadambari Impex & Agency Pvt. Ltd.

Rajnish Enterprises Ltd.

Purvanchal Leasing Ltd.

Siddhant Credit Capital Ltd.

K B & Sons - HUF

Mukesh Kumar Agarwal - HUF

Ghanshyam Prasad Manish Kumar - HUF

Prahalad Rai Suresh Kumar - HUF
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Related Party TransacƟon

ParƟculars Party Nature of relaƟonship 2013-14 2012-13

Rent Mr. P. R. Agarwala Key Management Personnel  222,000  222,000 

Mr. G. P. Agarwala  114,000  114,000 

Mr. K. B. Agarwal  48,000  48,000 

Mr. Mukesh Agarwal  108,000  108,000 

 Shri Baijnath Agarwal RelaƟves of Key Management 
Personnel

 60,000  60,000 

Mr. Manish Agarwal  18,000  18,000 

Mr. Rajnish Agarwal  18,000  18,000 

Mrs. Puspa Devi Agarwal  18,000  18,000 

Salasar Infrastructure 
Ltd.

Enterprises owned or significantly 
influenced by key management 
personnel or their relaƟves

 108,000  108,000 

Rupa Spinners Ltd.  108,000  108,000 

Salasar Developers & 
Garments Pvt. Ltd.

 108,000  108,000 

Bajrangbali Projects Ltd.  108,000  108,000 

Sidhant TexƟles Pvt. Ltd.  114,000  114,000 

Ganesh Enclave Ltd.  108,000  108,000 

Ravi Global Pvt. Ltd.  114,000  114,000 

Kadambari Impex & 
Agency Pvt. Ltd.

 114,000  114,000 

Others  96,000  96,000 

Salary & Perquisites Mr. P. R. Agarwala Key Management Personnel  5,125,000  4,015,989 

Mr. G. P. Agarwala  3,300,000  3,419,664 

Mr. K. B. Agarwal  3,250,000  3,405,376 

Mr. Ramesh Agarwal  1,800,000  1,800,000 

Mr. Mukesh Agarwal  1,800,000  1,800,000 

Mr. Manish Agarwal RelaƟves of Key Management 
Personnel

 1,800,000  1,800,000 

Mr. Ravi Agarwal  1,800,000  1,800,000 

Mr. Vikash Agarwal  1,800,000  1,800,000 

Mr. Rajnish Agarwal  1,800,000  1,800,000 

Mr. Suresh Agarwal  480,000  480,000 

Sales Imoogi Fashions Pvt. Ltd. Subsidiary Company  5,334,241  3,085,509 

Euro Fashion Inners 
InternaƟonal Pvt. Ltd.

 90,506,301 –

Purchases Euro Fashion Inners 
InternaƟonal Pvt. Ltd.

Subsidiary Company  316,284,307 292,599,792
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Related Party TransacƟon

ParƟculars Party Nature of relaƟonship 2013-14 2012-13

Dividend Paid Mr. P. R. Agarwala Key Management Personnel  16,082,160 12,061,620

Mr. G. P. Agarwala  14,481,820 10,861,365

Mr. K. B. Agarwal  14,556,000 10,917,000

Others  3,577,560 2,683,170

Mr. Vikash Agarwal RelaƟves of Key Management 
Personnel

 3,510,880 2,633,160

Mr. Ravi Agarwal  3,485,260 2,613,945

Mr. Rajnish Agarwal  2,486,740 1,865,055

Mr. Manish Agarwal  2,465,100 1,848,825

Mr. Suresh Agarwal  2,133,140 1,599,855

Others  4,760,720 3,570,540

Rajnish Enterprises Ltd. Enterprises owned or significantly 
influenced by key management 
personnel or their relaƟves

 31,642,380 23,731,785

Purvanchal Leasing Ltd.  11,615,340 8,711,505

Others  5,800,000 4,350,000

Other LiabiliƟes Mr. P. R. Agarwala Key Management Personnel  1,536,138  9,419,936 

Mr. G. P. Agarwala  1,751,727  7,220,283 

Mr. K. B. Agarwal  3,544,070  4,495,871 

Mr. Ramesh Agarwal  1,808,384  818,779 

Mr. Mukesh Agarwal  2,358,694  2,252,143 

Mr. Manish Agarwal RelaƟves of Key Management 
Personnel

 4,960,225  4,535,961 

Mr. Rajnish Agarwal  3,374,024  3,430,902 

Mr. Ravi Agarwal  3,503,942  3,058,809 

Mr. Vikash Agarwal  2,238,321  1,296,268 

Others  708,793  512,531 

Binod Hosiery Enterprises owned or significantly 
influenced by key management 
personnel or their relaƟves

 108,000  108,000 

Sidhant TexƟles Pvt. Ltd.  –    819,000 

Ravi Global Pvt. Ltd.  –    864,000 

Kadambari Impex & 
Agency Pvt. Ltd.

 –    779,000 

Others  –    915,958 

Trade Payables Euro Fashion Inners 
InternaƟonal Pvt. Ltd.

Subsidiary Company  44,291,083  –   

Imoogi Fashions Pvt. Ltd. Subsidiary Company  33,004,211  15,069,036 

Euro Fashion Inners 
InternaƟonal Pvt. Ltd.

Subsidiary Company  –   5,735,003 
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Related Party TransacƟon

ParƟculars Party Nature of relaƟonship 2013-14 2012-13

Loans & Advances Salasar Developers & 
Garments Pvt. Ltd.

Enterprises owned or significantly 
influenced by key management 
personnel or their relaƟves

 30,400 52,000 

Long Term Loans & 
Advances - Security 
Deposits

Salasar Projects and 
Estates Pvt. Ltd.

Enterprises owned or significantly 
influenced by key management 
personnel or their relaƟves

 2,600,000  2,600,000 

Sidhant Flats & 
Apartments Pvt. Ltd.

 2,640,000  2,640,000 

Others  1,500,000  1,500,000 

Guarantees Given by 
Directors

Mr. P. R. Agarwala Key Management Personnel  152,222,222  254,444,444 

Mr. G. P. Agarwala  152,222,222  254,444,444 

Mr. K. B. Agarwal  152,222,222  254,444,444 

Note :

The remuneraƟon to the Key Management Personnel and relaƟves of the Key Management Personnel does not include 
provision made for Gratuity as they are determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.

2013-14 2012-13

ConsumpƟon
%

Value ConsumpƟon
%

Value

NOTE 42 IMPORTED AND INDIGENOUS RAW 
MATERIAL AND STORES & SPARES 
CONSUMED

Raw Materials

Imported 0%  –   0%  –   

Indigenous 100%  4,420,296,384 100%  4,558,670,046 

100%  4,420,296,384 100%  4,558,670,046 

Stores and Spares

Imported 0%  –   0%  –   

Indigenous 100%  1,299,131 100%  727,876 

100%  1,299,131 100%  727,876 

It is not possible to idenƟfy consumpƟon of spare parts separately and hence consumpƟon of stores and spares is shown 
above

2013-14 2012-13

NOTE 43 CIF VALUE OF IMPORTS

Packing Material –  164,778 

Stores & Spares  3,409,552 –

Capital Goods  135,510,926  75,569,861 
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2013-14 2012-13

NOTE 44 EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (ON ACCRUAL BASIS)

Finance Charges  17,661,193  23,210,284 

AdverƟsement  1,495,908  159,360 

Travelling Expenses –  4,973,569 

Professional Fees –  87,011 

NOTE 45 EARNINGS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (ON ACCRUAL BASIS)

Exports (FOB value)  188,663,248  212,511,055 

NOTE 46

The figures for previous year were audited by a firm of Chartered Accountants other than S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP. Previous 
year figures including those given in brackets have been regrouped/re-arranged wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Firm RegistraƟon No. 301003E
Chartered Accountants
per Bhaswar Sarkar P. R. Agarwala  G. P. Agarwala
a Partner Chairman   Vice-Chairman
Membership No. 055596
Place : Kolkata Priya Punjabi Agarwal  K. B. Agarwal
Date: 30th May, 2014 Company Secretary  Managing Director
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Independent Auditors' Report 
To the Board of Directors of
Rupa & Company Limited

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Rupa & Company Limited (the Company) and 
its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2014, and the consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss and the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounƟng policies and other explanatory informaƟon.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparaƟon of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the consolidated financial posiƟon, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in 
accordance with accounƟng principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility includes the design, implementaƟon 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparaƟon and presentaƟon of the consolidated financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with the Standards on AudiƟng issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Group’s preparaƟon and presentaƟon of the 
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effecƟveness of the enƟty’s internal control. An 
audit also includes evaluaƟng the appropriateness of accounƟng policies used and the reasonableness of the accounƟng 
esƟmates made by management, as well as evaluaƟng the overall presentaƟon of the consolidated financial statements. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, the consolidated financial 
statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounƟng principles generally accepted in India: 

(a) in the case of the consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2014;

(b) in the case of the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

(c) in the case of the consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of MaƩer

The Income tax department had conducted search and seizure operaƟon on the Company’s various locaƟons from 7th 
November 2013 to 8th November 2013. As informed, no order, consequent to such operaƟon, has so far been received by 
the Company and thus its impact, if any, on the Company’s consolidated financial statements, is presently not ascertainable. 
Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this maƩer.  

Other MaƩer

We did not audit total assets of ` 1,833,323,161 as at March 31, 2014, total revenues of ` 1,020,306,227 and net cash 
ouƞlows amounƟng to ̀  21,12,094 for the year then ended, included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements 
in respect of certain branches and subsidiaries, whose financial statements and other financial informaƟon have been 
audited by other auditors and whose reports have been furnished to us. Our opinion, in so far as it relates to the affairs of 
such branches and subsidiaries is based solely on the report of other auditors. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this 
maƩer.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP 
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm RegistraƟon Number : 301003E 
per Bhaswar Sarkar

Place of Signature : Kolkata Partner
Date : May 30, 2014  Membership Number : 055596
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 
as at 31st March, 2014 (Amount in `)

Notes As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Funds

Share Capital 3  79,629,060  79,629,060 
Reserves & Surplus 4  2,784,177,135  2,356,069,484 

 2,863,806,195  2,435,698,544 
Non-Current LiabiliƟes

Long Term Borrowings 5  104,444,444  152,222,222 
Deferred Tax LiabiliƟes 6  162,586,311  149,693,246 
Other Long Term LiabiliƟes 7  222,389,900  181,600,958 

 489,420,655  483,516,426 
Current LiabiliƟes

Short Term Borrowings 8  1,759,991,768  1,923,019,175 
Trade Payables 9  1,009,363,731  945,011,626 
Other Current LiabiliƟes 10  239,833,725  224,672,862 
Short Term Provisions 11  243,509,496  236,212,134 

 3,252,698,720  3,328,915,797 
 6,605,925,570  6,248,130,767 

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets 12  1,445,008,171  1,417,747,361 
Intangible Assets 13  3,916,319  8,515,170 
Capital Work-in-Progress  43,137,490  11,539,840 

Non-Current Investments 14  118,000  118,000 
Long Term Loans & Advances 15  153,886,965  165,653,944 
Other Non Current Assets 16  3,423,758  5,449,570 

 1,649,490,703  1,609,023,885 
Current Assets

Inventories 17  3,096,885,233  2,938,483,796 
Trade Receivables 18  1,632,768,500  1,463,811,719 
Cash & Bank Balances 19  59,259,568  59,872,997 
Short Term Loans & Advances 20  82,728,956  101,871,742 
Other Current Assets 21  84,792,610  75,066,628 

 4,956,434,867  4,639,106,882 
 6,605,925,570  6,248,130,767 

Summary of Significant AccounƟng Policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Firm RegistraƟon No. 301003E
Chartered Accountants
per Bhaswar Sarkar P. R. Agarwala  G. P. Agarwala
a Partner Chairman   Vice-Chairman
Membership No. 055596
Place : Kolkata Priya Punjabi Agarwal  K. B. Agarwal
Date: 30th May, 2014 Company Secretary  Managing Director
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(Amount in `)
Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss 
for the year ended 31st March, 2014

Notes 2013-14 2012-13

REVENUE

Revenue From OperaƟons (Gross) 22 9,043,692,881 8,705,464,816 

Less : Excise Duty – 415,551,706 

Revenue From OperaƟons (Net) 9,043,692,881 8,289,913,110 

Other Income 23 72,367,936 9,959,389 

Total Revenue 9,116,060,817 8,299,872,499 

EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed 24 4,634,501,435 4,818,938,200 

Purchases of traded goods 25 19,681,739 17,776,004 

(Increase) in inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and 
traded goods

26 (94,940,925) (649,827,886)

Employee Benefits Expense 27 164,625,299 134,594,979 

Finance Cost 28 246,961,631 210,140,286 

DepreciaƟon & AmorƟsaƟon expense 29 112,459,399 67,029,775 

Other Expenses 30 3,015,647,051 2,740,364,634 

Total Expenses 8,098,935,629 7,339,015,992 

Profit before tax 1,017,125,188 960,856,507 

Tax Expense

     Current Tax 343,525,075 292,075,606 

     Deferred Tax 12,893,065 20,986,740 

Profit for the year 660,707,048 647,794,161 

Earnings per Equity Share - Basic and Diluted                                                        
(Nominal value per equity share ` 1 )

38 8.31 8.15 

Summary of Significant AccounƟng Policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Firm RegistraƟon No. 301003E
Chartered Accountants
per Bhaswar Sarkar P. R. Agarwala  G. P. Agarwala
a Partner Chairman   Vice-Chairman
Membership No. 055596
Place : Kolkata Priya Punjabi Agarwal  K. B. Agarwal
Date: 30th May, 2014 Company Secretary  Managing Director
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 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 

A. CASH FLOW ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit Before Tax  1,017,125,188  960,856,507 

Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows   

(a) DepreciaƟon and AmorƟsaƟon  112,459,399  67,029,775 

(b) Finance Cost  246,961,631  210,140,286 

(c) Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (net)  172,813  2,746,874 

(d) Bad debts / advances wriƩen off  11,517,114  5,955,416 

(e) Unspent LiabiliƟes wriƩen back  (38,098,618) –

(f) Interest Income  (7,253,162)  325,759,177  (6,562,115)  279,310,236 

OperaƟng Profit before Working Capital Changes  1,342,884,365  1,240,166,743 

Changes in Working capital

(a) Increase in Other Long Term LiabiliƟes  40,788,942  36,794,920 

(b) Increase in Trade Payables  64,352,105  79,376,206 

(c) Increase in Other Current LiabiliƟes  37,708,432  122,473,506 

(d) (Increase) / Decrease in Short-term Loans & Advances  19,142,786  (9,691,076)

(e) Increase in Long-term Loans & Advances  (1,483,581)  (3,071,665)

(f) Increase in Inventories  (158,401,437)  (715,774,271)

(g) Increase in Trade Receivables  (180,473,895)  (200,778,715)

(h) Increase in Other Current Assets  (9,725,982)  (188,092,630)  (19,090,584)  (709,761,679)

Cash Generated from OperaƟons  1,154,791,735  530,405,064 

Less : (a) Direct Taxes Paid  (382,747,592)  (268,588,771)

Add : (b) Interest received from OperaƟng AcƟviƟes  5,505,984  4,939,745 

Net Cash from OperaƟng AcƟviƟes  777,550,127  266,756,038 

B. CASH FLOW ARISING FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(a) Sale of Fixed Assets  10,500  1,776,106 

(b) Interest received  1,747,178  1,622,370 

(c) Purchase of Fixed Assets  (156,459,960)  (322,821,916)

(d) Investement in Fixed Deposits (net)  (11,478,702)  5,127,816 

Net Cash used in InvesƟng AcƟviƟes  (166,180,984)  (314,295,624)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended 31st March, 2014 (Amount in `)
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 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 

C. CASH FLOW ARISING FORM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(a) Dividend and Dividend Tax paid (185,978,144)  (138,548,138)

(b) Finance Cost  (244,259,313)  (210,140,286)

(c) Proceed of Long Term Borrowings  70,000,000  100,000,000 

(d) Repayment of Long Term Borrowings  (102,222,222)  (107,777,778)

(e) Proceed / (Repayment) of ShortTerm Borrowings (net)  (163,027,407)  421,806,913 

Net Cash from Financing AcƟviƟes  (625,487,086)  65,340,711 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent (A+B+C)  (14,117,943)  17,801,125 

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year #  58,824,366  41,023,241 

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year #  44,706,423  58,824,366 

# as disclosed in Note 19 and Includes ` 945,694 (31st March, 2013 : ` 844,320) lying in unclaimed dividend account and 
` 1,900,000 (31st March, 2013 : Nil ) seized by the income tax department (refer note 31), being the amount available for 
restricted use.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Firm RegistraƟon No. 301003E
Chartered Accountants
per Bhaswar Sarkar P. R. Agarwala  G. P. Agarwala
a Partner Chairman   Vice-Chairman
Membership No. 055596
Place : Kolkata Priya Punjabi Agarwal  K. B. Agarwal
Date: 30th May, 2014 Company Secretary  Managing Director

(Amount in `)
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended 31st March, 2014
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1. PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

 The Consolidated Financial Statements which relate to Rupa & Company Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries 
(together referred to as the “Group”) have been prepared on the following basis :

 a) The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries are combined on a line-by-line basis by adding 
together the book values of like items of assets, liabiliƟes, income and expenditure, aŌer fully eliminaƟng intra 
group balances, intra group transacƟons and any unrealized profit / loss included therein, in accordance with 
AccounƟng Standards (AS-21), “Consolidated Financial Statements.

 b) The excess/shorƞall of cost to the Company of its investments in the subsidiary companies, over the net assets at 
the Ɵme of acquisiƟon in the subsidiaries as on the date of investment is recognized in the financial statements 
as goodwill/capital reserve as the case may be.

 c) The subsidiary companies considered in the financial statements are as follows :

Name % of VoƟng power 
as on 31.03.2014

% of VoƟng power 
as on 31.03.2013

Country of 
IncorporaƟon

Euro Fashion Inners InternaƟonal Pvt. Ltd. 100% 100% India

Imoogi Fashions Pvt. Ltd. 100% 100% India

 d) The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounƟng policies, except stated 
otherwise, for like transacƟons and are presented, to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Company’s 
standalone financial statements.

 e) The financial statements of the group enƟƟes used for the purpose of consolidaƟon are drawn up to the same 
reporƟng date as that of the Company i.e. year ended March 31, 2014.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 2.1 Basis of preparaƟon

  The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the generally 
accepted accounƟng principles in India under the historical cost convenƟon on accrual basis. These financial 
statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the accounƟng standards noƟfied under 
the Companies Act, 1956, read with General Circular 8/2014 dated 4th April, 2014, issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs.  The accounƟng policies adopted in the preparaƟon of consolidated financial statements are 
consistent with those of previous year.

 2.2 Use of EsƟmates

  The preparaƟon of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make 
judgments, esƟmates and assumpƟons that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets 
and liabiliƟes and the disclosure of conƟngent liabiliƟes, at the end of the reporƟng period. Although these 
esƟmates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and acƟons, uncertainty about 
these assumpƟons and esƟmates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets or liabiliƟes in future periods.

 2.3 Tangible fixed assets

  Fixed assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciaƟon and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The 
cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs, if capitalizaƟon criteria are met, and directly aƩributable cost of 
bringing the asset to its working condiƟon for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted 
in arriving at the purchase price.

  Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future 
benefits from the exisƟng asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on 
exisƟng fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are 
charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Amount in `)
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  Gains or losses arising from derecogniƟon of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net 

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss 
when the asset is derecognized.

  DepreciaƟon is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line method at the rates prescribed in Schedule XIV 
of the Companies Act, 1956, or at the rates determined based on the useful lives of the respecƟve assets, as 
esƟmated by the management, whichever is higher. The rates determined based on the useful lives coincides 
with the rates prescribed in Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.

  Leasehold land is amorƟzed on a straight line basis over the period of lease, i.e., 86 years.

 2.4 Intangible Assets

  Intangible Assets are stated at acquisiƟon cost, net of accumulated amorƟzaƟon and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Intangible assets are amorƟsed on a straight line basis over their esƟmated useful economic lives.

  Gains or losses arising from the reƟrement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense 
in the Statement of Profit & Loss. The useful lives over which intangible assets are amorƟsed are as under :

  Assets Useful Life

    (in years)

  Copyrights & Trade marks 10

  Computer soŌware 5

 2.5 Borrowing Costs

  Borrowing cost includes interest, amorƟzaƟon of ancillary costs incurred in connecƟon with the arrangement of 
borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded 
as an adjustment to the interest cost.

  Borrowing costs directly aƩributable to the acquisiƟon, construcƟon or producƟon of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substanƟal period of Ɵme to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the 
respecƟve asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

 2.6 Impairment

  The carrying amount of assets (tangible and intangible) is reviewed at each balance sheet date, to determine if 
there is any indicaƟon of impairment based on the internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized 
wherever the carrying amount of assets exceeds its recoverable amount which is the greater of net selling price 
and value in use of the respecƟve assets. In assessing the value in use, the esƟmated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the 
Ɵme value of money and risk specific to the asset. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped 
at the lowest levels for which there are separately idenƟfiable cash flows.  AŌer impairment, depreciaƟon is 
provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

 2.7 Investments

  Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on 
which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as 
long-term investments.

  On iniƟal recogniƟon, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly 
aƩributable acquisiƟon charges such as brokerage, fees and duƟes.

  Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined on an 
individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminuƟon in 
value is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments.
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  On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged 
or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

 2.8 Inventories

  Raw materials and packing materials are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. However, materials and 
other items held for use in the producƟon of inventories are not wriƩen down below cost if the finished products 
in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of raw materials and packing 
materials is determined on a first in first out basis.

  Work-in-Progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct 
materials and labour and a proporƟon of manufacturing overheads based on normal operaƟng capacity. Cost of 
Work-in-Progress is determined on First in First out basis and cost of finished goods is determined on Retail sales 
price method.

  Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present locaƟon and condiƟon. Cost of traded goods is determined 
on First in First out basis.

  Net realizable value is the esƟmated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less esƟmated costs of 
compleƟon and esƟmated costs necessary to make the sale.

 2.9 Foreign Currency TransacƟons

  IniƟal RecogniƟon

  Foreign currency transacƟons are recorded in the reporƟng currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount 
the exchange rate between the reporƟng currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transacƟon.

  Conversion

  Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporƟng date. Non-
monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported 
using the exchange rate at the date of the transacƟon. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value 
or other similar valuaƟon denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date 
when such value was determined.

  Exchange differences on restatement of all other monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit & 
Loss.

  Forward Exchange Contracts

  The premium or discount arising at the incepƟon of forward exchange contracts entered into to hedge an exisƟng 
asset/liability, is amorƟsed as expense or income over the life of the contract. Exchange differences on such a 
contract are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss in the reporƟng period in which the exchange rates 
change. Any profit or loss arising on cancellaƟon or renewal of such a forward exchange contract are recognised 
as income or as expense for the period.

 2.10  Revenue RecogniƟon

  Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the 
revenue can be reliably measured.

  Sale of goods : Sales are recognised when the substanƟal risks and rewards of ownership in the goods are 
transferred to the buyer and goods are uncondiƟonally handed over to the transporters for delivery as per the 
terms of the contract. Sales are net of discounts, incenƟves,  rebates and sales taxes. The Group collects sales 
taxes and value added taxes (VAT) on behalf of the government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits 
flowing to the Group. Hence, they are excluded from revenues.

  Sale of Services : In contracts involving the rendering of services, revenue is measured using the proporƟonate 
compleƟon method.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Amount in `)
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  Interest : Interest income is recognized on a Ɵme proporƟon basis taking into account the amount outstanding 
and the applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head “other income” in the statement of 
profit and loss.

  Dividend : Dividend income is recognized when the Group’s right to receive dividend is established by the 
reporƟng date.

  Export IncenƟves : Export incenƟves are recognised when the right to receive such incenƟves as per the 
applicable terms is established in respect of the exports made and when there is no significant uncertainty 
regarding the ulƟmate realisaƟon / uƟlisaƟon of such incenƟves.

  Insurance and other claims due to uncertainty in realisaƟon are accounted for on acceptance basis.

 2.11  Employee Benefits

  (i) Provident Fund : ReƟrement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribuƟon scheme. The 
Group has no obligaƟon, other than the contribuƟon payable to the provident fund. The Group recognizes 
contribuƟon payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the 
related service.

  (ii) Gratuity : The Group operates defined benefit plan for its employees, viz., gratuity. The costs of providing 
benefits under this plan is determined on the basis of actuarial valuaƟon at each year-end. Actuarial valuaƟon 
is carried out using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses is recognized in full in the 
period in which they occur in the statement of profit and loss.

 2.12  Taxes on Income

  Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be 
paid to the tax authoriƟes in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing 
in the respecƟve tax jurisdicƟons where the Group operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the 
amount are those that are enacted or substanƟvely enacted, at the reporƟng date.

  Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of Ɵming differences between taxable income and accounƟng income 
originaƟng during the current year and reversal of Ɵming differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax is 
measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substanƟvely enacted at the reporƟng date.

  Deferred tax liabiliƟes are recognized for all taxable Ɵming differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for 
deducƟble Ɵming differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situaƟons where the Group has 
unabsorbed depreciaƟon or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual 
certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized against future taxable profits.

  At each reporƟng date, the Group re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes unrecognized 
deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, 
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporƟng date. The Group writes-down the 
carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as 
the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be 
realized. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as 
the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

 2.13  Provisions and ConƟngent LiabiliƟes

  Provisions : A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligaƟon as a result of past event, it is 
probable that an ouƞlow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to seƩle the obligaƟon and 
a reliable esƟmate can be made of the amount of the obligaƟon. Provisions are not discounted to their present 
value and are determined based on the best esƟmate required to seƩle the obligaƟon at the reporƟng date. 
These esƟmates are reviewed at each reporƟng date and adjusted to reflect the current best esƟmates.

(Amount in `)Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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  ConƟngent LiabiliƟes : A conƟngent liability is a possible obligaƟon that arises from past events whose existence 
will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the 
control of the Group or a present obligaƟon that is not recognized because it is not probable that an ouƞlow 
of resources will be required to seƩle the obligaƟon. A conƟngent liability also arises in extremely rare cases 
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not 
recognize a conƟngent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

 2.14  OperaƟng Lease

  Leases where the lessor effecƟvely retains substanƟally all the risks and benefits of the ownership of the leased 
assets are classified as operaƟng leases. OperaƟng lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement 
of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

 2.15  Government Grants

  Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the Group 
will comply with the condiƟons aƩached to them, and the grant/subsidy will be received.

  When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognized as income on a systemaƟc basis in the statement 
of profit and loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs, which they are intended to 
compensate.

  Where the grant or subsidy relates to an asset, its value is deducted from the gross value of the asset concerned 
in arriving at the carrying amount of the related asset.

  Government grants of the nature of promoter's contribuƟon are credited to Capital reserve and treated as a part 
of Shareholder's funds.

 2.16  Segment ReporƟng

  Based on the synergies, risks and returns associated with business operaƟons and in terms of AccounƟng 
Standard – 17, the Group is predominantly engaged in a single segment of Garments & Hosiery goods and 
related services during the year. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in which customers 
of the Group are located.

 2.17  Cash and Cash Equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-
term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

 2.18  Earnings Per Share

  Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period aƩributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

  For the purpose of calculaƟng diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period aƩributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for 
the effects of all diluƟve potenƟal equity shares.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Amount in `)
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As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

NOTE 3 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised :

200,000,000 (31st March, 2013 : 200,000,000) Equity Shares of ` 1/- each  200,000,000  200,000,000 

Issued :

79,733,560 (31st March, 2013 : 79,733,560) Equity Shares of ` 1/- each  79,733,560  79,733,560 

Subscribed and paid up :

79,524,560 (31st March, 2013 : 79,524,560) Equity Shares of ` 1/- each, fully paid-up  79,524,560  79,524,560 

209,000 (31st March, 2013 : 209,000) Forfeited Shares of ` 1/- each ` 0.50/- per 
share paid up

 104,500  104,500 

 79,629,060  79,629,060 

a) There is no change in the number of shares in the current year and last year.

b) Terms / Rights aƩached in Equity Shares

 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 1/- per share. Each holder of equity shares 
is enƟtled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupee. The dividend proposed 
by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General MeeƟng.
In the event of liquidaƟon of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be enƟtled to receive remaining assets 
of the Company aŌer distribuƟon of all preferenƟal amounts. The distribuƟon will be in proporƟon to the number of 
equity shares held by the shareholders.

 During the year ended March 31, 2014 the Company has proposed a final dividend of ` 2.50 per share (31st March, 
2013 : ` 2 per share).

c) Aggregate number of shares issued for consideraƟon other than cash during the period of five year immediately 
preceeding the reporƟng date.

No. of Shares

As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

Equity Shares alloƩed as fully paid up pursuant to contracts for consideraƟon 
other than cash

–  19,483,560

 The shares were issued other than cash in the year 2008-09. Accordingly, the disclosure for the same is not made in 
2013-14.

d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

No. of Shares  % No. of Shares  % 

Equity Shares of ` 1/- each, fully paid up
Rajnish Enterprises Ltd.  15,821,190 19.89%  15,821,190 19.89%
Karuna Impex Enterprises Limited  8,650,000 10.88%  8,650,000 10.88%
Prahlad Rai Agarwala  8,041,080 10.11%  8,041,080 10.11%
Kunj Bihari Agarwal  7,278,000 9.15%  7,278,000 7.54%
Ghanshyam Prasad Agarwala  7,240,910 9.11%  7,240,910 7.54%
Purvanchal Leasing Ltd.  5,807,670 7.30%  5,807,670 7.30%

 As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members as on 31st March, 2014, the above 
shareholding represents legal ownership of shares.

(Amount in `)Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

NOTE 4 RESERVES & SURPLUS

Capital Subsidy

Balance as per the last financial statement  6,075,040  6,075,040 

General Reserve

Balance as per the last financial statement  227,174,041  197,174,041 

Add : Transferred from Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss  100,000,000  30,000,000 

Balance as at the end of the year  327,174,041  227,174,041 

SecuriƟes Premium Account

Balance as per the last financial statement  688,030,890  688,030,890 

Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss

Balance as per the last financial statement  1,434,789,513  1,003,074,870 

Profit for the year  660,707,048  647,794,161 

Less : AppropriaƟons

Proposed final equity dividend (` 2.50 (31st March, 2013 : ` 2) per share)  198,811,400  159,049,120 

Tax on proposed equity dividend  33,787,997  27,030,398 

Transfer to General Reserve  100,000,000  30,000,000 

Total AppropriaƟons  332,599,397  216,079,518 

Net Surplus in the Statement of Profit & Loss  1,762,897,164  1,434,789,513 

Total Reserves & Surplus  2,784,177,135  2,356,069,484 

Non Current PorƟon Current MaturiƟes

As at
March 31, 

2014

As at
March 31, 

2013

As at
March 31, 

2014

As at
March 31, 

2013

NOTE 5 LONG TERM BORROWINGS

Secured :

Term Loans

Indian Rupee loans from Banks  104,444,444  152,222,222  117,777,778  102,222,222 

 104,444,444  152,222,222  117,777,778  102,222,222 

Less : Amount disclosed under the head "Other Current 
LiabiliƟes" (Note 10)

 –    –   (117,777,778) (102,222,222)

 104,444,444  152,222,222  –    –   

Term loan from a bank is secured by first charge by way of hypothecaƟon of movable fixed assets and mortgage of immovable 
fixed assets of Domjur Unit. Further term loan of ` 80,000,000 (31st March, 2013 : ` 160,000,000) is secured by personal 
guarantee of 3 Directors of the Company and Corporate Guarantee given by Rupa Global Private Limited and term loan of 
` 72,222,222 (31st March, 2013 : ` 94,444,444) is secured by personal guarantee of 3 Directors of the Company.

Term loan of ` 80,000,000 (31st March, 2013 : ` 160,000,000) is repayable in quarterly instalments of ` 20,000,000 by 13th 
March, 2015 and carries interest @12.50% per annum. Term Loan of ` 72,222,222 (31st March, 2013 : ` 94,444,444) is 
repayable in 18 equal quarterly instalments of ` 5,555,556 by 14th June, 2017 and carries interest @ 12.40% per annum. 
Term Loan of ` 70,000,000 (31st March, 2013 : ` NIL) is repayable in 18 equal quarterly instalments of ` 3,888,889 starƟng 
from 28th June, 2014 and ending on 28th September, 2019 and carries interest @ 12.30% per annum.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Amount in `)
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As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

NOTE 6 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES  

Fixed Assets : Impact of difference between tax depreciaƟon and depreciaƟon / 
amorƟsaƟon charged for the financial reporƟng

 162,586,311  149,693,246 

Deferred Tax LiabiliƟes  162,586,311  149,693,246 

NOTE 7 OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Security Deposits from Customers  222,389,900  181,600,958 
 222,389,900  181,600,958 

NOTE 8 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS  

Secured :
From Banks

Cash Credit  599,763,647  414,844,336 
Working Capital Demand Loans

Indian Rupee loans  1,040,028,494  880,000,000 
Foreign Currency loans  120,199,627  628,174,839 

 1,759,991,768  1,923,019,175 

Cash Credit including Working Capital Demand Loan from banks amounƟng to ` 1,703,209,567 (31st March, 2013 : 
` 1,873,582,710) are secured by hypothecaƟon of inventories, book debts and other current assets and further secured 
by second charge of movable and immovable fixed assets of Domjur Unit of the Company and Cash Credit amounƟng to 
` 56,782,201 (31st March, 2013 : ` 49,436,465) are secured against hypothecaƟon of enƟre current assets and equitable 
mortgage of land at Tirpur of the subsidiary company Euro Fashion Inners InternaƟonal Private Limited.

Working Capital Demand Loans are repayable in 7 days to 360 days and carries interest @ 4.16% p.a. to 10.85% p.a. (31st 
March, 2013 : 4.00% p.a. to 11.50% p.a.)

Cash Credit are repayable on demand and carries interest @ 10.50% p.a. to 12.50% p.a. (31st March, 2013: 11.25 % p.a. to 
13.25% p.a.)

NOTE 9 TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 35)  51,753,343  43,399,186 
Due to Others  957,610,388  901,612,440 

 1,009,363,731  945,011,626 

(Amount in `)Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 10 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES  

Capital Creditors  1,252,274  4,060,474 
Current MaturiƟes of Long Term Borrowings (Note 5) 117,777,778  102,222,222 
Unpaid dividends (to be credited to Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund as and when due) 945,694  844,320 
Advances from customers  20,805,749  16,435,653 
Interest Accrued but not due on borrowings  4,613,991  1,911,672 
Statutory dues payable  68,083,875  64,869,218 
Book overdraŌ in Current Account  2,917,737  3,022,148 
Payable to employees 22,548,616  385,952 
Others  888,011  30,921,203 

239,833,725  224,672,862 
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As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

NOTE 11 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Provision of Income tax (Net of Advance)  10,910,099  50,132,616 

Proposed Equity Dividend  198,811,400  159,049,120 

Tax on proposed Equity dividend  33,787,997  27,030,398 

243,509,496  236,212,134 

 Land Buildings Plant and 
Machinery

Furniture 
and 

Fixtures

Vehicles Office 
Equipment

Total

 Freehold Lease Hold

NOTE 12 TANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost

As at April 1, 2012  58,621,375  13,023,384  425,151,381  757,382,422  45,251,912  28,793,553  35,657,011  1,363,881,038 

AddiƟons  19,887,594  –    161,543,189  117,065,635  11,083,111  13,890,266  7,940,794  331,410,589 

Disposals  –    –    –    3,712,344  177,664  5,572,656  183,638  9,646,302 

As at March 31, 2013  78,508,969  13,023,384  586,694,570  870,735,713  56,157,359  37,111,163  43,414,167  1,685,645,325 

AddiƟons  23,064,814  –    25,948,776  72,128,773  3,803,029  5,790,023  4,569,255  135,304,670 

Disposals  –    –    –    168,380  –    37,678  40,075  246,133 

As at March 31, 2014  101,573,783  13,023,384  612,643,346  942,696,106  59,960,388  42,863,508  47,943,347  1,820,703,862 

DepreciaƟon

As at April 1, 2012  –    –    38,693,818  126,081,579  21,566,912  9,195,467  18,930,844  214,468,620 

Charge for the year  –    –    10,991,106  38,137,175  3,426,984  3,243,057  2,754,344  58,552,666 

Disposals  –    –    –    2,085,681  39,204  2,987,230  11,207  5,123,322 

As at March 31, 2013  –    –    49,684,924  162,133,073  24,954,692  9,451,294  21,673,981  267,897,964 

Charge for the year  –    605,740 *  13,840,493  82,496,594  3,619,437  3,876,791  3,421,493  107,860,548 

Disposals  –    –    35,774  –    19,388  7,659  62,821 

As at March 31, 2014  –    605,740  63,525,417  244,593,893  28,574,129  13,308,697  25,087,815  375,695,691 

Net Block

At March 31, 2013  78,508,969  13,023,384  537,009,646  708,602,640  31,202,667  27,659,869  21,740,186  1,417,747,361 

At March 31, 2014  101,573,783  12,417,644  549,117,929  698,102,213  31,386,259  29,554,811  22,855,532  1,445,008,171 

* includes ` 454,305 for earlier years.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Amount in `)
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 Copyrights 
and 

Trademarks 

 Computer 
SoŌware 

Total

NOTE 13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost

At April 1, 2012  65,000,000  24,924,735  89,924,735 

AddiƟons –  4,325,157  4,325,157 

At March 31, 2013  65,000,000  29,249,892  94,249,892 

At March 31, 2014  65,000,000  29,249,892  94,249,892 

AmorƟsaƟon

At April 1, 2012  56,501,370  20,756,243  77,257,613 

Charge for the year  6,500,000  1,977,109  8,477,109 

At March 31, 2013  63,001,370  22,733,352  85,734,722 

Charge for the year  1,998,630  2,600,221  4,598,851 

At March 31, 2014  65,000,000  25,333,573  90,333,573 

Net Block

At March 31, 2013  1,998,630  6,516,540  8,515,170 

At March 31, 2014 –  3,916,319  3,916,319 

As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

NOTE 14 NONͳCURRENT INVESTMENTS (FULLY PAID UP) (AT COST)

Trade Investments

Unquoted Equity Shares

Investment in Others

1,800 (31st March, 2013 : 1,800) Equity Shares of ` 10 each in West Bengal Hosiery 
Park Infrastructure Limited

 18,000  18,000 

 18,000  18,000 

Non-Trade Investments

In Mutual Funds (quoted)

10,000 (31st March, 2013 : 10,000) Mutual Fund Units of ` 10 each in Morgan 
Stanley Growth Fund

 100,000  100,000 

 100,000  100,000 

 118,000  118,000 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments  100,000  100,000 

Market Value of quoted investments  734,130  631,780 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  18,000  18,000 

(Amount in `)Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

NOTE 15 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Unsecured, considered good

Capital Advances  140,548,972  153,799,532 

Security Deposits  13,337,993  11,854,412 

 153,886,965  165,653,944 

NOTE 16 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

Unsecured, considered good

Non-Current bank balances (Note 19)  3,423,758  5,449,570 

 3,423,758  5,449,570 

NOTE 17 INVENTORIES

(At lower of cost and net realisable value)

Raw Materials & Packing Materials  381,689,453  318,228,941 

Work-in-Progress  1,090,321,856  1,094,483,004 

Finished Goods  1,593,064,705  1,506,400,068 

Traded Goods  31,809,219  19,371,783 

 3,096,885,233  2,938,483,796 

Note

The above includes Stock in transit

Raw Material 16,930,556 8,576,609

Finished Goods 7,526,118 2,250,662

NOTE 18 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Unsecured, considered good

Outstanding for a period exceeding 6 months from the date they are due for 
payment

 27,915,891  23,703,980 

Other receivables  1,604,852,609  1,440,107,739 

 1,632,768,500  1,463,811,719 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Amount in `)
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As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

NOTE 19 CASH AND BANK BALANCES  

Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash on hand (Refer Note 31)  4,797,684  1,593,628 

Balances with Banks

On current accounts  30,101,265  47,314,774 

On Cash Credit Account  8,861,780 –

Unpaid dividend account  945,694  844,320 

Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months –  9,071,644 

 44,706,423  58,824,366 

Other bank balances (*)

Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months –  1,048,631 

Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months  17,976,903  5,449,570 

 17,976,903  6,498,201 

Less : Amount disclosed under "Other Non-Current Assets" (Note 16) (3,423,758) (5,449,570)

 14,553,145  1,048,631 

 59,259,568  59,872,997 

(*) Held as lien by bank against bank guarantees

NOTE 20 SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES

Unsecured, considered good

Advances recoverable in cash or kind 80,932,927 91,215,586 

Other loans and advances :

Prepaid Expenses 898,694  8,660,575 

Loans to Employees 897,335 1,995,581 

Total 82,728,956  101,871,742 

NOTE 21 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Unsecured, considered good

Claims & Refund Receivable  77,792,610  75,066,628 

Forward Contract Receivable  7,000,000 –

 84,792,610  75,066,628 

(Amount in `)Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2013-14 2012-13

NOTE 22 REVENUE

Revenue from OperaƟons  

Sale of products :

Finished goods 8,338,728,872 8,113,712,964 

Semi finished goods 164,942,661 43,695,291 

Traded goods 357,547,272 347,700,074 

Sale of Services 137,342,179 156,742,414 

Other OperaƟng Revenue :

Sale of Power 8,970,900 9,616,195 

Scrap Sale 8,087,467 6,398,163 

Sales Tax Subsidy 13,762,482 12,446,609 

Export IncenƟve 14,311,048 15,153,106 

Revenue from OperaƟons (Gross) 9,043,692,881 8,705,464,816 

Less : Excise Duty – 415,551,706 

Revenue from OperaƟons (Net) 9,043,692,881 8,289,913,110 

Note : Excise Duty on sales amounƟng to Nil (March 31, 2013 : ` 415,551,706) has been reduced from sales in Statement of 
profit & loss  and excise duty on increase/(decrease) in stock amounƟng to Nil (March 31, 2013 : ` (74,285,304)) has been 
considered as income/expense in note 30 of financial statements.

Hosiery products has been exempted from excise duty w.e.f. 1st March, 2013 by Government of India.

Sales are net of discount and rebates amounƟng to ` 609,879,696 (31st March, 2013 : ` 514,768,379)

Details of product sold :

Finished Goods Sold

Hosiery Goods 8,338,728,872 8,113,712,964 

Semi Finished Goods Sold

Processed Yarn 28,069,328 3,087,214 

Processed Fabric 136,873,333 40,608,077 

164,942,661 43,695,291 

Traded Goods :

Hosiery Goods 345,606,154 331,895,944 

Garments 11,941,118 15,804,130 

357,547,272 347,700,074 

Details of Services rendered :

Dyeing, Bleaching & Kniƫng 137,342,179 156,742,414 

8,998,560,984 8,661,850,743 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Amount in `)
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2013-14 2012-13

NOTE 23 OTHER INCOME

Interest Income

on Bank Deposits 1,747,178 1,054,920 

on Receivables 5,505,984 4,939,745 

on Others – 567,450 

Unspent LiabiliƟes wriƩen back 38,098,618 –

Insurance & Other Claims Received 17,316,281 –

Miscellaneous Income 9,699,875 3,397,274 

Total 72,367,936 9,959,389 

NOTE 24 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Opening inventory 318,228,941 222,696,773 

Add : Purchases 4,697,961,947 4,914,470,368 

Less : Inventory at the end of the year 381,689,453 318,228,941 

Cost of raw materials consumed 4,634,501,435 4,818,938,200 

Details of Raw Materials Consumed

Yarn/Than 3,694,847,070 3,843,774,298 

Packing material 612,164,273 666,049,524 

ElasƟc, Accessories & Other Material 327,490,092 309,114,378 

Total 4,634,501,435 4,818,938,200 

NOTE 25 PURCHASES OF TRADED GOODS

Hosiery Goods 141,615 11,860 

Garments 19,540,124 17,764,144 

Total 19,681,739 17,776,004 

NOTE 26 (INCREASE)/DECREASE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, 
WORKͳIN- PROGRESS AND STOCKͳINͳTRADE

Stock at the end of the year :

Finished Goods 1,593,064,705 1,506,400,068 

Traded Goods 31,809,219 19,371,783 

Work-in-Progress 1,090,321,856 1,094,483,004 

2,715,195,780 2,620,254,855 

Stock at the beginning of the year :

Finished Goods 1,506,400,068 1,039,199,587 

Traded Goods 19,371,783 15,076,511 

Work-in-Progress 1,094,483,004 945,736,654 

2,620,254,855 2,000,012,752 

Loss of Stock due to Fire :

Finished Goods – 29,585,783 

2,620,254,855 1,970,426,969 

(94,940,925) (649,827,886)

(Amount in `)Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2013-14 2012-13

NOTE 26 (INCREASE)/DECREASE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, 
WORKͳIN- PROGRESS AND STOCKͳINͳTRADE

Details of inventory :

Finished Goods

Hosiery Goods 1,593,064,705 1,506,400,068 

Traded Goods :

Garments 31,809,219 19,371,783 

Work-in-Progress :

Cut Pieces 1,090,321,856 1,094,483,004 

NOTE 27 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 159,387,225 130,421,999 

ContribuƟon to Provident and Other Funds 1,870,035 1,653,382 

Gratuity (Refer note 36) 1,792,318 1,217,636 

Staff Welfare Expenses 1,575,721 1,301,962 

Total 164,625,299 134,594,979 

NOTE 28 FINANCE COST

Interest Expense 216,595,374 183,677,016 

Exchange difference to the extent considered as an adjustment to the borrowing cost 21,233,892 17,671,278 

Bank Charges 9,132,365 8,791,992 

Total 246,961,631 210,140,286 

NOTE 29 DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION EXPENSE

DepreciaƟon of Tangible Assets 107,860,548 58,552,666 

AmorƟsaƟon of Intangible Assets 4,598,851 8,477,109 

Total 112,459,399 67,029,775 

NOTE 30 OTHER EXPENSES

ConsumpƟon of stores and spares 1,299,131 2,731,013 

Sub-contracƟng /Job Worker expenses 1,529,242,456 1,562,956,964 

Excise  duty – (74,285,304)

Power & Fuel (Including ` 6,629,400 for earlier year) 99,835,857 100,426,280 

Freight outwards and Forwarding expenses 76,083,710 62,324,047 

Rent 12,928,603 10,188,175 

Rates and taxes 6,317,649 17,413,027 

Insurance 4,477,957 3,923,642 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Amount in `)
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2013-14 2012-13

NOTE 30 OTHER EXPENSES (Contd.)

Repairs and Maintenance :

- Plant and Machinery 9,587,327 7,864,044 

- Others (Including ` 4,732,283 for earlier year) 24,986,226 10,185,455 

AdverƟsing 734,406,101 636,211,537 

Dealer's IncenƟve & Sales PromoƟon 123,705,683 117,286,724 

Business ConvenƟon 28,606,806 11,795,774 

Brokerage and discounts (Including ` 878,711 for earlier year) 121,179,745 96,153,731 

Travelling and Conveyance 61,759,499 56,062,661 

CommunicaƟon costs 14,945,431 10,236,110 

Legal and Professional fees 16,031,867 13,461,590 

Directors' Siƫng fees 400,000 400,000 

Payment to auditor (refer note below) 2,113,520 519,340 

Net foreign exchange loss 78,071,482 14,059,405 

Bad Debts/ advance wriƩen off 11,517,114 5,955,416 

Loss on sale of fixed assets (net) 172,813 2,746,874 

Loss of Stock due to fire – 29,585,783 

Miscellaneous expenses 57,978,074 42,162,346 

Total 3,015,647,051 2,740,364,634 

Note :

Payment to Auditor :

As auditor :

- For Statutory Audit 943,500 348,632 

- For Limited Reviews 625,000 31,470 

- For Others 250,000 –

Other services 10,000 82,108 

Out of pocket expenses 52,525 –

Service tax 232,495  57,130 

Total 2,113,520 519,340 

NOTE 31

The Income Tax Department had conducted a search and seizure operaƟon on the Company's various locaƟons from 
7th November, 2013 to 8th November, 2013 under secƟon 132 of the Income Tax Act, 1961. No order/demand, consequent 
to search operaƟon, has so far been received by the Company from the Income Tax Department and thus liability, if any, 
arising out of such search and seizure is not presently ascertainable. The Income Tax Department has seized ` 1,900,000 
during the search and seizure which is disclosed under Cash on Hand in Note 19.

As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

NOTE 32 CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

EsƟmated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for (net 
of advances)

 16,950,000  950,000 

(Amount in `)Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

NOTE 33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

a) Demands / claims by various government authoriƟes and others not 
acknowledged as debts and contested by the government
Income Tax maƩers  2,345,980  2,125,910 

Sales Tax maƩers  40,218,098  37,786,265 

ESIC maƩers  39,967  39,967 

*  42,604,045  39,952,142 

b) Bank Guarantees outstanding   22,697,424  62,487,257 

c) LeƩer of Credits issued by the Banks    17,147,802 –

* The management believes that it is possible but not probable that acƟon will succeed and accordingly no provision there 
against is considered necessary

NOTE 34

During the year, the Company has challenged, before the Honourable High Court of CalcuƩa, the imposiƟon of entry tax by 
the State Government of West Bengal on receipt of materials from outside the state on the ground that such imposiƟon of 
entry tax is ultra vires / unconsƟtuƟonal. The Company has received a favourable interim order dated June 5, 2013 and the 
maƩer is presently sub judice.

NOTE 35 DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES AS 
DEFINED UNDER THE MSMED ACT, 2006 INCLUDED IN TRADE 
PAYABLES

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of accounƟng year  50,779,193  43,399,186 

Interest due on above  974,150  –   

Total  51,753,343  43,399,186 

Amount of interest paid by the Group to the suppliers in terms of secƟon 16 of the 
MSMED Act, 2006

 –    –   

Amount paid to the suppliers beyond the respecƟve due date  –    –   

Amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in payments (which have 
been paid but beyond the due date during the year) but without adding the interest 
specified under the Act

 –    –   

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounƟng year  974,150  –   

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 
years, unƟl such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small 
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deducƟble expenditure under 
SecƟon 23 of this Act

 –    –   

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Amount in `)
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NOTE 36 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT (DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN)

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed at least five years or more of service is 
enƟtled to Gratuity on terms as per the provisions of The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Group has got an approved 
gratuity fund which has taken an insurance policy with Life Insurance CorporaƟon of India (LIC) to cover the gratuity liabiliƟes.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and 
the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the plan.

2013-14 2012-13

Statement of profit and loss
Net employee benefit expense recognized in employee costs   

Current service cost  1,581,801  893,735 

Interest cost on benefit obligaƟon  1,013,421  632,773 

Expected return on plan assets  (1,117,263)  (825,976)

Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the year  314,359  517,104 

Net benefit expense  1,792,318  1,217,636 

Actual return on plan assets  1,020,224  825,976 

As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

Balance sheet
Net Benefit liability / (asset)
Present value of defined benefit obligaƟon  12,666,499  9,853,957 

Fair value of plan assets  13,220,297  11,607,772 

Plan asset / (liability)  553,798  1,753,815 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligaƟon are as follows :

Opening defined benefit obligaƟon  9,853,957  7,909,665 

Current service cost  1,581,801  893,735 

Interest cost  1,013,421  632,773 

Benefits paid  -    (99,320)

Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligaƟon  217,320  517,104 

Closing defined benefit obligaƟon  12,666,499  9,853,957 

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows :

Opening fair value of plan assets  11,607,772  9,053,068 

Expected return  1,117,263  825,976 

ContribuƟons by employer  592,301  1,828,048 

Benefits paid –  (99,320)

Actuarial gains / (losses)  (97,039) –

Closing fair value of plan assets  13,220,297  11,607,772 

The Group expects to contribute ` 1,000,000 (` 600,000) to Gratuity Fund in the next year.

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan 
assets are as follows :

Investments with insurer  100% 100%

(Amount in `)Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

The principal assumpƟons are shown below :

Discount rate 8.25% 8.00%

Expected rate of return on assets 9.00% 9.50%

Withdrawal Rates
(Varying between per annum depending upon the duraƟon and age of the 
employees)

1% - 8% 1% - 3%

As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

As at
March 31, 2012

As at
March 31, 2011

As at
March 31, 2010

Amounts for the current and 
previous four years are as 
follows :   

Defined benefit obligaƟon  12,666,499  9,853,957  7,909,665  5,305,927  4,385,304 

Plan assets  13,220,297  11,607,772  9,053,068  5,017,516  3,539,137 

Surplus / (deficit)  553,798  1,753,815  1,143,403  (865,182)  (1,511,011)

Experience (gain) / loss 
adjustments on plan liabiliƟes

 217,320  517,104  1,604,862  475,817  236,080 

Experience gain / (loss) 
adjustments on plan assets

 (97,039)  –    –    –    –   

The esƟmates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuaƟon, take account of inflaƟon, seniority, promoƟon and 
other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on the date, applicable to 
the year over which the obligaƟon is to be seƩled.

2013-14 2012-13

Defined ContribuƟon Plan :
The Group has recognised the following amount as an expense and included 
under, “ContribuƟon to Provident & Other Funds”.

ContribuƟon to Provident / Pension Funds    1,870,035  1,653,382 

NOTE 37 OPERATING LEASE

Certain office premises, godowns, etc. are held on operaƟng lease. The leases range upto 3 years and are renewable for 
further year either mutually or at the opƟon of the Group. There is no escalaƟon clause in the lease agreement. There are 
no restricƟons imposed by lease agreements. There are no subleases. The leases are cancellable.

2013-14 2012-13

Lease payments made for the year  12,928,603  10,188,175 

NOTE 38 EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Profit as per Statement of Profit & Loss aƩributable to Equity Shareholders (a)  660,707,048  647,794,161 

Weighted average number of Equity Shares (in number) (b)  79,524,560  79,524,560 

Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share (a/b)  8.31  8.15 

(Nominal Value - ` 1 per share)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Amount in `)
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NOTE 39 SEGMENT REPORTING 

The Group has re-assessed its business segments during the year. Accordingly, (a) Sales and (b) Services out of the primary 
business segment reported in the previous year are regrouped and considered as one single segment. Further, Power 
GeneraƟon segment reported in the previous years not considered as a separate segment as it is an insignificant acƟvity and 
not a separate line of business of the Group and Income from power generaƟon is presented as "Other OperaƟng Revenue".
In view of the above, there is only one primary business segment i.e. "Garments & Hosiery goods and related services and 
hence no separate segment informaƟon is disclosed in this financial.

Secondary informaƟon is reported geographically.

Geographical Segments

The Group primarily operates in India and therefore analysis of geographical segment is demonstrated into Indian and 
overseas operaƟon as under:

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 For the year ended 31st March, 2013

India Overseas Total India Overseas Total

Revenue from 
OperaƟons (Gross 
sales)

 8,855,029,633  188,663,248  9,043,692,881  8,492,953,761  212,511,055  8,705,464,816 

Carrying amount :

Segment assets  6,566,489,113  39,436,457  6,605,925,570  6,214,509,981  33,620,786  6,248,130,767 

AddiƟons :

Tangible assets  135,304,670  –    135,304,670  331,410,589  –    331,410,589 

Intangible assets  –    –    –    4,325,157  –    4,325,157 

NOTE 40 DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND UNHEDGED FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

ParƟculars Purpose 

a) DerivaƟve outstanding as at the reporƟng date

Forward Contract OpƟon
NoƟonal amount USD 2,000,000 (31st March, 2013: USD 3,706,449) 
` 120,199,627 (31st March, 2013 : ` 201,591,179)

 Hedge of foreign currency loan

As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

b) ParƟculars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as on the balance sheet 
date, are as follows :     
Trade receivable  39,436,457  33,620,786 

(Amount in `)Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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NOTE 41 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Names of related parƟes and related party relaƟonship

Related parƟes with whom transacƟons have taken place during the year

Key Management Personnel Mr. P. R. Agarwala    Chairman 

Mr. G. P. Agarwala    Vice Chairman 

Mr. K. B. Agarwal  Managing Director 

Mr. Ramesh Agarwal   Execu ve Director 

Mr. Mukesh  Agarwal  Execu ve Director 

RelaƟves of Key Management Personnel Late Baijnath Agarwal Father of Mr. P.R.Agarwala

Mr. Suresh Agarwal Son of Mr. P.R.Agarwala

Mr. Manish Agarwal Son of Mr. G.P.Agarwala

Mr. Ravi Agarwal  Son of Mr. K.B.Agarwal

Mr. Vikash Agarwal Son of Mr. K.B.Agarwal

Mr. Rajnish Agarwal Son of Mr. G.P.Agarwala

Mrs. ShanƟ Devi Agarwal Wife of Mr. P.R.Agarwala

Mrs. Puspa Devi Agarwal Wife of Mr. G.P.Agarwala

Mrs. Lalita Devi Agarwal Wife of Mr. K.B.Agarwal

Mrs. Seema Agarwal Wife of Mr. Ramesh Agarwal

Mrs. Seema Agarwal Wife of Mr. Mukesh Agarwal

Mrs. Sarita Patwari Daughter of Mr. G.P.Agarwala

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key 
management personnel or their relaƟves

Binod Hosiery

Salasar Projects and Estates Pvt. Ltd.

Sidhant Flats & Apartments  Pvt. Ltd.

Salasar Infrastructure Ltd.

Rupa Spinners Ltd.

Salasar Developers & Garments Pvt. Ltd.

Bajrangbali Projects Ltd.

Sidhant TexƟles Pvt. Ltd.

Ganesh Enclave Ltd.

Ravi Global Pvt. Ltd.

Kadambari Impex & Agency Pvt. Ltd.

Rajnish Enterprises Ltd.

Purvanchal Leasing Ltd.

Siddhant Credit Capital Ltd.

K B & Sons - HUF

Mukesh Kumar Agarwal - HUF

Ghanshyam Prasad Manish Kumar - HUF

Prahalad Rai Suresh Kumar - HUF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Amount in `)
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Related Party TransacƟon

ParƟculars Party Nature of relaƟonship 2013-14 2012-13

Rent Mr. P. R. Agarwala Key Management Personnel  222,000  222,000 

Mr. G. P. Agarwala  114,000  114,000 

Mr. K. B. Agarwal  48,000  48,000 

Mr. Mukesh Agarwal  108,000  108,000 

Shri Baijnath Agarwal RelaƟves of Key Management 
Personnel

 60,000  60,000 

Mr. Manish Agarwal  18,000  18,000 

Mr. Rajnish Agarwal  18,000  18,000 

Mrs. Puspa Devi Agarwal  18,000  18,000 

Salasar Infrastructure 
Ltd.

Enterprises owned or significantly 
influenced by key management 
personnel or their relaƟves

 108,000  108,000 

Rupa Spinners Ltd.  108,000  108,000 

Salasar Developers & 
Garments Pvt. Ltd.

 108,000  108,000 

Bajrangbali Projects Ltd.  108,000  108,000 

Sidhant TexƟles Pvt. Ltd.  114,000  114,000 

Ganesh Enclave Ltd.  108,000  108,000 

Ravi Global Pvt. Ltd.  114,000  114,000 

Kadambari Impex & 
Agency Pvt. Ltd.

 114,000  114,000 

Others  96,000  96,000 

Salary & Perquisites Mr. P. R. Agarwala Key Management Personnel  5,125,000  4,015,989 

Mr. G. P. Agarwala  3,300,000  3,419,664 

Mr. K. B. Agarwal  3,250,000  3,405,376 

Mr. Ramesh Agarwal  1,800,000  1,800,000 

Mr. Mukesh Agarwal  1,800,000  1,800,000 

Mr. Manish Agarwal RelaƟves of Key Management 
Personnel

 1,800,000  1,800,000 

Mr. Ravi Agarwal  1,800,000  1,800,000 

Mr. Vikash Agarwal  1,800,000  1,800,000 

Mr. Rajnish Agarwal  1,800,000  1,800,000 

Mr. Suresh Agarwal  480,000  480,000 

(Amount in `)Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements



Annual Report   2014   Rupa & Company Limited 108

Fashioning India since 1968

Related Party TransacƟon

ParƟculars Party Nature of relaƟonship 2013-14 2012-13

Dividend Paid Mr. P. R. Agarwala Key Management Personnel  16,082,160 12,061,620

Mr. G. P. Agarwala  14,481,820 10,861,365

Mr. K. B. Agarwal  14,556,000 10,917,000

Others  3,577,560 2,683,170

Mr. Vikash Agarwal RelaƟves of Key Management 
Personnel

 3,510,880 2,633,160

Mr. Ravi Agarwal  3,485,260 2,613,945

Mr. Rajnish Agarwal  2,486,740 1,865,055

Mr. Manish Agarwal  2,465,100 1,848,825

Mr. Suresh Agarwal  2,133,140 1,599,855

Others  4,760,720 3,570,540

Rajnish Enterprises Ltd. Enterprises owned or significantly 
influenced by key management 
personnel or their relaƟves

 31,642,380 23,731,785

Purvanchal Leasing Ltd.  11,615,340 8,711,505

Others  5,800,000 4,350,000

Balance at end of the year As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

Other LiabiliƟes Mr. P. R. Agarwala Key Management Personnel  1,536,138  9,419,936 

Mr. G. P. Agarwala  1,751,727  7,220,283 

Mr. K. B. Agarwal  3,544,070  4,495,871 

Mr. Ramesh Agarwal  1,808,384  818,779 

Mr. Mukesh Agarwal  2,358,694  2,252,143 

Mr. Manish Agarwal RelaƟves of Key Management 
Personnel

 4,960,225  4,535,961 

Mr. Rajnish Agarwal  3,374,024  3,430,902 

Mr. Ravi Agarwal  3,503,942  3,058,809 

Mr. Vikash Agarwal  2,238,321  1,296,268 

Others  708,793  512,531 

Binod Hosiery Enterprises owned or significantly 
influenced by key management 
personnel or their relaƟves

 108,000  108,000 

Sidhant TexƟles Pvt. Ltd.  –    819,000 

Ravi Global Pvt. Ltd.  –    864,000 

Kadambari Impex & 
Agency Pvt. Ltd.

 –    779,000 

Others  –    915,958 

Loans & Advances Salasar Developers & 
Garments Pvt. Ltd.

Enterprises owned or significantly 
influenced by key management 
personnel or their relaƟves

 30,400 52,000 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Amount in `)
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Balance at end of the year As at
March 31, 2014

As at
March 31, 2013

Long Term Loans & 
Advances - Security 
Deposits

Salasar Projects and 
Estates Pvt. Ltd.

Enterprises owned or significantly 
influenced by key management 
personnel or their relaƟves

 2,600,000  2,600,000 

Sidhant Flats & 
Apartments  Pvt Ltd.

 2,640,000  2,640,000 

Others  1,500,000  1,500,000 

Guarantees Given by 
Directors

Mr. P.R.Agarwala Key Management Personnel  152,222,222  254,444,444 

Mr. G.P.Agarwala  152,222,222  254,444,444 

Mr. K.B.Agarwal  152,222,222  254,444,444 

(Amount in `)Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Firm RegistraƟon No. 301003E
Chartered Accountants
per Bhaswar Sarkar P. R. Agarwala  G. P. Agarwala
a Partner Chairman   Vice-Chairman
Membership No. 055596
Place : Kolkata Priya Punjabi Agarwal  K. B. Agarwal
Date: 30th May, 2014 Company Secretary  Managing Director

NOTE 42

The remuneraƟon to the Key Management Personnel and relaƟves of the Key Management Personnel does not include 
provision made for Gratuity as they are determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.
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(Amount in `)Statement Regarding Subsidiary Companies
Statement containing Financial InformaƟon of Subsidairy Companies       
(in terms of General Circular No. 2/2011 dated 8th February, 2011 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs) 

ParƟculars Euro Fashions Innners 
InternaƟonal Pvt. Ltd.

 Immogi Fashions
Pvt. Ltd.

Capital  41,000,000  100,000 

Reserves & Surplus  132,913,603  2,972,820 

Total Assets  299,302,319  50,952,091 

Total LiabiliƟes (including Shareholders' Funds)  299,302,319  50,952,091 

Investments  3,000 –

Turnover/Total Revenue  478,011,492  38,894,421 

Profit before TaxaƟon  57,170,275  2,622,639 

Provision for TaxaƟon  18,751,010  892,347 

Profit aŌer TaxaƟon  38,419,265  1,730,292 

Proposed Dividend – –
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